
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Local Plan Advisory Group 
 

Date and Time 
 

Wednesday, 9th March, 2022 at 6.00 pm. 

Venue 
 

This meeting will be held virtually and a live audio stream can 
be listened to via www.winchester.gov.uk. 

 
Note: Members of the public should note that a live audio feed of the meeting will be 
available from the council’s website (http://www.winchester.gov.uk) and the video 
recording will be publicly available on the council’s YouTube channel shortly after the 
meeting.  
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given. 

 

2.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters to 

be discussed. 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance 
with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

 

 

3.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 December 2021 (Pages 5 - 8) 
 That the minutes of the meeting be signed as a correct record. 

 

4.   Public and Member Participation  
 To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of 

the public and members of the council on issues relating to the responsibility 
of this Advisory Group. 
 
Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at the meeting 
provided they have registered to speak three working days in advance.   
 
Please contact Democratic Services by 5pm 3 March 2022 via 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak and 
for further details. 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


5.   Local Plan  - Vision & Objectives (Presentation) (Pages 9 - 18) 
 

6.   Local Plan Proposed Vision/Objectives (Pages 19 - 24) 
 

7.   Local Plan Design South East Reports (Pages 25 - 158) 
 

 
Lisa Kirkman 

Strategic Director 
 

 
 

 

All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are available 
to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open to 
inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our use 
of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at meetings. 
We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front sheet at the 
meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this code enables 
members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers on their own 
electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code App over the 
QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected 
to the agenda pack. 

 

 
1 March 2022 
 
Agenda Contact: Matthew Watson, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 317, email: mwatson@winchester.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Local Plan Advisory Group 
 
Councillor Gordon-Smith (Chairperson) 
 
Cllr Brook  
Cllr Clear  
Cllr Edwards  
Cllr Evans  
Cllr Horrill  
Cllr Thompson  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The purpose of the Advisory Group is to receive updates and discuss matters 
relating to the preparation of the Council’s Local Plan and to assist the Cabinet and 
Council in their decision making so as to ensure: 
 
 that the preparation of the Local Plan is integrated with the wider aims and 
objectives of the Council on behalf of its communities 
 that Members are actively informed on progress on the Local Plan and 
provided with appropriate opportunities to participate in policy development 
 that there is a shared understanding of issues relating the preparation of the 
evidence base, arrangements for community involvement, duty to cooperate with 
neighbouring authorities, preparation and publication of documents and associated 
public consultation.   
 that there are high levels of public engagement with the preparation of the 
Local Plan  
 
Whilst noting that decision making is a matter for Cabinet and Council, the Advisory 
Group may be expected to comment upon:  
 
 the implications of the emerging evidence base and arrangements for 
community involvement; publication of preparatory draft documents and associated 
public consultation. 
 any Local Plan document for initial consultation; 
 any Proposed Submission Local Plan Document prior to submission to the 
Secretary of State. 
 the Inspector’s report and recommended modifications after the Examination. 
 
Whilst it will normally meet in public the Advisory Group may meet privately to 
discuss matters which are confidential, or policy related at the discretion of the 
Chairperson.  As a non-decision-making body the format of information and advice to 
the Advisory Group will primarily be by presentation and oral update rather than 
written report.  A brief minute of the Advisory Group will be taken. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members of the 
public on matters which fall within the remit of the Advisory Group. 
 
NB members of the public are required to register with Democratic Services three 
clear working days before the meeting (see above for further details). 
 
Filming and Broadcast Notification 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website.  The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

LOCAL PLAN ADVISORY GROUP 
 

Monday, 13 December 2021 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Gordon-Smith (Chairperson) 

 
Brook 
Clear 
Edwards 
 

Horrill 
Thompson 
 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillors Evans 
 
Other members in attendance: 
 
Councillors Cook, Cutler, Laming, Tod, Warwick, Weston and Williams 
 
 
Audio and video recording of this meeting  
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES  

Apologies were noted as above. 
 

2.    DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
None. 
 

3.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 24 NOVEMBER 2021  
A point was raised regarding item 8 of the previous minutes and 

specifically the statement: 
 
“Following a request, the chairperson agreed to discuss with officers 

whether a “top 10” list could be created that gave members a summary across 
all sections of the key issues raised from the consultation.” 

 
The chairperson advised that he would be discussing this matter with 

officers and would report back to advisory group members. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 24 November 

2021 be approved and adopted. 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=388&MId=2890


 
 

 
 

4.    PUBLIC AND MEMBER PARTICIPATION  
Councillor David Killeen, Chair, Hursley Parish Council addressed the meeting. 
He informed that the parish council supported a need to maintain existing 
settlement gaps, specifically between Oliver’s Battery and Hursley and Hursley 
and Otterbourne. In addition, the parish council felt that the City Council’s Local 
Plan should not take up housing allocations from neighbouring district councils. 
Councillor Killeen raised four further questions concerning; 
 

 The impact of carrying out a Neighbourhood Plan at the same time as the 
City Council’s Local Plan. 

 The methods of feedback to the City Council regarding the SHELAA sites. 

 The rationale for omitting Standon from the Local Plan. 

 Whether SHELAA sites HU03 and HU011 were the same site.     
 

The Chairperson and Adrian Fox (Strategic Planning Manager) responded to the 
points raised and Mr Fox advised that he would respond in further detail to 
Councillor Killeen regarding SHELAA site HU03. The Chairperson thanked 
Councillor Killeen for his contribution. 
 
 

5.    RESPONSES TO THE STRATEGIC ISSUES & PRIORITIES CONSULTATION  
The Chairperson introduced the item and informed the group that the intention of 

the meeting was for officers to report back on the responses and the analysis of 

the final seven topics from the Strategic Issues & Priorities consultation. These 

topics were: 

1. Sustainable Development Objectives 

2. Carbon Neutrality 

3. Biodiversity and the Natural Environment 

4. Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment 

5. Homes for All - specialised housing  

6. Creating a Vibrant Economy  

7. General Responses 

 

Members of the advisory group had been supplied with the background 

documents on each topic as part of the agenda pack.  At the end of each topic, 

members would have an opportunity to provide further comments before the 

group were asked if they supported the recommended way forward for each. 

Adrian Fox (Strategic Planning Manager), Steve Opacic (Strategic Planning 

Projects Officer), Joan Ashton (Senior Planning Officer) and Bethany Stokes 

(Planning Officer) provided the advisory group with a presentation that had 

previously been circulated to members regarding the “Responses to the 

Strategic Issues and Priorities consultation".  The presentation was available on 

the council’s website at this link.  The presentation provided members with the 

analysis and proposed a way forward for each of the seven topics listed above. 

Each topic was discussed, with members comments and questions raised as 

follows: 

 

Page 6

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=388&MId=2890


 
 

 
 

Sustainable Development Objectives: Analysis & Way Forward. 

 Balancing the pressures of economic growth, increased housing 

development and the impact on existing residents and the 

environment. 

 The number of available brownfield sites and the amount of housing 

that could be accommodated on this land 

 The opportunities and challenges of conversions of office 

developments into residential properties.  

 

Carbon Neutrality: Analysis & Way Forward. 

 Understanding the impact on viability in terms of how far the Local 

Plan policies can go to address carbon neutrality.  

 Understanding how other councils were addressing these issues of 

carbon neutrality within their Local Plans. 

 The importance of site selection which can have a significant impact 

on climate change.   

 

Biodiversity and the Natural Environment: Analysis & Way Forward. 

 The timing and any potential issues of the Partnership for Southern 

Hampshire (PfSH) Green Belt commission and the City Council’s 

regulation 18 timescales. (Mr Fox to advise group members of the 

dates of the breakpoints referred to in his response)  

 The policy requirements relating to the development of former Ministry 

of Defence sites.  

 

Conserving and Enhancing the Historic Environment 

 Whether the city council had sufficient resources to support 

communities with producing Conservation Area Appraisals 

 Further information regarding the production of the Buildings at Risk 

register (Mr Finch to advise group members of further information on 

this point) 

 

Homes for All - specialised housing  

 The importance of student accommodation being sited close to a 

university campus to minimise the impact on local roads and 

environment and working with the Universities to enable this. 

 How to respond to residents increasing requirements for self-build 

opportunities. 

 Gypsy & Traveller Sites – the benefits of expanding existing sites 

versus finding new sites and the challenges involved in generating an 

accurate estimate of need. 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

Creating a Vibrant Economy 

 The importance of quantifying any gap in requirements for smaller, 

more traditional manufacturing units in the district and the 

appropriate policy to address any gap. 

 

General Responses 

 Whether there was an opportunity within the Local Plan process for 

further, detailed conversations and community engagement to be 

undertaken that could build on and supplement the survey type 

engagement undertaken to date. 

 

 

These questions were responded to by officers and the Chairperson accordingly.  

 

RESOLVED:  

 

1. That the presentation and update be noted  

2. That officers consider the points made by members 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 8.20 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 8



LOCAL PLAN

VISION AND OBJECTIVES 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



Outline of Presentation

➢ Introduction - NPPF and PAS guidance

➢ The Council Plan and feedback from the Strategic Issues and Priorities 

consultation 

➢ Proposed Vision and Objectives

P
age 10



National Planning Policy Framework

➢ Succinct and up-to-date plans should provide a positive vision for the 

future of the area (para 15)

➢ Plans should be prepared positively in a way that is aspirational but 

deliverable (para 16)

➢ Where large scale development is proposed policies should be set within 

a vision that looks further ahead (at least 30 years); (para 22)

➢ Planning policies should set out a clear economic vision and strategy, 

which positively and proactively encourages sustainable economic growth 

(para 82)

➢ Policies should set out a clear design vision (para 127)

P
age 11



The Planning Advisory Service

➢ The Local Plan must contain a vision which should be aspirational but realistic. 

➢ It should set out the intended character of the plan area, based on current trends and 
trajectory of key data such as that related to population and economy. 

➢ Objectives should flow from the vision, establishing the way in which the plan area will deal 
with the identified critical issues

➢ Together, these should be clear, realistic, locally distinctive and spatial in planning terms 

➢ Generalised aspirations are not locally specific and don't communicate how a difference can 
be made through the plan.

➢ The objectives should flow from the critical issues and support the delivery of the spatial 
vision

➢ A useful starting point is to specifically define the problems you are trying to solve

P
age 12



PAS Advice continued:

➢ Does the vision reflect council and community priorities? 

➢ Does the vision describe your area as opposed to anywhere? 

➢ Do you get a clear sense of what the place will be like in the future? 

➢ Can you translate this into planning policy and outcomes that can be 

delivered? 

➢ Is it clear where change will happen in economic, physical and social terms? 

➢ Is it concise and easy to understand? 

➢ How will you measure success of achieving the vision?

P
age 13



The Council Plan: Priorities

➢ Tackling Climate Change and Creating a Greener District

➢ Living Well; all residents to live healthy and fulfilled lives with the right mix 

of facilities to support good physical and mental health for everyone

➢ Homes for all, homes that are affordable and built in the right area for the 

changing communities

➢ A vibrant local economy, restoring the vibrancy of the high streets and 

develop and retain the business base. And begin the transition to a greener 

more sustainable economy.

➢ Providing high quality, good value, resilient services.

P
age 14



Strategic Issues & Priorities consultation
Summary of the key points raised in the Strategic Issues and 

Priorities consultation

Question: Is the vision in the current Local Plan still appropriate for 

inclusion in the new Local Plan? 

The local plan vision should:
➢ be updated to acknowledge the different challenges facing the District

➢ recognise a shift away from high street shopping and towards more people 

working from home

➢ refer to climate change and Winchester City Council’s carbon neutrality goals 

➢ refer to 15 minute neighbourhoods, promote sustainable and attractive 

development , reduce  and mitigate CO2 emissions

➢ ensure the vision is not Winchester centric and supports the market towns and 

rural area

➢ promote and prioritise brownfield land, protect the countryside, increase green 

spaces/biodiversity

P
age 15



Feedback from the Strategic Issues & 

Priorities document 

Targets 
are very 
general

Specific 
targets 
needed

Too much 
focus on 

sustainable 
development

Too many 
objectives 

Performance 
measures 
required 

Many 
objectives 
are out of 

council 
control 

Carbon 
neutrality 
target of 
2030 was 

questioned

P
age 16



Quick recap: Key points to consider when drafting 

a new vision for the Local Plan:

➢ The Vision needs to address current spatial issues facing the district. 

➢ It needs to be clear where a local plan and planning policies can make a 

difference, and where realistically it is not the correct document to address a 

particular issue.

➢ The up-dated Vision needs to be specific to the Winchester plan area, and 

deliverable. It will need to reflect the different spatial issues which face different 

parts of the district, by ensuring that it is not Winchester-centric

➢ There needs to be a direct and easily understood link between the Spatial Issues, 

the Vision and the Policy Objectives

➢ The spatial priorities in the current local plan, the Council Plan, and those which 

have been identified through the consultation process have now been reviewed 

which have helped to inform the proposed new Vision

P
age 17



Next steps… 

➢ Draft Vision and Objectives prepared for comment

➢ Emerging Vison and Objectives will guide production of draft policies and 

be published as part of the Plan for consultation

➢ May change as detail of Local Plan is worked up

➢ Plan will need to demonstrate how Vision and Objectives will be delivered.

P
age 18



Page 1 of 5 
 

Winchester Local Plan Review Vision and Objectives  March 2022 

 

The adopted Local Plan contains the following Vision -   

 

“Winchester District is a special place characterised by a rich historical and cultural 

heritage and attractive countryside and is home to a diverse population and a variety 

of business sectors. The District should retain the distinctive characteristics of the 

three key areas so as to maximise opportunities to address change in a positive way 

that ensures it remains an attractive place to live, visit, work and do business:- 

● the County Town of Winchester needs to meet its housing and community 

requirements and to diversify its economy through the promotion of the knowledge, 

tourism, creative and education sectors, whilst respecting the highly valued features 

and setting of the Town; 

● areas at Waterlooville and Whiteley on the southern fringes of the District need to 

provide homes, jobs, physical and social infrastructure whilst creating a strong sense 

of community identity and protecting nearby environmentally sensitive sites, to create 

extended communities in this part of South Hampshire; 

● the market towns and many villages that fall within the rural area are to remain 

viable settlements offering where possible a range of local services and facilities, 

and be allowed to grow to respond to local needs, whilst retaining their individual 

identity and rural character. Development in those settlements that lie in the South 

Downs National Park should respect its purposes”. 

 

The Strategic Issues and Priorities (SIP) consultation in February 2021 set out this 

this adopted vision.  It also outlined the work undertaken by Winchester Town Forum 

in considering a vision for the City to 2030 and three specific approaches, namely  

 Spatial: The City Made by Walking 

 People Power! Establishing Mechanisms the Enable Communities to… 

 Auditing & Sharing Resources: Creating and Sharing Data is Empowerment   

proposed revised vision, and supporting objectives, are set out on the next 

page 

 

The SIP consultation sought views as to whether the adopted Local Plan Vision was 

still appropriate for the emerging Local Plan, and whether there were any elements 

of the Winchester Town Forum’s Winchester 2030 document that could be used to 

help inform the vision for the Local Plan.  Views were also sought regarding a set of 

proposed Local Plan Objectives.  The responses to this consultation were reported 

to LPAG in September 2021. 

–  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 5 
 

  

Page 20



Page 3 of 5 
 

Proposed Draft Vision For the Local Plan 

 

Further consideration of the responses, the requirements of national planning policy 

and advice from the Planning Advisory Service has resulted in the following draft 

Vision and Objectives for the emerging Local Plan –  

 

Winchester District has unique natural, cultural and historic assets which means it is 

an attractive place to live and work.  The challenges of changes to the environment, 

economy and lifestyles will be met in a positive manner.  The natural beauty, wildlife 

and cultural heritage will be enhanced.  Key assets such as chalk streams and the 

setting of the national park will be protected.  New development will address the 

needs of the area and enhance the sustainability of communities, natural 

environment and the economy and respond to the wider relationship with 

neighbouring authorities.  The area will be better placed to adapt, be resilient to and 

mitigate climate change and help the council to address its climate emergency 

declaration. 

Development in the area will be delivered in a way which achieves the following 

outcomes – 

 

 the County Town of Winchester will continue to be the cultural and economic 

centre of the district with a significant range of services, facilities and 

employment, and as such will be a centre for growth.  The high-quality 

environment will attract a range of new uses as the role of the town evolves.  

The visitor and tourism economy, and creative and education sectors will be 

increasingly important.  Regeneration will make the best use of previously 

developed land, which will be delivered while protecting and enhancing the 

character and the wealth of  historic assets.   

 areas in the south will continue to grow as planned forming part of the wider 

south Hampshire economy.  Significant housing and employment 

development will be delivered while protecting and enhancing natural assets.  

Physical and social infrastructure will be provided to reinforce and maintain a 

strong sense of community and identity. 

 the market towns and rural villages will remain attractive settlements, 

accommodating changes to communities and the economy, with modest 

growth to meet their needs supporting the resilience of local services and 

facilities whilst retaining their individual identity, historic assets and rural 

character.  

 

This vision will be delivered by the application of the following spatial objectives 

and policies across the plan area. These collectively will ensure that proper 

Page 21



Page 4 of 5 
 

consideration is given to the impact of development on environment, economy 

and society to achieve sustainable development. 

 

Spatial Planning Objectives  

 

The following objectives have been developed from the previous core strategy, 

taking into account the revised vision set out above and relevant themes in the 

Council Plan. 

 

Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district 

 Maximise the use of land as a resource which is needed to accommodate 
growth through the promotion and prioritisation of brownfield land, making 
best and most efficient use of available land which is suitable for 
development,  and achieve high quality design which makes a positive 
contribution to the public realm.  

 Maintain and enhance Winchester District’s valuable environments including 
both the urban and rural areas as well as the built and natural environments 
and improve wildlife assets through the Biodiversity Action Plan.  

 Ensure that development is designed to provide biodiversity net gain, and 
does not have an adverse impact on landscape character and historic 
environment and the  unique and special characteristics of the South Downs 
National Park.  

 Provide, protect and enhance green infrastructure to include open spaces, 
green links and wildlife corridors with support from the Biodiversity Action 
Plan.  

 Mitigate and protect the area from the impacts of, and adapt to the effects of 
the climate emergency by promoting design, lifestyle and business to reduce 
carbon emissions, promote recycling and minimise waste.  

 Maximise the use of low carbon infrastructure and construction methods and 
drainage systems and encourage the use of locally sourced materials, to 
protect the integrity of the natural systems and resources. 
 

Living Well 

 Promote health by improving air quality, increasing opportunities for walking 

and cycling and enhancing access to outdoor recreation and the natural 

environment. 

 Delivering inclusive communities with a range of services and infrastructure in 

sustainable neighbourhoods, including community infrastructure, green 

infrastructure and employment. 

 Supporting measures which encourage sustainable and active transport and 

reducing the need to use the private car. 

Page 22



Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Homes for All 

 Delivering high quality and adaptable new housing to meet local needs, 

including a range of sizes, types of residential accommodation and tenures. 

Vibrant local economy 

 

 Ensuring the economy is able to grow and respond positively to covid-19 and 

other challenges by accommodating changing business needs and 

opportunities, including growing the visitor and tourism economy, and creative 

and education sectors. 

 Identify sufficient sites and premises to meet  business needs and support the 

delivery of the infrastructure required to support it, including transport and 

communications infrastructure. 

 Supporting the cultural, visitor and tourism economy, including links and 

access to destinations including Winchester City and the South Downs 

National Park. 

 Support green growth, including the low-carbon economy through 

encouraging energy efficiency and renewable energy technologies. 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



LPAG meeting  

Taking forward design issues into the new Local PlanP
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



Three Local Plan Design workshops where arranged which were 

facilitated by Design South East:

➢ Workshop 1: Design Policy – Winchester Discovery Centre         

20th October 2021

➢ Workshop 2: Winchester Town – Mercure Hotel                              

5th November 2021

➢ Workshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Villages - Marwell Hotel 

16th November 2021  

The reports will form part of our evidence base to inform new policy 

but not every suggestion will necessarily be included.

P
age 26



Main outputs 

Workshop 1:  

➢ Achieving high quality design is a process

➢ Page 5 of the Report includes feedback from the delegates on 

how well they thought the existing LP created desired outcomes in 

terms of environmental quality and place making 

➢ Delegates provided feedback on the existing policies in the form of 

Keep/Delete and Amend which will be taken on board as part of 

the development of the new LP.

P
age 27



Main outputs 

Workshop 2:  

➢ Concentrated on more spatial matters and opportunities to 

enhance the built and natural environment and what those 

changes might be 

➢ Identified 5 Areas of Opportunity in Winchester (Station Area, 

North Walls, Westgate, The Broadway and Bar End) – we will look 

to include these in the new LP

➢ Identified a number of sites within and close to Winchester that 

had the potential to be redeveloped/refurbished 

➢ Considered the existing movement network and the issues around 

these 

P
age 28



Main outputs 

Workshop 3:

Asked delegates to outline what makes a successful development 

and what make a poor development 

Successful development:

➢ Local distinctiveness and materials were key issues 

➢ Development should respect the rural nature and their setting

➢ Integrate landscape and open spaces  

➢ Importance of VDS and using local knowledge to influence the 

design process 

P
age 29



Main outputs 

Workshop3:

Poor development:

➢ Movement network and parking arrangements 

➢ Overdevelopment 

➢ Some new development is bland and lacking local character

➢ Development could be anywhere 

The feedback was mapped against the ten characteristics in the 

National Model Design Guide  

P
age 30



Next steps:

We will consider all the recommendations and weave this into the 

new LP both in terms of how we deal with Winchester town and the 

market towns, villages and rural areas and how we develop a new 

topic on achieving high quality design.

Finally, we would like thank everyone that attended the workshops 

and made valuable and constructive contributions.  

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



2 
 

Local Plan Design workshop – Workshop 1 

20th October 2021 – Winchester Discovery Centre 

 

Contents         Page no. 

Introduction         3 

Workshop 1 – The engagement process     4   

Exercise 1 – Policy - Keep, Delete, Amend    6 

Exercise 2 – What areas could the new policy cover?   8 

Exercise 3 – Design policies      8 

Exercise 4 – SPDs, LADs, VDSs      9 

Conclusions         11 

Appendix 1 – Summary of workshops 1, 2 and 3   12 

Appendix 2 – Existing Local Policies for exercise 1   14 

Appendix 3 – Presentation from Andy Von Bradsky   19 

Appendix 4 – Workshop running order     23 

Appendix 5 - Example of tables for each question   24 

Appendix 6 – Exercise 1 to 4 – full comments    25   

Appendix 7 – Feedback – full comments     33 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



3 
 

Introduction 

The new Local Plan will address local housing need, the economy, environmental 

considerations including sustainability, community infrastructure as well as strategic 

infrastructure needs, and is being prepared with the climate emergency at the centre 

of our thinking. The Local Plan is a document produced by Winchester City Council 

to set out what development may be allowed up to 2039. 

It is important to provide a high quality of life for residents, workers and visitors and 

this will be supported in the Local Plan through high quality place making. This is 

also the aim of the Government through changes to the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF), the National Design Guide and the piloting of the National 

Model Design Code (NMDC) toolkit. 

 

The adopted Local Plan contains a number of policies that seek to secure high 

standards of design. These policies are contained within Appendix 2 and are 

supported by the High Quality Places Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), 

Village Design Statements (VDSs) and Local Area Design Statements (LADs). 

These documents provide guidance on how to apply policies and inform the 

assessment of planning applications. 

Winchester City Council is progressing its new Local Plan and we are at the stage 

where we want to understand how we can potentially improve and develop the way 

we currently address and approach design issues especially in the light of recent 

changes to national planning guidance.  

A series of workshops were held in October and November 2021 and facilitated by 

Design South East. A summary of each workshop was published on the Winchester 

City Council website and is shown within Appendix 1. Separate reports for 

workshops 2 and 3 have been produced for each of the workshops.  

The ten characteristics of well 

design places.  

National Design Guide 

January 2021 

Next Steps 

The information in this report will form part of the evidence base for the new Local 

Plan. However, this does not mean all the suggestions and recommendations will 

ultimately be incorporated into the plan. Any information included will be consulted on 

as part of Regulation 18 (draft) plan. 

Page 35



4 
 

Workshop 1 - The engagement process 

Workshop one focused on Local Plan design policies. Key representatives from a 
range of organisations with an interest in the planning system and development, and 
council officers and members, as well as developers and architects, were invited to 
this workshop. This workshop was used to discuss how effectively design related 
issues are currently addressed in the district outside the South Downs National Park 
and to collectively identify how we could improve the way that the new Local Plan will 
deliver well designed buildings and places.  
 
The first workshop was held on 20th October 2021 at the Discovery Centre in 

Winchester. The workshop had 30 attendees. The workshop focused on the existing 

design policies in the adopted local plan, supplementary planning documents (SPDs) 

such as the High Quality Places SPD and other documents including the local area 

design statements (LADSs), Shopfront and Advertising SPD and village design 

statements (VDSs). The policies the attendees were asked to consider are listed in 

Appendix 2. 

The attendees were split into small groups to allow for focussed discussions and 

provided with printed tables to comment on the individual policies and documents. 

Feedback was provided after each exercise to share thoughts and ideas with 

everyone in the room.  

The workshop opened with a key note speaker address by Andy Von Bradsky, the 

former Head of Architecture at the MHCLG, and Director of von Bradsky Enterprises, 

which provides architectural and design quality advice to a range of clients, as well 

as other professional services. A copy of the slides are contained within Appendix 3. 

The workshop running order is shown in Appendix 4. The details of each exercise 

are explained below. An example of the tables given to the attendees for each 

exercise are shown in Appendix 5. 

Workshop 1 was started with an icebreaker. The attendees were asked within their 

groups “How well do you think the current Local Plan policies on design create the 

desired outcomes in terms of environmental quality and place making.” They were 

each asked to mark on the target the answer to the question. The results are shown 

below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



5 
 

 

 

Page 37



6 
 

The icebreaker shows that most people considered that the Local Plan policies work 

to a degree. One person considered they worked well and 5 people considered they 

do not deliver the right outcomes. One person placed their dot outside of the target. 

Feedback was provided to the Group after the icebreaker. The participants 

questioned how we define good design and considered that current design policies 

are producing some mixed results. They considered that transport can dominate 

design and that further training and resources were required on design. Achieving 

good design is about following the right process. The full comments made can be 

view in Appendix 7. 

 

Exercise 1 – Policy – Keep, Delete, Amend 

For exercise 1 the attendees were given a list of policies and were asked whether we 

should ‘keep, delete or amend’ the adopted policies in the current local plan.  

The table below shows the results. It is noted that individual tables ticked or crossed 

more than one box and placed more than one tick or cross in each box. 

Policy Keep Delete Amend 

CP13  ? 

CP20    

WIN3    

DM15   

DM16    

DM17    

DM33 X   

DM34 X   

 

A section for comments were also provided under each policy. The comments are 

summarised below. The full comments are contained within Appendix 6. 

Policy CP13 – High quality design 

Whilst the comments that were provided by the attendees were varied there appears 

to be general consensus that this policy should be retained but amended. More 

guidance was considered to be required when assessing or interpreting what makes 

good design. However, the comments also suggested that the policy needs to be 

flexible and not too prescriptive. Reference is made to design codes within these 

comments. 

 
CP20 – Heritage and Landscape Character 
 
There appeared to be general consensus that this policy was required but it should 
be amended. Attendees considered that work was needed to clarify the policy and 
referred to a number of points including distinctive places, character studies, quality 
of environment, vision for the district, conservation areas and SPD on heritage. 

Page 38



7 
 

 
WIN3 – Views and roofscapes 
 
There appeared to be general consensus on balance that this policy was required 
but it needed to be amended. The comments made suggest that more clarity within 
the policy would be better with regards to what are the important features and views 
that should be protected. Three of the comments considered that visioning is 
required for Winchester Town. 

 
DM15 – Local distinctiveness  
 
There was no clear consensus on this policy but comments were made that local 
distinctiveness needs to be defined. 
 
DM16 – site design criteria  
 
There appeared to be general consensus that this policy could be deleted or 
amended. However, comments were made that the policy is similar to other policies 
within the Local Plan.  
 
DM17 – Site development principles 
 
There appeared to be general consensus that this policy could either be deleted or 

amended. The comments made consider that the policy is similar to other policies 

within the Local Plan. 

DM33 – shopfronts  

There did not appear to be a consensus on whether this policy should be retained, 

deleted or amended. The comments made considered that the policies needs 

updating and rewriting. 

DM34 – signage  

There did not appear to be a consensus on whether this policy should be retained, 

deleted or amended. The comments made considered that the policies needs 

updating and rewriting. 

Feedback was provided from each group at the end of the exercise. The groups 

considered that the design guidance was vague and that there needed to be a 

stronger way of measuring good outcomes. One group considered that the policies 

can stifle good design. 3D information for Winchester and the Market Towns was 

suggested. Suggestions were made to have site specific policies and re order 

policies to stress importance. With regards to the VDSs it was considered that a 

template was required and that some of the documents are dated. It was also 

considered that the High Quality Places SPD needed updating. The full comments 

are shown in Appendix 7. 

 

 

Page 39



8 
 

Exercise 2 - What areas could the new policy cover? 

The second exercise asked the attendees what design policies are currently missing 

from the adopted Local Plan. An example of the table is show in Appendix 5.  

A number of policies and considerations were suggested. The most popular 

suggestions were a policy for renewables, a policy relating to how cars are planned 

for within new developments and a policy for health and wellbeing. All of the 

suggestions for new policies are listed below: 

- Design for renewables 

- Designing for health and wellbeing 

- Self and custom build 

- Incentives to push viability  

- Balance 

- Global warming statement  

- Landscape 

- Diversify delivery  

- Economic statement 

- Inclusivity statement 

- Physical sample of materials 

- Active travel – predominance of car 

- Prior consideration of development sites 

- Calculations of embodied energy of proposals 

- Renewables & sustainability 

- Community engagement 

- Delivery mechanisms to get policy requirements in applications 

- Circular economy 

- Total carbon output addressed 

- Flood and water mitigation 

- Development area 

- Infrastructure  

- Transport car free development in sustainable location 

The full comments made are detailed in Appendix 6. 

The feedback provided to the wider group suggested that policies need to focus on 

drainage, infrastructure, well-being, localism of development, car-free development, 

waste reduction and sustainability. The groups also discussed community 

engagement and the need for early opportunity for interested parties to become 

involved in the development process. However, one group considered that no more 

policies were needed. The full comments are shown in Appendix 7. 

Exercise 3 – Design policies for Winchester town, market towns and 

rural areas. 

The third exercise asked the attendees to think about Winchester town, the markets 

towns and rural areas and whether there were any specific design policies that 

should be included in the new Local Plan. 

Page 40



9 
 

The attendees referred to a number of different policy areas, however, a number of 

the participants referred to a wide range of matters which have been summarised 

below. 

The council should have separate policies for the individual towns and there is a 

need to refer to parish codes and neighbourhood policies. There was a further 

suggestion that policies should identify the character of each area and its 

distinctiveness. 

The need to avoid planning developments around cars was also identified with the 

need to focus being on use of public transport and incorporating green travel plans. 

The specific suggestions for new policies are listed below. 

- Market towns and villages – the role of VDSs and NP 

- Best practices - Up to date conservation area appraisals and areas outside 

CA's 

- CIL policy 

- Vision for Winchester 

- Specific policy for each town reflecting unique opportunity and constraints – 

character, economy, needs, constraints 

- Land use efficiency 

- Densification 

- Car dependency reduction 

- Infrastructure 

- Walking - green travel 

- Locally based understanding of character 

- Character, good design – what does it mean to different stakeholders? 

- Transport 

- Distinctiveness 

- Public realm 

- Use of materials 

- Neighbourhood policy/city plan 

- Parish Code ‘rural areas’ 

 

The full comments made are listed in Appendix 6. 

The feedback from the groups post exercise was that they considered that the 

conservation area appraisals needed updating. It was suggested that a masterplan 

for the city itself was required as there are massive opportunities in Winchester. It 

was considered that we should look at how well local places are used in terms of 

efficiency as there were areas that could be used better. It was considered that the 

public realm was piecemeal and that there needed to be a context analysis to 

understand the place. It was also considered that CIL needed to be used more 

strategically. The full comments are shown in Appendix 7. 

Exercise 4 -  SPDs, LADs, VDSs 

The fourth exercise asked the attendees to consider the future role of the High 

Quality Places SPD, LADs and VDSs in light of the government’s recent publication 

Page 41



10 
 

of a National Model Design Code. The table contained 4 questions included below 

for the groups of attendees. The full comments are shown in Appendix 6. 

 

Do we still need a High Quality Places SPD?  

Yes No 

IIII I 

 

4 tables considered that the High Quality Places SPD should be kept but changes 

should be made to the document. Participants on one of tables considered that it 

should not be kept as it is being superseded by government initiative to create local 

design codes. 

Participants were also asked to feedback on how, if kept, the document could be 

made better. 

“If it was kept in its current format as a SPD, are there any changes that need 

to be made to this document (i.e. things that the SPD needs to address that are 

not in the current document)?” 

The comments made considered that the SPD needs to be more succinct with fewer 

words and more graphics. The comments also considered that it shouldn’t repeat 

existing national guidance and that it should be updated to reflect latest policies at a 

national level. One table considered that the VDSs are not supported enough by 

people with design expertise. 

Is there a need for any other SPDs on design? 

None of the tables commented that there is a need for any other SPDs on design. 

Are the current LADs/VDSs working at the moment and how could they be 

improved? 

Participants considered that the current LADs/VDSs need to have a standard format. 

One table suggested they should be written as local design codes. The attendees 

considered that they needed to be up to date and given greater weight in decision 

making. 

The overall feedback from exercise 4 was that the SPDs needed to be updated and 

more specific and follow a standard format. It was suggested that if the document 

was digital it could be more easily revised and that it should contain more graphics 

and potentially be site specific. It was considered that we can achieve a minimum to 

avoid harm but we should aspire to go higher. In addition active transport should be 

updated and given more weight. The full comments are contained in Appendix 7. 

 

 

 

Page 42



11 
 

Conclusions 

The key findings of each exercise are detailed in the report. The following overall 
conclusions are summarised from workshop 1: 

 Good design is a process and should be consistent in terms of design tools 

(VDS/LADS formatting). 

 Good design is sustainable design and should address the climate emergency 

with measurable outcomes defined in policy. 

 Improve how development relates to the public realm and can improve it. 

 Current regime is producing mixed results so there is scope to do things 

better. 

 Avoid duplication in policies. 

 Avoid being overly prescriptive to allow creativity. 

 Design for inclusivity and well-being. 

 Define local character and what makes a place distinctive (policies with a local 

focus). Consider neighbourhood plans including Winchester and develop a 

vision. 

 Make more use of graphics and technology to be more succinct. 

 Focus on active transport and sustainability. 

 Avoid planning development around the car.  

 Align development and infrastructure better and use CIL strategically. 

 Make best use of land available for development and ensure the type of 

accommodation reflects need. 

 Keep SPDs including on High Quality Design but up-date them. 

 Improve how we define good design/measure outcomes. 

 Conservation Area Appraisals need to be updated. 

 Community engagement and early involvement is important in the design 

process. 

Next steps 
 

 Ensure findings of report feed into the review of how the council addresses design 
and place-making issues in planning to achieve better quality outcomes in terms of 
new development.  

 Ensure that the findings of the report feed into the development of new design 
policies and other tools in the Regulation 18 (draft) Local Plan for consultation later 
in 2022. 
 

The information in this report will form part of the evidence base for the new Local Plan. 
However, this does not mean all the suggestions and recommendations will ultimately 
be incorporated into the plan.  
 
The inclusion of a particular site or area in this report does not reflect the council’s 
opinion or likelihood of development taking place. Any information included in the Local 
Plan will be consulted on as part of Reg 18 plan. This would set a clear direction relating 
to areas where opportunities exist to accommodate change and deliver high-quality 
development and places. 

Page 43



12 
 

Appendix 1 – summary of the three workshops on Winchester City 
Council website 
 

Local plan events 

The council would like to thank all those people that attended the Local Plan design 
workshops.  We are really pleased with the number of people that attended the 
sessions and the valuable contributions that were made at each event. 

The workshops held which were facilitated by Design South East. 

Workshop 1 

The first workshop was held on 20th October at the Discovery Centre in Winchester. 

The  workshop focused on how well design issues are addressed currently by the 
existing design policies, Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and other 
documents including the Local Area Design Statements (LDASs), Shopfront and 
Advertising SPD and Village Design Statements (VDSs) and what opportunities exist 
to enhance how this important matter is dealt with in the context of the new local plan  

The attendees were asked to consider how well the existing Local Plan design 
policies were working in terms of delivering the right design outcomes. They were 
also asked to consider what design policies were missing and what policies should 
be included in the new Local Plan. The final exercise asked them to consider 
specifically the role of High Quality Places SPD/LADs and VDS in light of the 
Government’s recently published National Model Design Code. 

Workshop 2 

The second workshop was held on 5th November at the Mercure Hotel in 
Winchester. The workshop was split into an afternoon and evening session. 

The workshop focused on Winchester Town itself and was based on themes 
including transport, green/recreation/urban spaces, design of public spaces, 
opportunities for improvement of and access to facilities. 

This event was a mapped based session. Attendees were asked to identify on plans 
of the city, areas where there was opportunity for development and enhancement, to 
show how people moved around the city and whether connections could be 
improved. The final exercise focused on open space and public realm, asking 
participants whether there were opportunities for more open spaces and what 
improvements could be made to existing areas. 

Workshop 3 

The third and final workshop was held on 16th November at Marwell Hotel in Colden 
Common. This workshop was also split into an afternoon and evening session. 

Page 44



13 
 

The workshop focused on the rural villages and market towns. At this workshop an 
online poll was taken at the beginning and the results could be viewed live by the 
attendees at the workshop.  Attendees were asked to consider and identify well 
designed places within their villages or areas.  Photos were submitted by attendees 
to show well designed features of good developments at the workshop. The 
attendees were then asked to rate the quality of developments within their areas 
looking at what made them successful and not successful. The final exercise asked 
attendees to consider things they like or disliked in their areas and to consider the 
future of their place and how they would like it to be in 20 years’ time. 

Workshop results 

The results of the workshops will be collated and written up by Design South East 
and reported back to LPAG (Local Plan Action Group) in 2022 and be used as 
evidence base that will be used to inform the new Local Plan. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



14 
 

Appendix 2 – Existing Local Plan policies and policy documents 

Policy Page 
number 

Policy Wording 
 

LPP1 – 
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/3250/LPP1chap-7-10-appendices.pdf 
  

CP13 
 

94 Policy CP13 - High Quality Design  
 
New development will be expected to meet the highest 
standards of design. In order to achieve this all 
proposals for new development (excluding small 
domestic applications and changes of use) should 
demonstrate that:  

 an analysis of the constraints and opportunities 
of the site and its surroundings have informed 
the principles of design and how the detailed 
design responds positively to its neighbours 
and the local context; 

 the proposal makes a positive contribution to 
the local environment and creates an individual 
place with a distinctive character; 

 the public realm has been designed to ensure 
that it is attractive, safe, accessible and well 
connected to its surroundings, including walking 
and cycling routes to and within the 
development, to encourage their use; 

 the accompanying landscape framework has 
been developed to enhance both the natural 
and built environment and maximise the 
potential to improve local biodiversity; 

 measures to minimise carbon emissions and 
promote renewable energy and reduce impact 
on climate change form an integral part of the 
design solutions. 

CP20  105 Policy CP20 - Heritage and Landscape Character 
 
The Local Planning Authority will continue to conserve 
and enhance the historic environment through the 
preparation of Conservation Area Appraisals and 
Management Plans and/or other strategies, and will 
support new development which recognises, protects 
and enhances the district’s distinctive landscape and 
heritage assets and their settings. These may be 
designated or undesignated and include natural and 
man made assets associated with existing landscape 
and townscape character, conservation areas, 
scheduled ancient monuments, historic parks and 
gardens, listed buildings, historic battlefields and 

Page 46

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/3250/LPP1chap-7-10-appendices.pdf


15 
 

archaeology. Particular emphasis should be given to 
conserving:  

 recognised built form and designed or natural 
landscapes that include features and elements 
of natural beauty, cultural or historic 
importance; 

 local distinctiveness, especially in terms of 
characteristic materials, trees, built form and 
layout, tranquillity, sense of place and setting. 

LPP2 –  
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/16209/2766-local_plan_part2-
web.pdf  
 

WIN3 – Views 
& roofscapes 

31 Policy WIN3 - Views & Roofscape  
 
Development within and around Winchester Town 
which accords with the Development Plan will be 
permitted, provided:  

i. views that are integral to local character and 
distinctiveness are maintained, in particular 
views of treed skylines which connect 
Winchester with its setting;  

ii. important views and vistas to and from the key 
historic features shown on the Policies Map 
(and listed below) are protected; 

iii. roof designs are sympathetic to the character of 
the Town’s historic roofscape in terms of bulk, 
grain, form and materials and make a positive 
contribution to the roofscape;  

iv. any necessary plant, micro-energy generation 
equipment and other intrusive roof features are 
avoided or sensitively integrated within the roof-
profile. 

DM15 – Local 
distinctiveness 

146 Policy DM15 – Local Distinctiveness  
 
Developments should respect the qualities, features 
and characteristics that contribute to the 
distinctiveness of the local area. Proposals which 
accord with the Development Plan will be permitted 
where they conserve or enhance: 

i. i. the landscape and townscape framework, 
including the ‘key characteristics’ identified in 
local Character Assessments and adopted 
Design Statements;  

ii. open areas and green spaces that contribute to 
the special qualities of the townscape or the 
setting of buildings, including heritage assets; 

iii. recognised public views, features or skylines; 
iv. the special qualities of Conservation Areas and 

historic landscapes; 

Page 47

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/16209/2766-local_plan_part2-web.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/16209/2766-local_plan_part2-web.pdf


16 
 

v. trees, hedgerows, water features and corridors 
which contribute to local distinctiveness. 

Regard will be had to the cumulative effects of 
development on the character of an area. 

DM16 – site 
design criteria 

148 Policy DM16 – Site Design Criteria  
 
Development which accords with the Development 
Plan will be permitted provided it:  

i. responds positively to the character, 
appearance and variety of the local 
environment, within and surrounding the site, in 
terms of its design, scale and layout;  

ii. maintains permeability and access throughout 
the site and improves connections within the 
public realm;  

iii. designs any service areas, including parking 
provision, cycle storage and bins, as an integral 
part of the scheme, ensuring it does not 
dominate the site or the surrounding area; 

iv. provides boundary treatments that respond 
positively to the local context around the site 
and between different elements within the site 
of larger schemes;  

v. uses an appropriate ratio between hard and soft 
landscaping, having regard to the character of 
the area;  

vi. uses high quality materials that are attractive 
and durable and appropriate to the context and 
the proposed design;  

vii. utilises the principles of energy efficient design, 
by means of layout, orientation, passive solar 
gain, and the design of buildings and spaces, 
as far as is compatible with the character of the 
area. 

DM17 – Site 
development 
principles 

150 Policy DM17 – Site Development Principles  
 
New development, alterations and changes of use 
should be satisfactory in terms of their impact, both on 
and off site. Development which accords with the 
Development Plan will be permitted where it:  

i. provides a safe and secure environment, 
accessible by all;  

ii. does not have unacceptable effects on 
ecosystems services, key townscape or 
landscape characteristics, or on heritage 
assets; 

iii. includes adequate provision for surface water 
drainage and sewage disposal;  

iv. makes adequate provision for refuse and 
recycling;  

Page 48



17 
 

v. facilitates and does not constrain the future 
development of adjacent sites, where 
appropriate;  

vi. provides sufficient amenity and recreational 
space for users;  

vii. does not have an unacceptable adverse impact 
on adjoining land, uses or property by reason of 
overlooking, overshadowing or by being 
overbearing;  

viii. does not cause unacceptable levels of pollution 
to neighbours by means of noise, smell, dust or 
other pollution;  

ix. provides only for lighting that is not visually 
intrusive on the surrounding area. High speed 
broadband connection, or provision for its future 
connection, will be sought in association with all 
new residential and business developments. 

DM33 - 
shopfronts 

175 Policy DM33 – Shopfronts  
 
Proposals that alter or replace existing shopfronts 
which currently contribute to the character of the 
building or area, will only be permitted if they continue 
to preserve or enhance the character of the area and 
are designed to relate closely to the overall character 
of the building in terms of scale and style.  
 
Blinds and canopies will be permitted providing the 
size, colours, design and materials are appropriate to 
the character of the building.  
 
Shutters requiring planning permission will only be 
permitted where they are designed as an integral part 
of the shopfront and allow visual permeability into the 
shop when in use. Solid external shutters which 
obscure the shopfront will not be permitted.  
 
Permanently blanked out shopfronts, or other designs 
which discourage active frontages, will not normally be 
permitted. Advertisement on the surrounds of 
automated cash machines and visual display screens 
will not be permitted.  
 
New shopfronts in Conservation Areas should 
normally incorporate traditional design elements and 
materials. 

DM34 - 
signage 

176 Policy DM34 – Signage  
 
In order to maintain commercial and visual 
attractiveness, consent will be granted for 
advertisements and signs which respect local 

Page 49



18 
 

character and conform to the guidance below and the 
City Council’s ‘Design Guidance for the control of 
Shopfronts and Signs’.  
 
Internally illuminated signs will not be permitted within 
Conservation Areas.  
 
Where consent is required, hanging or projecting signs 
will only be permitted where they do not contribute to 
visual clutter or detract from architectural features on 
the building. These will be expected to be located at 
fascia level, unless replacing existing historic signs.  
 
Advanced Warning Signs (A-Boards and free standing 
boards) will be permitted only where they conform to 
the City Councils’ Design Guidance for the control of 
Shopfronts and Signs and are directional in their 
message. General advertising of particular goods for 
sale will not be permitted.  
 
Where cafes and restaurants are permitted to locate 
tables and chairs on the highway, advertisements will 
not normally be permitted on banners or hoardings 
surrounding them.  
 
In Winchester City Centre, Advanced Warning Signs 
will not be permitted for premises located on the High 
Street, Broadway, Upper High Street, St Georges 
Street and Jewry Street.  
 
Street furniture should be located so as to avoid 
obstruction to all users. 

 

Website and policy document links 

Local Plan Part 1: Joint Core Strategy 
Adopted 2013 

LPP1 webpage link 
LPP1: chapters 7-10 link 
 

Local Plan part 2 
 

LPP2 webpage link 
LPP2 document link 

High Quality Places SPD   webpage link 
SPD document link 

Village and neighbourhood design 
statements 

Webpage link  

Design guidance for the control of 
shopfronts and signs – technical sheet 

Document link  

Design guidance for the control of 
shopfronts and signs  

Document link  

SPD and VDS webpage Webpage link  

Page 50

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/local-plan-part-1-joint-core-strategy-adopted-march-2013-local-plan-review-2006/local-plan-part-1-joint-core-strategy-adopted-2013
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/3250/LPP1chap-7-10-appendices.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/local-plan-part-2-development-management-allocations/lpp2-adoption
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/16209/2766-local_plan_part2-web.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/high-quality-places-spd-adopted
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/assets/attach/3649/High-Quality-Places-SPD-Final-and-on-web-27.7.15.pdf
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/village-and-neighbourhood-design-statements
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/design-guidance-for-the-control-of-shopfronts-amp-signs-technical-sheet
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds/design-guidance-for-the-control-of-shopfronts-amp-signs
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2011-2036-adopted/supplementary-planning-documents-spds


19 
 

Appendix 3 – Powerpoint presentation 

 

 

Page 51



20 
 

 

 

 

Page 52



21 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



23 
 

Appendix 4 – workshop running order 

LP Design workshop  

20th October 2021 

1:30pm  Arrive at venue and ensure that everything is set up and working 

2:00pm  Welcome from Cllr Gordon-Smith, Cabinet Member for the Built Environment – 

hand over to Adrian  

2:05pm Adrian Fox, Strategic Planning Manager – Fire exits, toilets, COVID-19, and explain 

how this workshop fits into the LP process  and what outputs we are seeking – I  

hand over to Andy  

2:15pm  Andy von Bradsky  - keynote speaker – who would hand over to Helen 

2:30pm  Helen Goodwin, Design South East – to explain her role as the facilitator of this 

workshop and how we will run the event  

2:35pm  Ice breaker – how you as individuals rate the way that WCC currently addresses 

design issues in the current LP – use sticky dots 

2:40pm  Each Group to hold up their rating chart 

2:50pm 1st workshop – what works/does not work 

3:15pm  Each Group to Report back  

3:30pm  2nd workshop – what is missing?  

3:45pm  Each Group to report back  

4:00pm  3rd workshop – any specific design policies  

4:15pm Each Group to report back 

4:30pm 4th workshop – SPDs  

4:45pm  Each Group to report back 

5pm Helen/Adrian - Closing remarks, next steps, dates of the other LP Design workshops 

and thank you for attending etc  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



24 
 

Appendix 5 – exercise tables 

The first exercise at the workshop involves completing a table that includes a list of all of the existing 

policies and participants will be asked to populate this table as follows: 

Policy Keep Delete  Amend  Commentary (effectiveness of the policy/things that 
are missing from the policy) 

     

     

     

     

  

The second exercise involves completing a table that identifies what design policies are currently 

missing from the adopted Local Plan: 

Heading (title of policy) What areas could the new policy cover?  

  

  
   

The third exercise involves thinking about Winchester Town, market towns and the rural areas in 

relation to whether there any specific design policies that should be included in the new Local Plan?  

Heading (title of policy) What areas could the new policy cover? 

  

  

   

The final exercise is to consider the future role of the High Quality Places SPD/LADs and VDSs in light 

of the Government’s recent publication consultation of a National Model Design Code: 

Key questions to answer under this topic are: 

Question: Yes/No Comments 

Do we still need a High Quality 
Places SPD?  
 

  

If it was kept in its current 
format as a SPD, are there any 
changes that need to be made 
to this document (i.e. things 
that the SPD needs to address 
that are not in the current 
document)? 
 

  

Is there a need for any other 
SPDs on design? 
 

  

Are the current LADs/VDSs 
working at the moment and 
how could they be improved?   

  

 

Page 56



25 
 

Appendix 6  - Exercise 1 – 4  full comments 

Exercise 1 

Policy CP13 – High quality design 

 Policy works well. 

 Ref to need to be clear on assessment and design process in a DAS. 

 Do no harm 40% more than process 

 Interpret/design assess 

 Minimise carbon, reduce impact on climate change.  

 Flexible to not constrain quality of development 

 Reorder/prioritise - public realm up, safe and well connected - availability of 
infrastructure key. (agricultural land - no infrastructure, car dependent, not 
joined up) 

 Sets tone - not too prescriptive 

 evidence by ?? - not to stifle creativity - village design statement – using 

 community involvement - contributes to codes - expectations  

 too vague - not measureable 

 distinctive character - seems at odds with DM16 

 Design coding - Local HGQP - Local - rural? Urban? 
Clarity, certainty, Interpretation 

 City model? 
- positive contribution? 
- pedestrian/cycling integrated 
- scoring? Maintenance 
- zero carbon? 
- biodiversity? 
- No significant adverse net gains arising 

 Importance of O's and C's informs site specific design, resulting in more 
objective assessment 

 Enable invocation and higher standards of design, as defined by…. 

 Design codes - developer pays 
 
CP20 – Heritage and Landscape Character 
 

 Split and clarify 

 Distinctive places 
- supporting assessments and statements 
- Process? Split landscape and built form 

 Do we need CP policies - refer to other doc but must exist! 

 Must not make development unviable 

 more detailed character studies 

 CP" is biggest concern - many of the homes 2. 3 need houses "size of 
houses" - 'Need' rather than profit 

 quality of environment key  

 CP20 – woolly 

 Replacement 

 Backed vision for district  

Page 57



26 
 

 Convoluted 

 Extensions/ rewrite conservation area 

 SPD on heritage 
 

WIN3 – Views and roofscapes 
 

 Views integral to local character? 

 What are the important features 

 needs clarity  

 Devil in the detail! 

 Balance wrong  
- PV/?? - favourable renewable - where appropriate. 

 Biodiversity 
- other aspects impact 

 More strong visioning for Winchester Town 

 WIN3 – workaround 

 unspecific - links to Winchester Town visioning  

 Clarity/ tied in with view contextual analysis 

 Visioning - WT - high pressure development, key settlement 

 Certainty - openness of wording. 4 policies interpretation condense 

 Contextual analysis - high volume areas - collaboration. 

 Models 

 Convoluted 

 This is Winch specific where are the other WIN policies? Want spatial whole 
plan for Winch. 

 
DM15 – Local distinctiveness  
 

 Proposal needs to demonstrate and define identity/distinctiveness. 

 Devil in the detail! 

 Convoluted 

 Local distinctiveness not defined therefore interpreted as we need more of the 
same development therefore get anywhere development 

 
DM16 – site design criteria  
 

 Move to CP13 

 Same as DM17 

 demonstrably set out' - onus on applicant 

 reuse buildings 

 primacy of pedestrian/cycle 

 Site design criteria not defined and no real requirement for developers to 
design. 

 
 
DM17 – Site development principles 
 

 Move to CP13 

Page 58



27 
 

 Same as DM16 

 Needs work 
- regularly brings up - challenges for local authority  

 A lot of the defending adverse impact  

 drainage/adequate 

 more robust evidence based requested 

 Cumulative impacts need to be wider framework planning need to be done  
 
DM33 – shopfronts  

 Update, Article 4 

 Rewrite 

 SPD needs to be produced/updated 
 

DM34 – signage  

 Update, Article 4 

 Rewrite 

 SPD needs to be produced/updated 
 

Exercise 2 – full comments 

Heading (title of 
policy) 
 

What areas could the new policy cover? 
 

Design for 
renewables  

To ensure that renewable energy systems do not impact 
upon quality of design 

Designing for 
health and 
wellbeing 

  

Self and custom 
build 

  

Incentives to push 
up viability 
(encourage better -
---Bad protect 
against) 

Get planning/quickly 
Negotiation on design not contributions 

Balance Quality across many issues but give and take 

Global warming 
statement 

Overheating/run-off 
transport 
future proofing 
carbon minus 

Landscape Trees and biodiversity 

Page 59



28 
 

Diversify delivery Unit mix 
Type of developer 

Economic 
statement 

How does the scheme contribute positively  

Inclusivity 
statement 

Who benefits and how 

Other comments Health and welling statement 
outside the redline statement 

 (Provide material samples of what is required. Physical 
built samples) 
Policy - detail is on there but not acted upon. 
- active travel 
- predominance of the car stifles creation of quality space 
and breeds reliance on the vehicle 

 Prior consideration of any development site of 
infrastructure demands, including transport and 
connectivity 

 Developer to be required to submit calculations of 
embodied energy of their proposals. Prejudice against 
timber as a building material needs to be challenged. It is 
well accepted in Europe as carbon-neutral material if 
locally sourced.  
Embodied and energy in use (operational energy) critical to 
reading carbon neutrality and beyond. 

 No more design policies, to ensure policies are not 
prescriptive. We want to allow for flexibility for high quality 
design approaches based on site specific circumstances. 

Renewables 
sustainability 

 

Community 
engagement 

 

Delivery 
mechanisms to 
actually get policy 
requirements in 
applications 

 

Circular economy Onus on developer to demonstrate 
- waste reduction 
waste reuse 
- building reuse - retained unless loss clearly justified 

Total carbon 
output addressed 

Construction 
use 
end of life 

General comment Emphasis on design review as a tool 

Page 60



29 
 

Flood and water 
mitigation 

Knock on effect of planned development 
where does the water go. Not just on your site but into the 
community 
It has to finish up somewhere. "Surrey County Council 
Article 16 - have a flood policy" 

Development area/ 
square metre or 
unit threshold 

Requires urban designer framework and principle 
produced with community 

Infrastructure Does development cater for or fit within current 
infrastructure and demand, if not new infrastructure must 
be designed and included - schools, highways, amenities, 
doctors etc 

Transport car free 
development in 
sustainable 
locations 

Carbon 
car free development 
how will people move? Environmental impact 

 

 

Exercise 3 – full comments 

 

Heading (title of 
policy) 

What areas could the new policy cover? 

Market towns and 
villages 

Role of VDS and NP 

Best practices Up to date conservation area appraisals and areas outside 
CA's 

  Revise CIL Policy 

  Vision for Winchester 
- recognising economic context and need for all residents 

  Very specific local policy to respond to each towns unique 
opportunities and constraints 
Character i.e. protect and enhance 
Economy i.e. pay fair 
Needs i.e. employment 
Constraints i.e. archaeology 
Not just control but also attract development you need i.e. 
Silverhill 
Why have they failed? 

Page 61



30 
 

Land use efficiency 
Densification 
Car dependency 
reduction 

Car parks - 1 to 1 switch P+R 
Regeneration 
Pedestrianisation  

Infrastructure Reduce car parking allocation/permits 
Strategic CIL contributions 

Walking - green 
travel 

There exists a walking strategy document for Winchester 
City which has been approved by WCC but is not 
integrated or referenced in WCC planning documents. 

Locally based 
understanding 
character ETC 

What is unique about places but what is shared or 
connects them. 

What does 
character, good 
design mean to 
different 
stakeholders 

  

Transport Policy for parking, EV charging, park and ride, 
permeability, movement, bringing people into the centre, 
pedestrians, cycling, connectivity. 

Distinctiveness - not 
all that is distinctive 
is good 

Clearer on what is good and should act on cues 
- street pattern in historic cores 

Public realm New - scale/layout designed for 

Use of materials Avoiding being generic, while keeping the feel and look of 
the community 

Neighbourhood 
policy/city plan 
"Winchester City" 

Movement, urban design, what is the goal? 

Parish Code "Rural 
areas" 

Set of wants, needs and compromises, principles to give 
each Parish its individual requirements to meet a code. 
Make it easier to customise to communities 

 

Exercise 4 – full comments 

Question 1 - Do we still need  High Quality Places SPD? 

- Have many doc but need a LP to knit all together so can see overarching 
knowledge can then id gaps - local collaboration and analysis – template 

- SPD at high level good design and local distinctiveness 

Page 62



31 
 

- No - to be superseded by government initiative design codes comprehensive 
- Not suitable for planning system as is. 
- If you promote and are specific. 
- Mind set of fear of delivering what we’ve got  
- Made more precise - link to design codes. 

 

Question 2 - If it was kept in its current format as a SPD, are there any changes that 

need to be made to this document (i.e. things that the SPD needs to address that are 

not in the current document)? 

- Concise 
- Graphical 
- Few words 
- Local involvement 
- Succinct: 

o Bullet points 
- Viability problem for ‘affordable’ homes 
- Concise 
- Graphical 
- Few words 
- Local involvement 
- Succinct: 

o Bullet points 
- Viability problem for ‘affordable’ homes 
- Shorter… More Winchester…. 
- What makes it specific 
- SPD - simple concept and key policy 
- See HD guides etc. but why rewrite overarching good design link to national 

tools and make spatial to relevant areas and challenges 
- All this knowledge needs to link to digital use and interaction in community  
- 36 con area appraisals, keeping track of it all but being agile 
- template - design code 
- comm engagement 
- cross boundary working  
- LP - knits - ID gaps 
- Update to reflect latest policies at national level 

o Residential amenity 
o Climate emergency 
o Refocus on foot/cycle 

- VD statements not supported enough by design expertise so that real 
opportunities  in settlements are realised. 
 

Question 3 - Is there a need for any other SPDs on design? 

Delete 

Question 4 - Are the current LADs/VDSs working at the moment and how could they 

be improved? 

- Up to date: references 

Page 63



32 
 

- Written as design codes 

- Standard format 

- Given greater weight and more counterspace 

- Needs updating 

- Greater weight given in decisions 

- Template to provide consistency 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



33 
 

Appendix 7 – Feedback full comments 

Whiteboard notes from workshop 1 

Icebreaker 

- How do we define good design? Outcomes, design social inclusion etc.. 

- Current design policies are producing some mixed results. Interpretation, 

clarity, non specific. 

- CC – catch up 

- Active transport. More emphasis 

- Work to some degree 

- Good design – not down to chance, needs a process 

- Very big district so have to have evidence everywhere 

- Transport dominates design  

- Resources- too little, more training 

- Schemes can get diluted  

- Mismatch of development & infrastructure 

Exercise 1  

- Design guidance is rather vague 

Positive contribution 

Need to integrate elements of design 

- Stronger  ways of measuring good outcomes 

- Need 3d info – Winchester and market towns - prioritisation 

- Duplication of policy 

- CP policies quite good but stopping stuff rather than good design  

- Site specific policy  

- Move up policies to CP 

- Viability vs quality – design policy to resolve  it 

- CC/ sustainability, active transport – re-order  policy and stress importance 

- Resources-  VDS, more clarity  

- Town is un-parished -  Engagement 

- VDS – some dated, need a template 

- Process for sound design  

- Stifles creativity and invention  – need to be specific 

- City wide design framework 

- SPD – update 

- Interface with SDNP 

Exercise 2  

- Health and wellbeing – age profile – self and custom build 
- No more policy – be positive in public terms 

Common language – code 
Flexibility needed 

- Early engagement needed  
Start with a blank paper not a proposal. Local need 

- Drainage – SW. Surely needs a  Climate Change policy  

Page 65



34 
 

- Infrastructure. Meet need 
- Localism of development and car free developments 
- Waste reduction – global statement, inclusivity, diversity buildings 

Retention rather than removing buildings 
- Total carbon output for development 
- Sustainability policy, future proof it, renewables built in 
- Policy on community engagement 

 
Exercise 3 - Winchester and market towns  

- Conservation area appraisals – up to date 
o Define availability outside CAs – graduated  approach 

- Define what Winchester is “Protect” no – promote development  
o Winchester has massive opportunities. Masterplan comm. led. Link to  

Movement Strategy 
- Materials 
- Vision for a place but look forwards not back  
- Some of the built development is old but high density 

o Link back into those areas – centre 
- Local use efficiency – densification 

o E.g. reuse car parks 
o Stimulate economic activity 

- Strategic use of CIL – policy 
- Context analysis i.e. roofscape. Understanding the place – design process 

again 
- Public realm – piecemeal  

 
Exercise 4 – LADs/VDS 

- SPD – needs to be updated – align to guidance & more specific 
- Considerable amount of info but can it be brought together – digital – easy to 

update. Doc brings it together 
- Experience of other Councils 
- CE/ Active transport – update and give more weight. Template 
- Achieve a minimum to avoid harm but aspire to go higher. Lead and 

resources 
- Retain but concise, graphic and involve local comms. Development can 

provide benefits up to date expertise needed. Standard format. Use as a tool 
- Focus on site specific policy. SPD shorter but more graphics 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



35 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Winchester Design Workshops
Report of Workshop 2: Winchester Town

Mercure Hotel, Winchester
5th November 2021

January 2022

P
age 69



P
age 70



3

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Contents

1  Introduction and Context ��������������������������������������5

1.1 Winchester Local Plan and the National Design 
Agenda .............................................................................. 5

1.2 Stakeholder Workshops ............................................. 6

2  Workshop Summary �������������������������������������������������7

2.1 Engagement Process ................................................. 7

2.2 Key Findings ............................................................. 8

2.3 Key Recommendations ............................................. 8

3  Areas of Opportunity ����������������������������������������������9

3.1 Introduction .............................................................. 9

3.2 The Broadway ..........................................................10

3.3 North Walls ..............................................................12

3.4 Westgate ..................................................................14

3.5 Station .....................................................................16

3.6 Bar End ....................................................................17

4  Previously Developed Land ������������������������������� 18

4.1 Introduction .............................................................18

4.2 City-Wide   ...............................................................19

4.3 City Centre .............................................................. 20

5 Movement ��������������������������������������������������������������������21

5.1 Issues ......................................................................21

5.2 Opportunities  ........................................................ 22

6  Open Space and Public Realm������������������������24

6.1 Issues  .................................................................... 24

6.2 Opportunities  ........................................................ 24

7 Appendices ����������������������������������������������������������������26

7.1 Workshop Details .................................................... 26

7.2 Communications ..................................................... 27

7.3 Workshop Agenda ................................................... 29

7.4 Workshop Explainer Sheet .......................................31

7.5 Spreadsheet of Stakeholder Comments ................... 32

P
age 71



4

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Some examples of maps marked up by stakeholders at the workshop

P
age 72



5

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

1�1 Winchester Local Plan and the 
National Design Agenda

The way people live their lives, travel, work and 
enjoy their spare time are all influenced by the 
quality of the environment, and the Local Plan 
shapes this for the future as well as helping to 
tackle the climate emergency. The early stage in 
the development of Winchester’s new Local Plan is 
important to support a high quality of life through 
high quality placemaking, both for residents and 
for visitors to Winchester and the wider district. 

Winchester City Council (WCC) has a number 
of policies in the adopted Local Plan that seek 
to secure High Standards of design. These 
are supported by a ‘High Quality Places’ 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), Village 
Design Statements (VDS) and Local Area Design 
Statements (LADS) which provide guidance on how 
to apply policies in Winchester district and which 
inform the assessment of planning applications.  

The Government has strengthened the need 
to create high quality buildings and places 
as fundamental to planning and development 
processes. This objective is supported by the 
revised National Planning Policy Framework 

1 Introduction and Context

(NPPF), by the recent publication of the National 
Design Guide (NDG) and the piloting of the 
National Model Design Code (NMDC) toolkit.  

In line with the direction of travel at national level, 
Winchester City Council’s aspiration is for much 
greater emphasis on design driven policies and 
spatial planning in the revised Local Plan in order 
to deliver the highest quality design outcomes.  

Figure 1.1: Stakeholders at the Winchester City  
workshop

Achieving Good Design is a Process

The National Planning Policy Framework defines 
what is expected for well-designed places and 
explains how local planning policies and decisions 
should support this. Well-designed places and 
buildings come about when a rigorous design 
process evolves into a design proposal. This starts 
with an analysis of the design brief and site context 
which influence the layout, form, appearance 
and details of the proposed development. 
Underpinning this must be a set of local design 
policies which provide clear and unambiguous 
guidance to inform the design process and to 
appraise the outcome.

P
age 73



6

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Workshop 2 (Winchester Town), the topic of 
this report, concentrated on more spatial matters 
and was an open invitation for local communities 
from the town to identify areas of brownfield/
under used/disused space in Winchester where 
there might potentially be the opportunity for 
development. It was a chance for local people to 
have their say on where there may be opportunities 
to enhance the built and natural environment and, 
through theme-based discussions, to consider 
where and what those changes might be within 
Winchester Town.  

Workshop 3 (Market Towns and Rural Villages) 
gave an open invitation to communities from the 
surrounding market towns and rural villages to 
have their say and to bring their local knowledge 
to bear on how there could be positive change 
through development to improve outcomes for 
existing as well as new residents. The context for 
discussions was the extent to which existing Village 
Design Statements are delivering high-quality 
developments and whether any changes to policy 
may be required. 

1�2 Stakeholder Workshops

Winchester City Council is focusing on the 
changes that are required to the Local Plan to 
ensure delivery of high quality places. As such, 
the decision was taken to carry out a series of 
workshops for local stakeholders to inform the 
review of the Local Plan. The intention is to 
consider Winchester more holistically in terms 
of how the new Local Plan deals with design 
issues, as well as to consider the town and the 
wider district from a more spatial perspective. 
Design South East was commissioned to facilitate 
these workshops, carrying out three separate but 
complementary events to enable local people to 
have their say.  

Workshop 1 (Policy) focused on Local Plan design 
policy, bringing together an invited audience of 
representatives from both the public and private 
sectors to discuss and agree the effectiveness of 
the current Local Plan design policies and other 
documents, to identify any gaps and consider 
how these could potentially be filled through new 
policies or revisions to existing policies. The final 
exercise asked attendees to consider the role of 
High Quality Places SPD/LADs and VDS in light 
of the Government’s recent consultation on a 
National Model Design Code. Figure 1.2: Stakeholders engaged in mapping activity at 

the Winchester Town workshop

Next Steps

The information in this report will form part of the 
evidence base for the new Local Plan. However, 
this does not mean all the suggestions and 
recommendations will ultimately be incorporated 
into the plan. The inclusion of a particular site or 
area in this report does not reflect the Council’s 
opinion or likelihood of development taking place. 

Any information included in the Local Plan will 
be consulted on as part of Reg 18 plan. This 
would set a clear direction relating to areas where 
opportunities exist to accommodate change and 
deliver high-quality development and places.  

P
age 74



7

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

2 Workshop Summary

2�1 Engagement Process

The Winchester Town Workshop (workshop 2) was 
held on 5th November 2021 at the Mercure Hotel 
in Winchester and was split into an afternoon and 
evening session, with 40 attendees in total. These 
sessions focused on areas within the Winchester 
Town settlement boundary, and discussions were 
theme-based. 

Mapping exercises were used to capture local 
knowledge, lived experience and everyday 
understanding. Attendees were asked to identify 
those areas which had opportunity for development 
and enhancement. Discussions then focused on 
how people move around the city and whether 
these connections could be improved, and the final 
exercise focused on open space and public realm, 
asking attendees whether there were opportunities 
for more open spaces and what improvements 
could be made to existing areas of open space.

Each session provided an opportunity for small 
group discussion and spatial mapping exercises, 
followed by feedback to share thoughts and ideas.  
The topic-focused discussions were framed by the 
following questions: 

Previously Developed Land: 

• Where are opportunities for development?  

• Where are empty sites in need of 
development or activity?   

• Where are there opportunities for 
enhancement?  

• Where are there existing sites or buildings 
that could work better or need investment? 

Movement: 

• How do you move around Winchester?   

• What are the barriers?  

• What could improve?  

• What would encourage or enable you to walk 
or cycle more? 

Open Space and Public Realm: 

• Does Winchester have enough good quality 
open spaces? What could improve?   

• What do you want to see or do more of and 
where?  

• Which areas lack natural features, such as 
trees, water, parks?  

• Where could the public realm be improved, 
for example space for walking, gathering, 
quality of materials, attractiveness?

The findings of the workshop discussions are 
summarised in Chapters 4, 5 and 6 which identify 
high-level issues and opportunities.  Where the 
mappings revealed commonalities, these have 
been mapped and are identified as five broad 
Areas of Opportunity with the potential for 
transformation, as set out in Chapter 3. 

P
age 75



8

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

2�3 Key Recommendations2�2 Key Findings

• Land within the town centre should be used 
efficiently for mixed use and residential 
developments, making better use of car 
parks, vacant, underused and inefficient sites. 

• Capitalise on Winchester’s existing open 
green spaces, including the South Downs, by 
improving access and facilities.  

• Bring more natural elements into the town 
centre and create new public spaces to 
facilitate outdoor activities like café seating.

• Review the sites that were put forward at the 
workshop to assess whether they might be 
suitable for inclusion in the Local Plan.

• Take a design-led approach to site allocations 
by setting out spatially what developments are 
expected to achieve. 

• Incorporate the actions and recommendations 
from the Vision for Winchester into the Local 
Plan.  

• Strengthen and set out a clear design vision 
and expectations that have come out of these 
Local Plan Design workshops into the Local 
Plan. 

• Identify ‘Areas of Opportunity’ and a series 
of key bullet points about how these areas 
could be improved in the Local Plan which 
will enable them to be used to support any 
funding bids. 

• Ensure that the findings from this report feed 
into the Winchester Movement Strategy and 
the development of policies in the Local Plan. 

• 5 areas have been identified as Areas of 
Opportunity, where there is potential to 
positively transform the built environment 
through redevelopment, improved 
connections and public realm/open space 
projects. These areas are: 

• The Broadway 
• Westgate 
• Station 
• North Walls 
• Bar End 

• Winchester’s movement network should 
be refocused away from private vehicles to 
facilitating safe and pleasant walking and 
cycling journeys.  

• Vehicles should be restricted from entering 
the town centre where possible, while still 
allowing for access for those that require 
a car for mobility (such as the elderly and 
disabled). This will improve the environment 
and free up space for walking and cycling. 

P
age 76



9

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

3 Areas of Opportunity

3�1 Introduction

Areas of Opportunity are those areas of the city 
that hold the most potential for transformation, 
including opportunities for development, 
connectivity improvements and new open space/
public realm projects. Based on the findings of the 
workshops, five Areas of Opportunity have been 
identified (shown in Figure 3.1): 

• Broadway 

• Westgate 

• Station Area 

• Bar End 

• North Walls 

The Areas of Opportunity do not have distinct or 
exact boundaries. They are identified as general 
areas as some of the potential interventions 
are part of wider projects (particularly around 
movement and connectivity). 

Each area is discussed in more detail on the 
following pages. 

Figure 3.1: Areas of Opportunity Locations

Station Area

North Walls

The BroadwayWestgate

Bar End

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 77



10

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

3�2 The Broadway

The main opportunities in the Broadway Area of 
Opportunity (shown in Figure 3.5 on page 11) 
are: 

• Redevelopment of the Brooks shopping centre 
(Figure 3.4) and surrounding car parks. 

• Move the bus station to the rail station area 
and develop the site with city centre uses. 

• Improve the design of The Broadway (Figure 
3.2) for pedestrians and cyclists. 

• Improve the design of the roundabout 
junction by the King Alfred Statue to 
provide a safer environment for cyclists and 
pedestrians. 

• Improve the design of the junction of Bridge 
Street and Chesil street to create a safer 
environment for pedestrians and cyclists. 

• Create a new public open space at the King 
Alfred statue. 

• Improve the public realm of High Street 
(Figure 3.3) and Middle Brook Street, 
including planting street trees. 

• Create more walking connections from High 
Street to the Cathedral yard. 

• Daylight the culverted tributary of the River 
Itchen at Busket Lane and create a new public 
space connecting The Broadway to Friarsgate. 

• Improve the existing open space along the 
river Itchen to encourage walking and cycling 
and connect The Broadway northwards to 
Winnall Moors and southwards.

Figure 3.2: The Broadway

Figure 3.3: High Street

Figure 3.4: The Brooks Shopping Centre

P
age 78



11

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Figure 3.5: The Broadway Opportunity Area

The Broadway

Cathedral

R
iver Itchen

Pa
rk
 A
ve
nu
e

M
id

dl
e 

Br
oo

k 
St

re
etThe Brooks 

Shopping 
Centre

King Alfred 
Stature

Bus 
Station

High Street

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 79



12

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

3�3 North Walls

The main opportunities in the North Walls Area of 
Opportunity (shown in Figure 3.9 on page 13) 
are: 

• Redevelop the former River Park Leisure 
Centre buildings (Figure 3.6) and investigate 
opportunities around the Winchester School 
of Art sites to create a more positive interface 
with the area and increase activity.  

• Improve the quality of the walking connection 
between High Street and North Walls via 
Middle Brook Street and Park Avenue, 
including tree planting. 

• Improve the quality and offer of North Walls 
Recreational Ground (Figure 3.8). 

• Improve walking connections east-west 
across the River Itchen (Figure 3.7). 

• Redevelop St Martin’s Trade Park and open 
up walking connections between this site and 
Winnall Moor across the river. 

• St Martin’s Trade Park is a potential location 
for a Park and Ride if walking and cycling 
connections along Wales Street to the River 
Itchen and city centre are improved. 

• Improve the design of the junction of Union 
Street with North Walls to create a safer 
environment for pedestrians and cyclists.

Figure 3.6: former River Park Leisure Centre and 
skate park

Figure 3.7: River Itchen

Figure 3.8: North Walls Recreation Ground

P
age 80



13

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Figure 3.9: North Walls Opportunity Area

Former River 
Park Leisure 

Centre

Winchester 
School of ArtNorth Walls

North Walls 
Recreation Ground

Winnall Moors

Riv
er 
Itc
he
nPa

rk
 A
ve
nu
e

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 81



14

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

3�4 Westgate

The main opportunities in the Westgate Area of 
Opportunity (shown in Figure 3.13 on page 15) 
are: 

• Improve the quality and attractiveness of the 
open spaces outside of the Great Hall and 
Crown Court (Figure 3.12) by introducing 
natural features such as trees and planting.  

• Create a new public open space at the 
Westgate.  

• Improve the public realm and facilities for 
pedestrians at High Street. 

• Improve the design of the junction of Romsey 
Road, High Street and Newburgh Street 
(Figure 3.11) to create a safer environment for 
pedestrians and cyclists. 

• Improve the design of the junction of Romsey 
Road, Clifton Road and Clifton Terrace to 
create a safer environment for pedestrians 
and cyclists. 

• Improve the walking connection from the rail 
station to Westgate via Newburgh Street. 

Figure 3.10: View of Westgate from High Street Figure 3.12: Public realm around the Great Hall

Figure 3.11: Junction of Romsey Road at Westgate

• Create a new public space at the junction of 
Jewry Street and High Street.

P
age 82



15

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Figure 3.13: Westgate Opportunity Area

Great 
Hall Crown 

Court

Westgate

High Street
Roms

ey Ro
ad

Hampshire 
County 
Council

N
ew

burgh Street

Je
w
ry
 S
tr
ee
t

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 83



16

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

3�5 Station

The main opportunities in the Station Area of 
Opportunity (shown in Figure 3.15) are: 

• Redevelop and make better use of land 
around the station including retail sites and 
car parks along Andover Road and Gladstone 
car park.  

• Move the bus station from Broadway and 
co-locate with the rail station to create a 
transport interchange. 

• Improve the arrival experience at Winchester 
Station by creating a new public open space 
outside the main entrance on Station Hill. 

• Improve walking connections and wayfinding 
from the station to the city centre via Station 
Road/Newburgh Way and Station Hill/City 
Road/Jewry Street. 

• Improve the design of the junction of Station 
Hill and Sussex Street to create a safer 
environment for pedestrians and cyclists. 

• Improve the design of the junction of City 
Road, Jewry Street and Hyde Street to create 
a safer environment for pedestrians and 
cyclists.

Figure 3.14: Empty offices on Andover 
Road

Figure 3.15: Station Opportunity Area

Winchester 
Station

City Road

Station Hill

A
ndover Road

Jew
ry Street

St
ati
on
 R
oa

d

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 84



17

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

3�6 Bar End

The main opportunities in the Bar End Area of 
Opportunity (shown in Figure 3.17) are: 

• Redevelop the industrial sites along Bar End 
Road (Figure 3.16) as mixed use development. 

• Improve facilities for pedestrians and cyclists 
on Bar End Road to connect the existing Park 
and Ride with the city centre. 

• Improve the walking connection along the 
River Itchen to connect the area towards the 
city centre.

Figure 3.16: Industrial units along Bar End Road
Figure 3.17: Bar End Opportunity Area

Bar End RoadRi
ve
r I
tc
he
n

Leisure 
Centre

M
3

East 
Winchester 
Park & Ride

Barfield 
Park & Ride

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 85



18

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

4 Previously Developed Land

4�1 Introduction

Attendees were asked to map and identify 
previously developed (brownfield) land. This 
proved to be a fruitful exercise, with a large 
number of sites being identified across the 
city (shown in Figure 4.3 on page 19). It is 
unlikely that all these sites will come forward for 
development, and their inclusion in this report 
does not reflect the Council’s opinion of their 
suitability for development.  

As the focus of the exercise was on the 
identification of previously developed 
(‘brownfield’) land, attendees were provided with 
a definition (right) as a guide. However, some 
attendees also identified undeveloped (‘greenfield’) 
sites, which have been included in the following 
pages for completeness.

Definition: Previously Developed Land 

Land which is or was occupied by a permanent 
structure, including the curtilage of the developed 
land (although it should not be assumed that the 
whole of the curtilage should be developed) and 
any associated fixed infrastructure. This excludes: 
land that is or was last occupied by agricultural or 
forestry buildings; land that has been developed 
for minerals extraction or waste disposal by 
landfill, where provision for restoration has 
been made through development management 
procedures; land in built-up areas such as 
residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and 
allotments; and land that was previously developed 
but where remains of the permanent structure or 
fixed structure have blended into the landscape. 

Figure 4.1: National Planning Policy Framework 
definition of Previously Developed Land

Figure 4.2: Former River Park Leisure Centre

P
age 86



19

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Figure 4.3: Sites identified at the workshop - city-wide

Barton 
Farm

Sir John 
Moore 

Barracks

South 
Winchester 
Golf Club

Winnall

4�2 City-Wide  

A few large sites were identified at the workshop on 
the outskirts of the city, including Sir John Moore 
Barracks, Barton Farm and South Winchester 
Golf Club. Within the built-up area, few vacant 
sites were identified, and opportunities for 
redevelopment centre around making better use 
of industrial and institutional sites. Attendees 
felt that the Royal Hampshire County Hospital 
and prison sites could offer some potential for 
redevelopment for residential and mixed uses. At 
Bar End, regeneration of industrial sites for mixed 
use development could capitalise on the presence 
of the new leisure centre. Winnall Industrial 
Estate was also identified as having potential for 
redevelopment to accommodate residential uses 
and create a better environment.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 87



20

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

4�3 City Centre

Attendees identified a wide variety of potential 
development sites within and close to Winchester 
City centre (Figure 4.4). Surface car parks 
were commonly identified as opportunities for 
development, with some attendees noting that a 
certain number of car parking spaces will need 
to be retained for visitors. Opportunities for 
refurbishment or redevelopment focus on large, 
bulky 20th century buildings such as the River 
Park Leisure Centre, Brooks Shopping Centre and 
large retail units north of the rail station. 

Figure 4.4: Sites identified at the workshop - city centre

Winchester 
Rail Station

Former River 
Park Leisure 

Centre

Brooks 
Shopping 

entreHigh Street

Cathedral

Westgate

The Broadway

Prison

Hospital

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 88



21

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

5 Movement

5�1 Issues

Stakeholders who attended the workshops flagged 
up a number of issues:

• Winchester’s movement network is dominated 
by vehicles. This makes roads feel unsafe for 
cycling and hostile to pedestrians. 

• Parents feel it is unsafe to allow their children 
to cycle to school. 

• Road speeds are too high, both in outer 
residential areas and in the city centre. 

• A number of particular junctions were 
identified that are unsafe for cyclists and 
impractical for pedestrians. 

• Some attendees noted that cars are an 
important form of mobility for the elderly and 
those with limited mobility.

Figure 5.1: Movement opportunities - city-wide

Oliver’s 
Battery

King’s 
Worthy

Winnall

Weeke

Hospital

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 89



22

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Figure 5.2: Movement opportunities - city centre

5�2 Opportunities 

A wide range of opportunities to improve 
Winchester’s movement network were identified, 
from broad ideas to specific interventions. The 
key opportunities are shown in Figure 5.1 on 
page 21 and Figure 5.2 on page 22, and 
summarised below:

• Limit vehicle speeds to 20mph in residential 
neighbourhoods and the city centre. 

• Restrict vehicle entry into the city centre to 
create a better environment for pedestrians 
and cyclists, and free up car parks for 
development. 

• Reconsider the city centre one-way system 
(Figure 5.4) to create a more legible street 
network. 

Winchester 
Rail Station

River Park 
Leisure 
Centre

High Street

Cathedral

Westgate

The Broadway

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 90



23

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

• Greatly improve the quantity and quality of 
bike lanes, particularly along radial routes 
into the city centre and serving Park & Rides. 

• Provide a designated east-west cycle route 
through the city centre that is separated from 
pedestrians. 

• Generally improve connectivity between 
outer residential areas and the city centre and 
station. 

• Provide a commuter rail service from Park & 
Rides to the north and south into Winchester 
rail station. 

• Enhance pedestrian connections and 
wayfinding within the city centre to better 
serve destinations like the rail station (Figure 
5.3), Westgate, the Cathedral and Bar End. 
This may include widening of pavements, 
improving public realm and restricting 
vehicles from certain routes.  

• Improve walking routes along the River 
Itchen. 

• Redesign dangerous junctions to prioritise 
pedestrian and cycle safety and comfort.  

• Create a transport hub at the rail station by 
moving the bus station here from Broadway.

Figure 5.3: View from Winchester Station along 
Station Hill

Figure 5.4: Traffic on the city centre’s one-way system at 
the junction of High Street and Jewry Street

Figure 5.5: An existing Park & Ride

P
age 91



24

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

6 Open Space and Public Realm

6�1 Issues 

• Attendees generally felt that Winchester 
offered a range of good quality open spaces. 

• The outer areas benefit from large green 
spaces and access to the South Downs. 

• The city centre has a lot of potential for civic 
spaces, but some attendees commented that 
the town centre lacks natural features. 

• Many open spaces are not easily accessible 
and the city does not make the most of its 
waterways.  

6�2 Opportunities 

Figure 6.1 shows the key opportunities identified 
by attendees in relation to public open space and 
public realm. These are summarised below: 

• Retain and enhance the quality, offer and 
accessibility of existing green open spaces. 

• Soften the city centre with more natural 
features and tree planting. 

• Improve the open green space and paths 
along the River Itchen. 

Figure 6.1: Open Space and Public Realm opportunities - city-wide

St Catherine’s 
Hill

Badger 
Farm

Winnall 
Moors

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 92



25

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

• Create new public open spaces along the 
High Street. 

• Encourage outdoor dining and seating in the 
city centre. 

• Improve the quality of the public realm on 
High Street, The Broadway (Figure 6.2), 
Westgate, Middle Brook Street and Park 
Avenue. 

• Transform underperforming public spaces 
with high quality public realm and a greater 
variety of activities. 

Figure 6.2: Public realm on The Broadway Figure 6.3: Open Space and Public Realm opportunities - City Centre

Winchester 
Rail Station

Former River 
Park Leisure 

Centre

High Street

Cathedral

Westgate

The Broadway

Pa
rk
 A
ve
nu
e

R
iv
er
 It
ch
en

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100019531. You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact 
with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third 
parties in any form. 

P
age 93



26

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

7 Appendices

7�1 Workshop Details

Location

Mercure Winchester Wessex Hotel

Paternoster Row, 

Winchester 

SO23 9LQ 

Date

Friday, November 5th, 2021 

Session 1: 15:30 – 17:30 

Session 2: 18:00 – 20:00

Attendees

• Session 1 Registered: 45 

• Session 1 Attended: 32 

• Session 2 Registered: 11 

• Session 2 Attended: 8

P
age 94



27

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

7�2 Communications

Email Sent to Residents (29/10/21)

Eventbrite Page

P
age 95



28

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Winchester City Council Website Article

https://www.Winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/
Winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-
emerging/local-plan-events

P
age 96

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/loca
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/loca
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/loca


29

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

7�3 Workshop Agenda

  Re
f: 

16
82

/0
51

12
1 

 5/
11

/2
1 

15
:3

0-
17

:3
0 

18
:0

0-
20

:0
0  

W
in

ch
es

te
r 

W
or

ks
ho

p 
2 

 

  
Ti

m
e 

Ite
m

 
Le

ad
 

  
Pr

ep
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n/

eq
ui

pm
en

t t
o 

be
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

fo
r t

he
 se

ss
io

n:
 

W
CC

  - 
M

ap
 o

f W
in

ch
es

te
r s

et
tle

m
en

t b
ou

nd
ar

y 
at

 A
1 

(D
SE

 to
 re

vi
ew

) 
- 

4 
x a

re
a 

m
ap

s (
N,

 S
, E

, W
) a

t A
1 

- 
Ci

ty
 ce

nt
re

 p
la

n 
at

 A
1 

- 
Fl

ip
 ch

ar
t a

nd
 p

en
s 

DS
E - 

Tr
ac

in
g 

pa
pe

r a
nd

 p
en

s 
- 

St
ru

ct
ur

ed
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 p
er

 ta
bl

e 
(a

ss
ig

n 
sc

rib
e)

 
 

W
CC

/D
SE

 

0 
30

 m
in

s 
be

fo
re

 
st

ar
t 

Se
t u

p 
ro

om
, p

re
pa

re
/w

ip
e 

ta
bl

es
, c

he
ck

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t e

tc
. 

W
CC

/D
SE

 

1 
St

ar
t 

At
te

nd
ee

s a
rr

iv
e 

 

2 
5 

m
in

s 

In
tr
od

uc
tio

ns
 b

y 
W

CC
  

- 
Po

lic
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 (W

in
ch

es
te

r v
isi

on
, g

oo
d 

de
sig

n,
 cl

im
at

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y)

 
- 

W
ha

t c
an

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
de

liv
er

? 
(s

pa
tia

l p
la

nn
in

g)
 

- 
Ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t b
y 

W
CC

 (i
de

nt
ify

 p
rio

rit
ie

s a
nd

 a
re

as
 o

f 
op

po
rt

un
ity

) 
- 

Ou
tc

om
es

, f
ee

db
ac

k 
(h

ow
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 a
nd

 u
se

d 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 n
ew

 LP
) 

W
CC

 

3 
5 

m
in

s 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

by
 D

SE
 

- 
Fo

rm
at

 o
f w

or
ks

ho
p 

(3
 x 

ex
er

cis
es

) 
- 

W
ha

t w
e 

ar
e 

as
ki

ng
 o

f p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 (d
ra

w
 o

n 
liv

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

) P
LE

AS
E 

DR
AW

 
Id

en
tif

y 
‘a

re
as

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
’ (

cu
rr

en
t i

ss
ue

s +
 fu

tu
re

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
/a

im
s/

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
) 

NB
. A

SK
 P

ER
M

IS
SI

ON
 T

O 
TA

KE
 P

HO
TO

S 

DS
E 

4 
20

m
in

s 

Ex
er

cis
e 

1:
 ‘B

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
 fi

rs
t’ 

- 
Ex

pl
ai

ne
r (

DS
E)

 
- 

Di
sc

us
sio

n 
ar

ou
nd

 ‘b
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 fi
rs

t’ 
po

lic
y/

op
po

rt
un

ity
 a

re
as

 
(p

re
vi

ou
sly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 si

te
s, 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

/o
r s

ub
ur

ba
n)

 
Qu

es
tio

ns
 

- 
W

he
re

 a
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t?
 

- 
W

he
re

 a
re

 e
m

pt
y 

sit
es

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t/

ac
tiv

ity
? 

 
- 

W
he

re
 a

re
 th

er
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t?

 (A
re

 th
er

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
sit

es
/b

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 co
ul

d 
w

or
k 

be
tt

er
 o

r n
ee

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t?
) 

M
ap

pi
ng

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 a

re
as

 
- 

Sp
at

ia
l m

ap
pi

ng
 o

f s
ite

s/
ar

ea
s o

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 

DS
E/

al
l 

P
age 97



30

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town
  Re

f: 
16

82
/0

51
12

1 

 5 
10

m
in

s 
Sh

ow
 a

nd
 T

el
l/Q

&
A 

 
Al

l 

6 
20

m
in

s 

Ex
er

cis
e 

2:
 M

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 
- 

Ex
pl

ai
ne

r (
DS

E)
 –

 h
ow

 p
eo

pl
e 

m
ov

e 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

to
w

n,
 a

ct
iv

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t, 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
od

es
 o

f t
ra

ve
l 

Di
sc

us
sio

n 
to

pi
cs

: 
- 

Th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n/
cy

cli
st

 fi
rs

t 
- 

Ba
rr

ie
rs

 a
nd

 w
ay

fin
di

ng
  

- 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

es
, f

oc
al

 p
oi

nt
s 

Qu
es

tio
ns

 
- 

Ho
w

 d
o 

yo
u 

m
ov

e 
ar

ou
nd

 W
in

ch
es

te
r?

  
- 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

? 
W

ha
t c

ou
ld

 im
pr

ov
e?

 
- 

W
ha

t w
ou

ld
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 y
ou

 to
 w

al
k 

or
 cy

cle
 m

or
e?

  
M

ap
pi

ng
  

- 
sp

at
ia

l m
ap

pi
ng

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s f

or
 b

et
te

r 
m

ov
em

en
t/

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
 

 

DS
E/

al
l 

8 
10

m
in

s 
Sh

ow
 a

nd
 T

el
l/Q

&
A 

 
Al

l 

9 
5 

m
in

s 
co

m
fo

rt
 b

re
ak

 
 

10
 

20
m

in
s 

Ex
er

cis
e 

3:
 O

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic 

re
al

m
 

- 
Ex

pl
ai

ne
r (

DS
E)

 –
 li

fe
 b

et
w

ee
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
Di

sc
us

sio
n 

to
pi

cs
: 

- 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

sp
ac

es
 

- 
Gr

ee
n 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
(b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
/e

co
lo

gy
) 

- 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 
Qu

es
tio

ns
 

- 
Do

es
 W

in
ch

es
te

r h
av

e 
en

ou
gh

 g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

? 
W

ha
t 

ca
n 

im
pr

ov
e?

  
- 

W
ha

t d
o 

yo
u 

w
an

t t
o 

se
e 

or
 d

o 
m

or
e 

of
 a

nd
 w

he
re

? 
- 

W
ha

t a
re

as
 la

ck
 n

at
ur

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 (t

re
es

, w
at

er
, p

ar
ks

)?
 

- 
W

he
re

 co
ul

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic 

re
al

m
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 (s

pa
ce

 fo
r w

al
ki

ng
, 

ga
th

er
in

g,
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 m
at

er
ia

ls,
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

en
es

s)
? 

 
- 

M
ap

pi
ng

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s f

or
 b

et
te

r g
re

en
 sp

ac
es

, g
re

en
 c

or
rid

or
s , 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 
 

Al
l 

11
 

10
m

in
s 

Sh
ow

 a
nd

 T
el

l/Q
&

A 
 

Al
l 

12
 

5 
m

in
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
- 

Ne
xt

 st
ep

s, 
fe

ed
ba

ck
, t

ha
nk

s 
DS

E/
W

CC
 

13
 

Cl
lr 

Go
rd

on
-S

m
ith

  
- 

Th
an

k 
yo

u 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 
Cl

lr 
G-

S 
  Re

f: 
16

82
/0

51
12

1 

    E
xe

rc
is

e 
1 

B
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 fi
rs

t' 
(la

nd
 th

at
 h

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
be

en
 b

ui
lt 

on
, a

nd
 n

ow
 s

its
 d

er
el

ic
t o

r 
va

ca
nt

) p
ol

ic
y 

en
su

re
s 

th
at

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 o

r u
nd

er
-u

se
d 

la
nd

 is
 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 fo

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

ve
r g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

co
un

try
si

de
. T

he
 b

en
ef

its
 o

f 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 b
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s 
is

 c
le

ar
. N

ot
 o

nl
y 

ar
e 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 in
 p

rim
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 –
 w

hi
ch

 m
ea

ns
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

gr
ea

t t
ra

ns
po

rt 
lin

ks
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
 –

 b
ut

 b
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

on
 th

em
, t

ow
ns

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 re
ge

ne
ra

te
 ti

re
d 

an
d 

bo
ar

de
d-

up
 s

ite
s 

br
in

gi
ng

 
m

uc
h-

ne
ed

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 fr

es
h 

lif
e 

to
 u

rb
an

 a
re

as
. T

he
 o

th
er

 h
ug

e 
be

ne
fit

 is
 th

at
 b

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 b
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

, y
ou

 c
an

 p
ro

te
ct

 g
re

en
be

lt 
la

nd
 fr

om
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.  

14
 

2 
hr

s 
fro

m
 

st
ar

t 
En

ds
 

 

P
age 98



31

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

7�4 Workshop Explainer Sheet
 

 

W
in

ch
es

te
r C

ity
 W

or
ks

ho
p 
– 

Ex
er

cis
e 

Ex
pl

ai
ne

r 
5th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

1 
 Be

fo
re

 y
ou

 st
ar

t: 
• 

N
om

in
at

e 
a 

sc
ri

be
, w

ho
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 n

ot
es

 o
f t

he
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n.
 

• 
N

om
in

at
e 

so
m

eo
ne

 to
 d

ra
w

 o
n 

th
e 

pl
an

s.
 P

le
as

e 
us

e 
di

ff
er

en
t c

ol
ou

re
d 

m
ar

ke
rs

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 
ex

er
ci

se
: 

o 
Ex

er
ci

se
 1

: D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
= 

B
la

ck
, G

re
y 

o 
Ex

er
ci

se
 2

: M
ov

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 =

 R
ed

, P
in

k 

o 
Ex

er
ci

se
 3

: O
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 r

ea
lm

 =
 G

re
en

, B
lu

e 

 Ex
er

cis
e 

1:
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

D
is

cu
ss

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
: 

• 
W

he
re

 a
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t?
  

• 
W

he
re

 a
re

 e
m

pt
y 

si
te

s 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t/a
ct

iv
ity

? 
  

• 
A

re
 th

er
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

si
te

s/
bu

ild
in

gs
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 w
or

k 
be

tte
r 

or
 n

ee
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t?

 

 Ex
er

cis
e 

2:
 M

ov
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 
D

is
cu

ss
 a

nd
 d

ra
w

: 

• 
Is

 it
 e

as
y 

to
m

ov
e

ar
ou

nd
 W

in
ch

es
te

r?
 

• 
W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 m
ov

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
?

W
ha

t c
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e?
 

• 
W

ha
t w

ou
ld

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 y

ou
 to

 w
al

k 
or

 c
yc

le
 m

or
e?

 

 Ex
er

cis
e 

3:
 O

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 

D
is

cu
ss

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
: 

• 
D

oe
s 

W
in

ch
es

te
r 

ha
ve

 e
no

ug
h 

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s?

 W
ha

t c
an

 im
pr

ov
e?

   

• 
W

ha
t d

o 
yo

u 
w

an
t t

o 
se

e 
or

 d
o 

m
or

e 
of

, a
nd

 w
he

re
? 

 

• 
W

ha
t a

re
as

 la
ck

 n
at

ur
al

 fe
at

ur
es

 (t
re

es
, w

at
er

, p
ar

ks
)?

  

• 
W

he
re

 c
ou

ld
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ea

lm
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 (s

pa
ce

 fo
r 

w
al

ki
ng

, g
at

he
ri

ng
, q

u
al

ity
 o

f 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, a
ttr

ac
tiv

en
es

s)
? 

  

P
age 99



32

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

A • Surface car parks - lower 
brook street carpark - 
move bus station here 
and parking above this 
and develop bus station 
site

• River Park leisure centre 
and bowls club - move 
council offices here

• Council offices - 
reallocate space to 
housing - premium 
space

• Sir John Moore 
Barracks - potential 
hospital, research 
science park, 
industry (medical)

• Land north of 
wellhouse lane

• Land south of 
Badgers Farm - 
better hospital site or 
science park

• Westview House - 
could be renovated for 
different use/sold off

• Cromwell House - 
currently not being 
fully used - empty 
offices

• No cars allowed through 
one-way system

• Lack of pedestrian 
facilities to get into the 
city centre

• Buses sit in traffic 
congestion making 
journeys longer than if 
private car trip

• Too easy to move around 
in a private car making it 
harder to choose public 
transport/active travel

• Out of date bus routes 
- some areas don’t get 
regular buses that need 
them

• Shuttle people into the 
city centre with the rail 
infrastructure/ tram 
infrastructure

• No dedicated corridors 
to prioritise bus 
movement

• Open up rail at Winnall
• Parking premiums at 

‘key times’ and tax on 
private parking

• Station Approach - 
pedestrian bridge

• Making some routes 
in the city centre 
traffic free at certain 
times of the day

• Hopper buses from 
station to aid people 
to walk to destination

• Bus interchanges 
over a bus station

• Utilise park and ride 
during the day - free 
transport

• Outside of the city centre 
there is good green space

• The city centre could 
benefit from planting

• Unused land to be 
developed as parkland

• Connections to wildlife 
corridors so they can be 
maintained

• Links between green 
spaces in the central 
spaces

• Central Winchester 
natural features

• Link east to west station line 
to have access to green space 
easily

• North of the High Street
• Around the station/records 

office
• River Park leisure centre

B • Central Winchester 
regeneration centre

• Brooks Centre
• MiddlesBrooks Centre
• Prison
• Wessex mercure hotel
• Sir John Moore barracks
• South Winchester golf 

club
• Vale farm
• North of wellhouse lane

• Generally most 
empty sites have 
already been 
purchased and 
earmarked for 
development

• Brooks Centre
• Middle Brooks Centre

• Generally easy to move 
around but improvement 
always welcome

• Romsey road very busy - 
pavements narrow, traffic 
calmed from roundabout 
to Westgate

• Interupted journeys 
along Romsey Road into 
Winchester

• Traffic on Romsey Road 
- better walking and 
cycling

• Additional park and 
ride - congestion 
charge

• Traffic corridor 
from roundabout to 
Westgate needs urgent 
review

• Segregated cycle 
lanes, better 
maintained 
pavements

• Improved pedestrian 
links to key 
employers and civic 
functions - paths 
to hospital and 
university

• Generally yes - Compton 
Down,Water Meadows and 
River Itchen

• Could be developed for 
walking and cycling routes 
into Winchester

• Softer cycling route into 
city centre along romsey 
road or parallel to it

• Paved cycle paths 
through water meadows 
from south to north

• Some areas lack spaces, 
for example Teg Down, 
Oliver’s Battery. But in 
fairness they do have 
open areas outside their 
perimeters

• Route through Badger Farm 
for walking and cycling 

7�5 Spreadsheet of Stakeholder Comments (continues on following pages)

P
age 100



33

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

A • Surface car parks - lower 
brook street carpark - 
move bus station here 
and parking above this 
and develop bus station 
site

• River Park leisure centre 
and bowls club - move 
council offices here

• Council offices - 
reallocate space to 
housing - premium 
space

• Sir John Moore 
Barracks - potential 
hospital, research 
science park, 
industry (medical)

• Land north of 
wellhouse lane

• Land south of 
Badgers Farm - 
better hospital site or 
science park

• Westview House - 
could be renovated for 
different use/sold off

• Cromwell House - 
currently not being 
fully used - empty 
offices

• No cars allowed through 
one-way system

• Lack of pedestrian 
facilities to get into the 
city centre

• Buses sit in traffic 
congestion making 
journeys longer than if 
private car trip

• Too easy to move around 
in a private car making it 
harder to choose public 
transport/active travel

• Out of date bus routes 
- some areas don’t get 
regular buses that need 
them

• Shuttle people into the 
city centre with the rail 
infrastructure/ tram 
infrastructure

• No dedicated corridors 
to prioritise bus 
movement

• Open up rail at Winnall
• Parking premiums at 

‘key times’ and tax on 
private parking

• Station Approach - 
pedestrian bridge

• Making some routes 
in the city centre 
traffic free at certain 
times of the day

• Hopper buses from 
station to aid people 
to walk to destination

• Bus interchanges 
over a bus station

• Utilise park and ride 
during the day - free 
transport

• Outside of the city centre 
there is good green space

• The city centre could 
benefit from planting

• Unused land to be 
developed as parkland

• Connections to wildlife 
corridors so they can be 
maintained

• Links between green 
spaces in the central 
spaces

• Central Winchester 
natural features

• Link east to west station line 
to have access to green space 
easily

• North of the High Street
• Around the station/records 

office
• River Park leisure centre

B • Central Winchester 
regeneration centre

• Brooks Centre
• MiddlesBrooks Centre
• Prison
• Wessex mercure hotel
• Sir John Moore barracks
• South Winchester golf 

club
• Vale farm
• North of wellhouse lane

• Generally most 
empty sites have 
already been 
purchased and 
earmarked for 
development

• Brooks Centre
• Middle Brooks Centre

• Generally easy to move 
around but improvement 
always welcome

• Romsey road very busy - 
pavements narrow, traffic 
calmed from roundabout 
to Westgate

• Interupted journeys 
along Romsey Road into 
Winchester

• Traffic on Romsey Road 
- better walking and 
cycling

• Additional park and 
ride - congestion 
charge

• Traffic corridor 
from roundabout to 
Westgate needs urgent 
review

• Segregated cycle 
lanes, better 
maintained 
pavements

• Improved pedestrian 
links to key 
employers and civic 
functions - paths 
to hospital and 
university

• Generally yes - Compton 
Down,Water Meadows and 
River Itchen

• Could be developed for 
walking and cycling routes 
into Winchester

• Softer cycling route into 
city centre along romsey 
road or parallel to it

• Paved cycle paths 
through water meadows 
from south to north

• Some areas lack spaces, 
for example Teg Down, 
Oliver’s Battery. But in 
fairness they do have 
open areas outside their 
perimeters

• Route through Badger Farm 
for walking and cycling 

P
age 101



34

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

C • Cosack car park, River 
Park buildings, bowls 
club/openspace, rear of 
houses/businesses

• Lots of land small wins, 
council offices

• Lead by example
• Very central, readapting 

Brooks, linking heritage 
assets

• Connections from 
High St to Cathedral, 
connections to High St 
from just outside Hyde 
unclear how

• Bar End to High St - no 
cut through & poor 
public reach, park & ride 
instead of ride - poor 
public realm & route, 
train station not direct 
or clear

•  Legibility. Waterway a 
good route

• Poor wayfinding by 
design, hard, hot, wet 
routes

• Environmental 
exposure, few short 
cuts, reliance on main 
roads, general way 
finding around the city

• Non-car especially, 
storage tunnel could 
be opened up and 
improved, tramway

• Amenity, 
convenience, safety - 
especially for cycling

• Facilities and quality, 
public access to college 
owned land, more open 
space & linkages to other 
spaces

• Ecologically improved 
parks (local)

•  Linked to residential 
gardens, connectivity for 
wildlife, 100 small wins, 
biodiversity

• City centre
• Green and blue 

infrastructure for 
amenity and climate

• Upper but mainly lower High 
Street hardstandings

D • Central car parks
• Private car parks

• Bar End
• Sir John Moore 

barracks - local gap 
between harestock 
and littleton

• Easton lane and 
Winnall

• Brooks Centre
•  Prison
•  Hospital

• Pedestrian movement 
from station needs 
improvement

• Pedestrianise whole of 
old Roman road from 
Castle to St Giles

• Remove cars from the 
centre

• Delivery vehicles - 
supporting trade/
business

• Pinch points over the 
railway line with roads 
from the west/north 
with limited pavements 
for walking or width for 
cyclists

•  Narrow roads don’t 
support cycling

• Narrow pavement on 
parts of Andover Rd

• Better public transit 
needed is cars are to 
be kept out

• Ticket pricing for 
public transit needs 
review

• Free shuttle bus for 
locals to hop on hop 
off

• Park and ride okay for 
visitors but poor for 
local residents

• Better quality footpaths - 
Tesco to South Downs Way

• Lots of opportunities 
for city centre, 
pedestrianisation and town 
square

• Pedestrianisation of 
square - repeat for 
Broadway

• Cathedral grounds are 
the beating heart of 
Winchester

• Westacre area 
opportunity to connect 
Castle and HCC for 
pedestrians

• Cathedral inner close - 
remove cars

• Missed opportunity 
to connect St Giles, St 
Catharines Hill

• Unknown to visitors

• Celebration of heritage
• Activities for teenagers on 

play parks
• Quality of public realm 

services and street features

P
age 102



35

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

C • Cosack car park, River 
Park buildings, bowls 
club/openspace, rear of 
houses/businesses

• Lots of land small wins, 
council offices

• Lead by example
• Very central, readapting 

Brooks, linking heritage 
assets

• Connections from 
High St to Cathedral, 
connections to High St 
from just outside Hyde 
unclear how

• Bar End to High St - no 
cut through & poor 
public reach, park & ride 
instead of ride - poor 
public realm & route, 
train station not direct 
or clear

•  Legibility. Waterway a 
good route

• Poor wayfinding by 
design, hard, hot, wet 
routes

• Environmental 
exposure, few short 
cuts, reliance on main 
roads, general way 
finding around the city

• Non-car especially, 
storage tunnel could 
be opened up and 
improved, tramway

• Amenity, 
convenience, safety - 
especially for cycling

• Facilities and quality, 
public access to college 
owned land, more open 
space & linkages to other 
spaces

• Ecologically improved 
parks (local)

•  Linked to residential 
gardens, connectivity for 
wildlife, 100 small wins, 
biodiversity

• City centre
• Green and blue 

infrastructure for 
amenity and climate

• Upper but mainly lower High 
Street hardstandings

D • Central car parks
• Private car parks

• Bar End
• Sir John Moore 

barracks - local gap 
between harestock 
and littleton

• Easton lane and 
Winnall

• Brooks Centre
•  Prison
•  Hospital

• Pedestrian movement 
from station needs 
improvement

• Pedestrianise whole of 
old Roman road from 
Castle to St Giles

• Remove cars from the 
centre

• Delivery vehicles - 
supporting trade/
business

• Pinch points over the 
railway line with roads 
from the west/north 
with limited pavements 
for walking or width for 
cyclists

•  Narrow roads don’t 
support cycling

• Narrow pavement on 
parts of Andover Rd

• Better public transit 
needed is cars are to 
be kept out

• Ticket pricing for 
public transit needs 
review

• Free shuttle bus for 
locals to hop on hop 
off

• Park and ride okay for 
visitors but poor for 
local residents

• Better quality footpaths - 
Tesco to South Downs Way

• Lots of opportunities 
for city centre, 
pedestrianisation and town 
square

• Pedestrianisation of 
square - repeat for 
Broadway

• Cathedral grounds are 
the beating heart of 
Winchester

• Westacre area 
opportunity to connect 
Castle and HCC for 
pedestrians

• Cathedral inner close - 
remove cars

• Missed opportunity 
to connect St Giles, St 
Catharines Hill

• Unknown to visitors

• Celebration of heritage
• Activities for teenagers on 

play parks
• Quality of public realm 

services and street features

P
age 103



36

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

E • City centre car parks • Surface car park not 
best use of land

• Private car park/hotels 
- use shuttle buses

• Hospital - opportunity 
to consolidate and 
make fit for purpose

• Sir John Moore 
barracks

• Univeristy/prison 
- could be more 
efficient use of land

• No one way system - a 
barrier to movement

• Lack of connectivity 
between some suburbs 
and key destinations - 
Winnall to leisure centre

• Fast road a barrier to 
movement - lack of 
connectivity

• No safe cycle routes 
into the city

• No direct cycle routes 
around town to key 
destinations - cyclists 
then go on footpaths

• Some suburbs 
badly designed with 
no foresight for 
connectivity

• Footpaths are a key part 
of multi-plot sites

• Needs to be higher up 
the agenda,  delivery 
sites

• Poor permeability 
between communities

• City Bridge - pinch 
point and not 
pedestrian friendly

• Better, wider 
footpaths and 
pathways

• Direct and quicker 
routes - people don’t 
follow convoluted and 
indirect cycle routes - 
they take short cuts

• Safe, well lit cycle 
routes

• Lack of safe 
pedestrian crossings 
to busy roads

• Good provsions in city 
centre

• Green fingers into the city 
provide attractive routes 
into centre from suburbs

• Pedestrianisation, 
attractive outdoor 
seating/environments

• Broadway
• Opportunity to identify 

area to plant andover 
street trees/ groups of 
trees

• Trees lining pedestrian 
routes

• Opportunity to open up 
river - make more access 
to the water

• Law courts ber hard 
landscaping - could be 
improved and softened

• Lack of community 
growing space/
alottments, particularly 
in the west of the city

• Bus crossing on the Brooks 
and with pedestrian clearer 
- confused public realm - 
priority uses conflicted

• Some residential area  have 
lots of small public parks but 
no meaningful public open 
space

• Children buildings on the 
fringe of estates - don’t have 
sufficient open space to do 
this in a public area

• Difficult to retrofit
• New large developments are 

opportunity for better, larger 
areas of open space

F • Garage court, 
• Badger Farm, 
• Middle Brook car park, 
• St Peter car park, 
• Cattle Market car park - 

left over from previous 
development

• Pedestrian route from 
railway station to city

• Possible to pedestrianise 
route

• Cycle route from Badger 
Farm into centre via park 
and ride

• North Walls corridor to 
cross movement to River 
Park to city centre

• Vehicle routes through 
the city - some follow 
motorway

• Open spaces quite good - 
but poorly connected

• Broadway - great space
• Bridge to connect Chesil St 

to Weirs
• Urban spaces - upper High 

Street

P
age 104



37

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

E • City centre car parks • Surface car park not 
best use of land

• Private car park/hotels 
- use shuttle buses

• Hospital - opportunity 
to consolidate and 
make fit for purpose

• Sir John Moore 
barracks

• Univeristy/prison 
- could be more 
efficient use of land

• No one way system - a 
barrier to movement

• Lack of connectivity 
between some suburbs 
and key destinations - 
Winnall to leisure centre

• Fast road a barrier to 
movement - lack of 
connectivity

• No safe cycle routes 
into the city

• No direct cycle routes 
around town to key 
destinations - cyclists 
then go on footpaths

• Some suburbs 
badly designed with 
no foresight for 
connectivity

• Footpaths are a key part 
of multi-plot sites

• Needs to be higher up 
the agenda,  delivery 
sites

• Poor permeability 
between communities

• City Bridge - pinch 
point and not 
pedestrian friendly

• Better, wider 
footpaths and 
pathways

• Direct and quicker 
routes - people don’t 
follow convoluted and 
indirect cycle routes - 
they take short cuts

• Safe, well lit cycle 
routes

• Lack of safe 
pedestrian crossings 
to busy roads

• Good provsions in city 
centre

• Green fingers into the city 
provide attractive routes 
into centre from suburbs

• Pedestrianisation, 
attractive outdoor 
seating/environments

• Broadway
• Opportunity to identify 

area to plant andover 
street trees/ groups of 
trees

• Trees lining pedestrian 
routes

• Opportunity to open up 
river - make more access 
to the water

• Law courts ber hard 
landscaping - could be 
improved and softened

• Lack of community 
growing space/
alottments, particularly 
in the west of the city

• Bus crossing on the Brooks 
and with pedestrian clearer 
- confused public realm - 
priority uses conflicted

• Some residential area  have 
lots of small public parks but 
no meaningful public open 
space

• Children buildings on the 
fringe of estates - don’t have 
sufficient open space to do 
this in a public area

• Difficult to retrofit
• New large developments are 

opportunity for better, larger 
areas of open space

F • Garage court, 
• Badger Farm, 
• Middle Brook car park, 
• St Peter car park, 
• Cattle Market car park - 

left over from previous 
development

• Pedestrian route from 
railway station to city

• Possible to pedestrianise 
route

• Cycle route from Badger 
Farm into centre via park 
and ride

• North Walls corridor to 
cross movement to River 
Park to city centre

• Vehicle routes through 
the city - some follow 
motorway

• Open spaces quite good - 
but poorly connected

• Broadway - great space
• Bridge to connect Chesil St 

to Weirs
• Urban spaces - upper High 

Street

P
age 105



38

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

G • River Park (buildings), 
• Brooks Centre
• Friarsgate car park
• Police station site,
• North Walls, 
• St Peters car park, 
• Guildhall yard and WCC 

offices, 
• Easton Lane 

employment areas 
between housing, 

• Sir John Moore barracks, 
• Royal Winchester golf 

club, 
• North of Harestock 

Road, 
• Bushfield Camp and 

farmland south of 
Badger Farm road to 
south

• City centre is very 
walkable but experience 
is distracted from 
by some of the main 
vehicular routes, walking 
route from station to 
High Street via City 
Road/Andover Road 
junction is a poor quality 
arrival experience

• North Walls, St 
George’s Street and 
Friarsgate are busy, two 
lanes of traffic, lack of 
bridges over sections 
of river, college 
ownership, narrowness 
of roads discourages 
cycling

• Pedestrianise a much 
larger area of the city 
centre for retail, car 
parking at points on 
edge, transport hub 
at Station Approach 
for buses and 
coaches, to remove 
buses/coaches from 
the Broadway

• Never enough but ok at 
present, improve links 
between green spaces in 
outlining areas, new green 
space directly opposite 
Guildhall, most areas 
have good access to open 
countryside

•  Improve cycle routes

• Links betweens open 
spaces, link from city 
centre towards King’s 
Worthy along the Itchen, 
improvement required, 
links (pedestrian/cycle) 
out to open countryside 
from residential areas

• Plant trees along roads, 
where possible space 
allows, e.g. Teg Down, 
wide ways, green zones, 
living walls on poorly 
performing buidings

• New green routes making 
use of historic water courses, 
from end road

• Better use of green space 
by re-aligning roads. Green 
space not useable at present

H • Saxongate
• Old bus station plus
• Proposal for museum
• Affordable, quality. 

Housing, leisure uses, 
cinema, bowling

• Spaces above all 
retail in Winchester 
High St for housing, 
city centre parking 
sites for development

• Station quarter/
approach, transport 
hub proposals, Bar 
End semi - industrial 
for mixed uses and 
housing and open 
up views and access 
to river walks etc., 
Modern employment 
uses such as live/work 
units, potential for 
modest multi storey 
development

• Yes, if you are a walker, 
poor commuting by 
buses, easy for cycle, 
could be better and safer 
with some segregatred 
infrastructure

• Autonomous, 
connected vehicles 
for intra-city access 
can help to overcome 
medieval street pattern, 
great public realm and 
squares when freed 
from traffic lights

• Car free centre, 
10/12 minute walk 
zone, park and ride, 
redeveloped central 
parking

• Great natural spaces 
around River Park could be 
returned and enhanced as 
a simple open area, space 
for growing produce, more 
allotments, community 
gardens for veg, mini city 
farm for low food miles, 
education, etc.

• The Broadway as a “civic 
space” public realm for 
multi-use space and 
events, pedestrianised 
piazza, (from st johns 
house into park

• Extend Winnal Moor 
access for walking and 
public enjoyment

• New leisure centre 
setting will mature 
but lacks natural feel, 
trees and green spaces 
connections into Bar End

• Create link into South Downs, 
replicate charm of “the space” 
in other locations returning 
quality charm, open up more 
of the covered (culverted) 
river ways

P
age 106



39

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

G • River Park (buildings), 
• Brooks Centre
• Friarsgate car park
• Police station site,
• North Walls, 
• St Peters car park, 
• Guildhall yard and WCC 

offices, 
• Easton Lane 

employment areas 
between housing, 

• Sir John Moore barracks, 
• Royal Winchester golf 

club, 
• North of Harestock 

Road, 
• Bushfield Camp and 

farmland south of 
Badger Farm road to 
south

• City centre is very 
walkable but experience 
is distracted from 
by some of the main 
vehicular routes, walking 
route from station to 
High Street via City 
Road/Andover Road 
junction is a poor quality 
arrival experience

• North Walls, St 
George’s Street and 
Friarsgate are busy, two 
lanes of traffic, lack of 
bridges over sections 
of river, college 
ownership, narrowness 
of roads discourages 
cycling

• Pedestrianise a much 
larger area of the city 
centre for retail, car 
parking at points on 
edge, transport hub 
at Station Approach 
for buses and 
coaches, to remove 
buses/coaches from 
the Broadway

• Never enough but ok at 
present, improve links 
between green spaces in 
outlining areas, new green 
space directly opposite 
Guildhall, most areas 
have good access to open 
countryside

•  Improve cycle routes

• Links betweens open 
spaces, link from city 
centre towards King’s 
Worthy along the Itchen, 
improvement required, 
links (pedestrian/cycle) 
out to open countryside 
from residential areas

• Plant trees along roads, 
where possible space 
allows, e.g. Teg Down, 
wide ways, green zones, 
living walls on poorly 
performing buidings

• New green routes making 
use of historic water courses, 
from end road

• Better use of green space 
by re-aligning roads. Green 
space not useable at present

H • Saxongate
• Old bus station plus
• Proposal for museum
• Affordable, quality. 

Housing, leisure uses, 
cinema, bowling

• Spaces above all 
retail in Winchester 
High St for housing, 
city centre parking 
sites for development

• Station quarter/
approach, transport 
hub proposals, Bar 
End semi - industrial 
for mixed uses and 
housing and open 
up views and access 
to river walks etc., 
Modern employment 
uses such as live/work 
units, potential for 
modest multi storey 
development

• Yes, if you are a walker, 
poor commuting by 
buses, easy for cycle, 
could be better and safer 
with some segregatred 
infrastructure

• Autonomous, 
connected vehicles 
for intra-city access 
can help to overcome 
medieval street pattern, 
great public realm and 
squares when freed 
from traffic lights

• Car free centre, 
10/12 minute walk 
zone, park and ride, 
redeveloped central 
parking

• Great natural spaces 
around River Park could be 
returned and enhanced as 
a simple open area, space 
for growing produce, more 
allotments, community 
gardens for veg, mini city 
farm for low food miles, 
education, etc.

• The Broadway as a “civic 
space” public realm for 
multi-use space and 
events, pedestrianised 
piazza, (from st johns 
house into park

• Extend Winnal Moor 
access for walking and 
public enjoyment

• New leisure centre 
setting will mature 
but lacks natural feel, 
trees and green spaces 
connections into Bar End

• Create link into South Downs, 
replicate charm of “the space” 
in other locations returning 
quality charm, open up more 
of the covered (culverted) 
river ways

P
age 107



40

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

I • Wessex Hotel
• Silver hill (Brooks 

Centre)
• Newbury House
• Colebrook Street office
• River Park
• Southampton University 

art college
• Bar End
• Telephone exchange 
• Prison
• Littleton nursery
• Sir John Moore barracks

• Walking route - leisure 
centre to city centre

• North/south - linking 
green spaces

• Connections across 
Andover Road

• Dedicated cycle lanes
• A plan to connect the 

cycle lanes
• Park and cycle 

(attached to park and 
ride)

• Informal small green 
spaces in the city with 
seating

• Bushfield - green 
destination - arboretum

• Outside law courts/ 
round table

• Better security

J • Bushfield - setting aside 
for landscape setting

• Sir John Moore barracks 
- good opportunity

• Prison - no longer fit 
for purpose - could be 
relocated out of city

• River Park leisure 
centre/old police station

• City centre sites are 
difficult - visibility, 
Cathedral views/height

• City centre surface car 
parks

• Telephone exchange - all 
are no longer required

• No! There are too many 
cars in the central 
circulating system 
(within historic walls)

• Quantum of vehicles 
and historic core

• Historic core has to 
perform distrubutor 
role - out to radial 
routes

• Radial routes are 
constrained and narrow

• Behavioural - vehicular 
travel is ingrained

• Barriers (like one way 
streets) for cyclists  

• Dedicated bus 
lanes/ shuttle - only 
opportunity is on 
Andover Road - 
widening, vehicles 
removed through 
King’s Barton

• Installation of 
‘bus’gates on radial 
routes - priority given 
to buses in rush hour 
- trams

• Relocate bus station 
to cattle market/
station approach area 
- central interchage 
for trams/trains/
buses

• Open spaces  - yes but 
good quality spaces to 
‘dwell’ not so much

• Broadway to be improved
• Bushfield down - north 

of campsite could be 
improved for public open 
space

• Increase potential 
pedestrian routes along 
waterways

• Abbey gardens could 
be made less formal 
and more welcoming 
for informal use like 
Cathedral outer core

• Law courts
• River Park leisure centre 

- opportunity for high 
quality setting

• Law courts are potentially 
brilliant space but are really 
barren and windswept - food 
vans?

• Broadway - european piazza 
square

• Train station - no sense of 
arrival/welcoming

• Abbey garden - antisocial 
behaviour

• Middlebrooks car park 
- potential for box park/
community use

P
age 108



41

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

I • Wessex Hotel
• Silver hill (Brooks 

Centre)
• Newbury House
• Colebrook Street office
• River Park
• Southampton University 

art college
• Bar End
• Telephone exchange 
• Prison
• Littleton nursery
• Sir John Moore barracks

• Walking route - leisure 
centre to city centre

• North/south - linking 
green spaces

• Connections across 
Andover Road

• Dedicated cycle lanes
• A plan to connect the 

cycle lanes
• Park and cycle 

(attached to park and 
ride)

• Informal small green 
spaces in the city with 
seating

• Bushfield - green 
destination - arboretum

• Outside law courts/ 
round table

• Better security

J • Bushfield - setting aside 
for landscape setting

• Sir John Moore barracks 
- good opportunity

• Prison - no longer fit 
for purpose - could be 
relocated out of city

• River Park leisure 
centre/old police station

• City centre sites are 
difficult - visibility, 
Cathedral views/height

• City centre surface car 
parks

• Telephone exchange - all 
are no longer required

• No! There are too many 
cars in the central 
circulating system 
(within historic walls)

• Quantum of vehicles 
and historic core

• Historic core has to 
perform distrubutor 
role - out to radial 
routes

• Radial routes are 
constrained and narrow

• Behavioural - vehicular 
travel is ingrained

• Barriers (like one way 
streets) for cyclists  

• Dedicated bus 
lanes/ shuttle - only 
opportunity is on 
Andover Road - 
widening, vehicles 
removed through 
King’s Barton

• Installation of 
‘bus’gates on radial 
routes - priority given 
to buses in rush hour 
- trams

• Relocate bus station 
to cattle market/
station approach area 
- central interchage 
for trams/trains/
buses

• Open spaces  - yes but 
good quality spaces to 
‘dwell’ not so much

• Broadway to be improved
• Bushfield down - north 

of campsite could be 
improved for public open 
space

• Increase potential 
pedestrian routes along 
waterways

• Abbey gardens could 
be made less formal 
and more welcoming 
for informal use like 
Cathedral outer core

• Law courts
• River Park leisure centre 

- opportunity for high 
quality setting

• Law courts are potentially 
brilliant space but are really 
barren and windswept - food 
vans?

• Broadway - european piazza 
square

• Train station - no sense of 
arrival/welcoming

• Abbey garden - antisocial 
behaviour

• Middlebrooks car park 
- potential for box park/
community use

P
age 109



42

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

B.2 • Car parks - cattle 
market, St Peters, 
Carfax, Middle brook, 
Mercure, old police 
station site

• Hampshire County 
Council School Site 
behind Monarch Way

• Winnall - small 
industrial site off 
Winnall Road - badly 
laid out

• Skate park - widely 
used but poor focal 
point

• Kings Walk - space by 
law Courts

• Winnall industrial 
area - badly designed

• Cars and speed - narrow 
pavements - poor 
maintenance - poor 
route by railway station

• Poor pedestrian routes
• Block of Romsey Rd 

to North and South 
movement

• Dangerous junctions for 
cyclists/pedestrians

• Chilbolton Ave - 
potential for cycle route

• Sarum road - running 
route/cylce route - 
dangerous

• Romsey road - few 
crossing points

• connecting to schools/
college - pedestrians in 
conflict with cars

• School circulation and 
access routes - 20mph 
zone through the city - 
enforcement needed

• Very congested getting 
around the schools 
(Westgate, Simmons, 
Weston, Kings etc.) - all 
of which are within 1 
mile of each other - 
needs to be sensible, 
safe for walking and 
cycling

• Could the one-way 
system dedicate one 
lane to a cycle lane - 
reduce car speed and 
allow cyclists to be 
safe and get bikes off 
pavements

• More pedestrian 
crossings on the one-
way system - nice and 
wide, more disability 
friendly

• Car numbers and 
speed

• Wider pavements
• Better signage

• Many - poorly connected
• Many potentially urban 

spaces but dominated by 
traffic

• Potential pedestrian route 
- station to the leisure 
centre at Bar End

• Broadway - bad tarmac, 
underused, derelict shops, 
road is wider than M3, no 
bus station - needs wider 
pavements and highlighted 
in SPD

• River Park - poorly linked, 
bad furniture (benches/
seating)

• Bushfield camp - 
ecological centre (chalk 
land habitat) - not 
suitable as a business 
centre

• City Bridge - lovely but 
full of traffic

• Chesil Manor - oldest 
house and City Hall

• The Broadway - rubbish area 
at the moment - all tarmac

• River hidden
• River Park - better 

connectivity, poor 
maintenance, a park hub, café

• No quality play spaces in city 
centre

P
age 110



43

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

B.2 • Car parks - cattle 
market, St Peters, 
Carfax, Middle brook, 
Mercure, old police 
station site

• Hampshire County 
Council School Site 
behind Monarch Way

• Winnall - small 
industrial site off 
Winnall Road - badly 
laid out

• Skate park - widely 
used but poor focal 
point

• Kings Walk - space by 
law Courts

• Winnall industrial 
area - badly designed

• Cars and speed - narrow 
pavements - poor 
maintenance - poor 
route by railway station

• Poor pedestrian routes
• Block of Romsey Rd 

to North and South 
movement

• Dangerous junctions for 
cyclists/pedestrians

• Chilbolton Ave - 
potential for cycle route

• Sarum road - running 
route/cylce route - 
dangerous

• Romsey road - few 
crossing points

• connecting to schools/
college - pedestrians in 
conflict with cars

• School circulation and 
access routes - 20mph 
zone through the city - 
enforcement needed

• Very congested getting 
around the schools 
(Westgate, Simmons, 
Weston, Kings etc.) - all 
of which are within 1 
mile of each other - 
needs to be sensible, 
safe for walking and 
cycling

• Could the one-way 
system dedicate one 
lane to a cycle lane - 
reduce car speed and 
allow cyclists to be 
safe and get bikes off 
pavements

• More pedestrian 
crossings on the one-
way system - nice and 
wide, more disability 
friendly

• Car numbers and 
speed

• Wider pavements
• Better signage

• Many - poorly connected
• Many potentially urban 

spaces but dominated by 
traffic

• Potential pedestrian route 
- station to the leisure 
centre at Bar End

• Broadway - bad tarmac, 
underused, derelict shops, 
road is wider than M3, no 
bus station - needs wider 
pavements and highlighted 
in SPD

• River Park - poorly linked, 
bad furniture (benches/
seating)

• Bushfield camp - 
ecological centre (chalk 
land habitat) - not 
suitable as a business 
centre

• City Bridge - lovely but 
full of traffic

• Chesil Manor - oldest 
house and City Hall

• The Broadway - rubbish area 
at the moment - all tarmac

• River hidden
• River Park - better 

connectivity, poor 
maintenance, a park hub, café

• No quality play spaces in city 
centre

P
age 111



44

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

C.2 • Private carparks - 
behind offices

• Tower carpark - staff 
floor given over to 
public parking

• Debenhams • Station Approach • Winchester is hilly
• Electric bikes will 

address this and increase 
bike use - need more 
cylce paths

• Electric bikes need 
lockable storage for 
batteries

• Cycle lane along North 
Walls - two way

• Single land - cars
• Hazard of mixing 

pedestrians/cycles
• Badger Farm road is 

a 40mph barrier for 
Oliver’s Battery

• Badger Farm needs 
better pedestrian 
access/connectivity 

• Cross city cycle route
• East/West connection 

needs improving
• Slower speed limits

• If developing Sir John 
Moore ensure a park

• Better sign posting to 
green space - St Giles Hill, 
St Catherines, etc.

• Improve maintenence/ 
biodiversity of St Giles Hill

• Improved children’s play 
area - North Walls

• Protect Kings school 
playing fields 

• Make more use of 
waterways around North 
Walls - canoe/rowing 
route/ loop around North 
Walls

• St Matthews fields - make 
more use of it - lack of 
parks/green space in 
North of town

• North Walls needs improved 
landscaping

• Demolish River Park - return 
to open space

• Improved open air seating for 
café culture

P
age 112



45

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Table Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Where are 
opportunities for 
development? 

Where are empty 
sites in need of 
development/
activity?

Are there existing 
sites/buildings that 
could work better or 
need investment?

Is it easy to move 
around Winchester? 

What are the barriers 
to moving around? 
What could improve? 

What would 
encourage you to 
walk or cycle more? 

Does Winchester have 
enough good quality 
open spaces? What can 
improve?

What do you want to 
see or do more of, and 
where?

What areas lack natural 
features (trees, water, 
parks)?

Where could the public 
realm be improved? 

C.2 • Private carparks - 
behind offices

• Tower carpark - staff 
floor given over to 
public parking

• Debenhams • Station Approach • Winchester is hilly
• Electric bikes will 

address this and increase 
bike use - need more 
cylce paths

• Electric bikes need 
lockable storage for 
batteries

• Cycle lane along North 
Walls - two way

• Single land - cars
• Hazard of mixing 

pedestrians/cycles
• Badger Farm road is 

a 40mph barrier for 
Oliver’s Battery

• Badger Farm needs 
better pedestrian 
access/connectivity 

• Cross city cycle route
• East/West connection 

needs improving
• Slower speed limits

• If developing Sir John 
Moore ensure a park

• Better sign posting to 
green space - St Giles Hill, 
St Catherines, etc.

• Improve maintenence/ 
biodiversity of St Giles Hill

• Improved children’s play 
area - North Walls

• Protect Kings school 
playing fields 

• Make more use of 
waterways around North 
Walls - canoe/rowing 
route/ loop around North 
Walls

• St Matthews fields - make 
more use of it - lack of 
parks/green space in 
North of town

• North Walls needs improved 
landscaping

• Demolish River Park - return 
to open space

• Improved open air seating for 
café culture

P
age 113



46

Design South EastWorkshop 2: Winchester Town

Design South East
Admirals Office
The Historic Dockyard
Chatham, Kent
ME4 4TZ

T  01634 401166
E  info@designsoutheast.org 
designsoutheast.org 

© Design South East 2021

P
age 114



1

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Winchester Design Workshops
Report of Workshop 3: Market Towns and 
Rural Villages

Marwell Hotel, Colden Common
16th November 2021

January 2022

P
age 115



2

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

P
age 116



3

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Contents

1  Introduction and Context ��������������������������������������5

1.1 Winchester Local Plan and the National Design 
Agenda .............................................................................. 5

1.2 Stakeholder Workshops ............................................. 6

2  Workshop Summary �������������������������������������������������7

2.1 Engagement Process ................................................. 7

2.3 Key Findings ............................................................. 8

2.2 Key Recommendations ............................................. 8

3  Ten Characteristics of a Well-Designed 

Place  �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9

3.1 National Design Guidance ........................................ 9

4  Ten Characteristics of Well-Designed     

Rural Settlements in Winchester  ���������������������������� 10

4.1 Ten Characteristics of Well-Designed Rural 
Settlements in Winchester ............................................... 10

5  Poll Findings ��������������������������������������������������������������� 11

5.1 Summary of Findings  ..............................................11

6  Successful Development ������������������������������������� 15

6.1 Key Findings ............................................................15

7  Poor Development ���������������������������������������������������17

7.1 Key Findings ............................................................17

8  Our Place Now ��������������������������������������������������������� 19

8.1 Postives ....................................................................19

8.2 Negatives .................................................................19

9  Our Place in the Future ����������������������������������������20

9.1 Key Findings  .......................................................... 20

10  Appendices ��������������������������������������������������������������22

10.1 Workshop Details .................................................. 22

10.2 Communications ................................................... 23

10.3 Workshop Agenda ................................................. 25

10.4 Workshop Explainer Sheet .................................... 28

10.5 Survey ................................................................... 29

10.6 Spreadsheet of Stakeholder Comments ..................31

10.7 Mapping of community feedback onto                
NMDC design parameters ............................................... 42

P
age 117



4

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Stakeholders at the Winchester Market Towns and Rural Villages Workshop

P
age 118



5

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

1 Introduction and Context

1�1 Winchester Local Plan and the 
National Design Agenda

The way people live their lives, travel, work and 
enjoy their spare time are all influenced by the 
quality of the environment, and the Local Plan 
shapes this for the future as well as helping to 
tackle the climate emergency. The early stage in 
the development of Winchester’s new Local Plan is 
important to support a high quality of life through 
high quality placemaking, both for residents and 
for visitors to Winchester and the wider district. 

Winchester City Council (WCC) has a number 
of policies in the adopted Local Plan that seek 
to secure high standards of design. These 
are supported by a ‘High Quality Places’ 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), Village 
Design Statements (VDS) and Local Area Design 
Statements (LADS) which provide guidance on how 
to apply policies in Winchester district and which 
inform the assessment of planning applications. 

The Government has strengthened the need 
to create high quality buildings and places 
as fundamental to planning and development 
processes. This objective is supported by the 
revised National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF), by the recent publication of the National 
Design Guide (NDG) and the piloting of the 
National Model Design Code (NMDC) toolkit. 

In line with the direction of travel at national level, 
Winchester City Council’s aspiration is for much 
greater emphasis on design driven policies and 
spatial planning in the revised Local Plan in order 
to deliver the highest quality design outcomes.

Figure 1.1: Stakeholders at the Winchester Market Towns 
and Rural Villages Workshop

Achieving Good Design is a Process

The National Planning Policy Framework defines 
what is expected for well-designed places and 
explains how local planning policies and decisions 
should support this. Well-designed places and 
buildings come about when a rigorous design 
process evolves into a design proposal. This starts 
with an analysis of the design brief and site context 
which influence the layout, form, appearance 
and details of the proposed development. 
Underpinning this must be a set of local design 
policies which provide clear and unambiguous 
guidance to inform the design process and to 
appraise the outcome.

P
age 119



6

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

1�2 Stakeholder Workshops

Winchester City Council is focusing on the 
changes that are required to the Local Plan to 
ensure delivery of high quality places. As such, 
the decision was taken to carry out a series of 
workshops for local stakeholders to inform the 
review of the Local Plan. The intention is to 
consider Winchester more holistically in terms 
of how the new Local Plan deals with design 
issues, as well as to consider the town and the 
wider district from a more spatial perspective. 
Design South East was commissioned to facilitate 
these workshops, carrying out three separate but 
complementary events to enable local people to 
have their say.   

Workshop 1 (Policy) focused on Local Plan design 
policy, bringing together an invited audience of 
representatives from both the public and private 
sectors to discuss and agree the effectiveness of 
the current Local Plan design policies and other 
documents, to identify any gaps and consider 
how these could potentially be filled through new 
policies or revisions to existing policies. The final 
exercise asked attendees to consider the role of 
High Quality Places SPD/LADs and VDS in light 
of the Government’s recent consultation on a 
National Model Design Code. 

Workshop 2 (Winchester Town) concentrated on 
more spatial matters and was an open invitation 
for local communities from the town to identify 
areas of brownfield/under used/disused space 
in Winchester where there might potentially be 
the opportunity for development. It was a chance 
for local people to have their say on where there 
may be opportunities to enhance the built and 
natural environment and, through theme-based 
discussions, to consider where and what those 
changes might be within Winchester Town.

Workshop 3 (Market Towns and Rural Villages), 
the topic of this report, gave an open invitation 
to communities from the surrounding market 
towns and rural villages to have their say and to 
bring their local knowledge to bear on how there 
could be positive change through development 
to improve outcomes for existing as well as new 
residents. The context for discussions was the 
extent to which existing Village Design Statements 
are delivering high-quality developments and 
whether any changes to policy may be required. 

Next Steps

The information in this report will form part of the 
evidence base for the new Local Plan. However, 
this does not mean that all the suggestions and 
recommendations will ultimately be incorporated 
into the plan. The inclusion of the priorities of 
workshop attendees in this report does not reflect 
the Council’s opinion. Any information included in 
the Local Plan will be consulted on as part of Reg 
18 plan. This would set a clear direction relating 
to where opportunities exist to refine WCC’s 
design policy and guidance in order to deliver 
high-quality development in Winchester’s rural 
settlements.  

Figure 1.2: Stakeholders at the Winchester Market 
Towns and Rural Villages Workshop

P
age 120



7

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Successful Development: 

• What does a successful development in your 
village look like?  

• If you have brought a photo, why did you 
choose this place?  

• Why do you think this is a well-designed 
place?  

• If no photo, think about a development that 
works well in your town or village. Why is it 
successful? 

Poor Development:

• Where are developments that are not 
successful or less successful?  

• What is it that doesn’t work so well?   

• Discuss and rate new development in your 
area against the 10 characteristics of a well-
designed place. 

The Future of your Town/Village:  

• Tell us 5 things that you really like about your 
place?   

• Tell us 5 things that you really don’t like about 
your place?  

• Think about the future of your place in 20 
years, how would you like your place to be?  

• What could be changed or improved? 

The findings of the workshops are summarised 
in the following chapters, and feedback has been 
mapped onto the 10 characteristics of a well-
designed place in Chapter 4, page 10. 

2 Workshop Summary

2�1 Engagement Process

The Winchester Market Town and Rural Villages 
Workshop (workshop 3)  was held on 16th 
November 2021 at Marwell Hotel in Colden 
Common and was split into an afternoon and 
evening session, with almost 70 attendees in total. 
The workshop focused on the rural villages and 
market towns.  

An online poll was taken at the beginning of 
the session relating to local design policy and 
guidance. The results could be viewed live at the 
workshops and are summarised here in Chapter 
5. Attendees were asked to consider well-designed 
places within their villages or local areas, 
submitting photographs to illustrate their ideas 
about well-designed new development. They were 
then asked to rate the quality of developments, 
looking at what was successful and not successful 
in relation to the ten characteristics of well-
designed places, as set out in the National Design 
Guide (see Chapter 3, page 9). The final exercise 
asked attendees to consider aspects they liked 
or disliked about their neighbourhoods and to 
consider the future of their place, thinking about 
how they would like it to be in 20 years’ time. 

Each session provided an opportunity for 
small group discussion followed by feedback 
to share thoughts and ideas with all attendees. 
The discussions were framed by the following 
questions: 

P
age 121



8

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

2�2 Key Recommendations2�3 Key Findings
• Not all new developments are considered to 

be of a high enough quality in terms of design 
and placemaking. The LP and VDSs need 
to provide clear and unambiguous design 
guidance to inform applicants of expectations 
and to enable officers to appraise quality 
during the pre-app process. 

• Character can be created through the social 
life of a village as much as through the 
physical features. New development should 
create the physical conditions for community 
life to flourish. 

• The relationship between village and 
open countryside and the gaps between 
settlements are highly valued characteristics 
of Winchester’s rural villages and market 
towns. New development must respect this 
context and setting. 

• Local heritage and vernacular architecture 
are treasured assets that define the character 
and identity of Winchester’s rural settlements. 
New development must draw inspiration 
from and be responsive to the distinctive 
characteristics of places. 

• The built form and massing of the rural 
towns and villages are positive characteristics 
that contribute to local character. New 
development should sit comfortably within 
this context.  

• A wide variety of home types and sizes 
is needed for Winchester’s villages to be 
sustainable, including provision of genuinely 
affordable housing. New development should 
address any gaps in provision. 

• Dominance of traffic and parked vehicles 
destroys village character and village life. 
New development must integrate parking 
to protect the street scene and enhance 
opportunities for walking and cycling 
wherever feasible.

• Design guidance should set out key 
considerations that applicants need to 
evidence in their Design and Access 
Statement to demonstrate a design 
development process grounded in and 
influenced by an understanding of the unique 
rural context and identity of each settlement. 

• Refresh the VDSs to ensure that guidance is 
relevant in the context of social, economic 
and climate/environmental change, and 
consider replacing the VDSs with village 
design codes, which would be mandatory 
rather than discretionary in terms of design 
considerations. 

• Ensure that high-level findings of this report 
feed into the site allocation process. Take a 
design-led approach to ensure protection 
of the relationship between village and 
open countryside and of the gaps between 
settlements. 

• Work with representatives who live and work 
in these communities to produce exemplary 
design guidance to improve the quality of 
new developments in their villages. Embed 
meaningful community consultation in the 
development process. 

P
age 122



9

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

3 Ten Characteristics of a Well-Designed Place 

3�1 National Design Guidance

The National Design Guide identifies ten 
characteristics of a well-designed place (fig. 3.1). 
These characteristics work together to:

• create the physical Character of a place; 

• help to nurture and sustain a sense of 
Community; 

• positively address environmental issues 
affecting Climate. 

Attendees were asked to evaluate the success of 
new development in Winchester’s market towns 
and rural settlements in relation to these ten 
characteristics.  

Figure 3.1: The ten characteristics of a well-designed 
place, National Design Guide (2021) p.8

P
age 123



10

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

4 Ten Characteristics of Well-Designed Rural Settlements in Winchester 

4�1 Locally popular development

A set of locally-identified priorities emerged 
from the workshop discussions that drew on the 
characteristics that attendees valued about their 
existing towns and villages (figs. 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4).

These priorities have been summarised here 
in relation to the ten characteristics of a well-
designed place (fig. 4.5), capturing the attendees’ 
shared aspirations for any new development within 
Winchester’s rural settlements to address, protect 
and enhance Character, Community and Climate. 

Context - Respect the existing rural context and 
character. 

Identity - Respond to the vernacular but embrace 
innovation.

Built Form - Maintain the open space between 
settlements and respect the existing scale of 
development.

Movement - Reduce the dominance of cars and 
encourage sustainable modes of transport. 

Nature - Support and encourage local biodiversity. 

Public Space - Protect the spaces that foster 
community cohesion. 

Uses - Provide a variety of facilities to support a 
thriving community.

Homes and Buildings - Offer a variety of house 
types to meet local needs.

Resources - Embrace new technologies to support 
the needs of current and future residents. 

Lifespan - Deliver quality, adaptability, and 
durability.

Figure 4.1: Local materials 
shaping the identity of 
Bishop’s Waltham

Figure 4.2: Green corridor 
supporting biodiversity in 
Waltham Chase

Figure 4.3: A thriving village life in Bishop’s Waltham

Figure 4.4: The strong local character of Alresford Figure 4.5: Priorities to ensure successful growth of 
Winchester’s market towns and rural villages

P
age 124



11

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

5 Poll Findings

5�1 Summary of Findings 

Workshop attendees represented the market towns, 
villages and rural areas across the length and 
breadth of Winchester district (figs. 5.1, 5.2 and 
5.3). The context for the workshop discussions 
was the extent to which existing Village Design 
Statements (VDS) are delivering high-quality 
developments.

VDSs are produced by local groups and provide 
guidance on the distinctive features of a village 
that the local community wishes to see enhanced 
or protected. VDSs are adopted by Winchester City 
Council as Supplementary Planning Documents 
to the Local Plan. Their purpose is to influence 
decisions on the design and location of new 
developments and to manage change successfully. 

The quick poll revealed that the majority of 
attendees knew what a VDS was, but not so many 
knew whether there was a VDS for their local 
village or had read their VDS (fig. 5.4, page 12). Not 
all those who attended would have been directly 
involved in the production or application of this 
guidance.  

Only one fifth of attendees thought that the Local 
Plan was effective at helping to deliver well-
designed places, whereas two fifths of attendees 
considered that recent new development fits in well 
with the local area (fig. 5.5, page 13). 

Question 1: Where do you live/where is your area of interest? 

Figure 5.1: Geographic distribution of 
workshop attendees

Figure 5.2: Bishop’s WalthamFigure 5.3: Wickham

P
age 125



12

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Question 2: Do you know what a Village 

Design Statement is? 

Question 3: Is there a Village Design 

Statement for your village/nearest 

village?

Questions 4: Have you read your local 

Village Design Statement?

Question 5: Is your Village Design 

Statement up to date?

Figure 5.4: Quick Poll findings relating to 
Village Design Statements

P
age 126



13

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Question 6: Do you think the current 

Local Plan helps to deliver well designed 

places?

Question 7: In general, how would you 

rate the quality of new development in 

your area?

Figure 5.5: Quick Poll findings relating to 
design quality of new developments

Question 8: In general, do you think 

recent new development fits in well with 

your local area?

P
age 127



14

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Question 9: What do you value most about the place where you live?

Figure 5.6: Quick Poll findings describing those aspects 
that the community most value about their places

Figure 5.7: Village life in Bishop’s Waltham

(Summary of Quick Poll findings contd.)

The rural setting, open spaces, village character 
and sense of community were the qualities of 
Winchester’s market towns and rural settlements 
that were the most highly valued by attendees (fig. 
5.7), as demonstrated by the Quick Poll findings 
(fig. 5.6). P

age 128



15

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

6 Successful Development

Figure 6.1: Image of interactive whiteboard showing stakeholder 
comments (colours have no relationship with NDG characteristics)

Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments

Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments

Exercise 3: The future of your town/village Exercise 3: The future of your town/village

Session 1: 15:30 - 17:50 Session 2: 18:00 - 20:00

Winchester Workshop 2 - Market Towns and Rural Villages

Consider 
maintenance 

into the 
future

Parking - 
adequate 

spaces and 
locations

Solar panels - 
sustainability

Historic 
street 

pattern

Brownfield 
sites

Roofscape

Materials 
to match 

local 
history

Network 
of Open 

space

Sustainable 
drainage

Biodiversity

Bungalows
Neighbourhood 
Plan sets design 

guidance

Consider 
ends 
users

Reflect local 
environment

Repurpose 
existing 

buildings

New 
technologies

Transport a 
challenge - 

how to 
offer choice

Need for space 
for electric 

vehicle 
charging

Specifications

Difficult to 
assess 
design 

aesthetics

Does new 
development 
always have 

to "fit in"?

Good build 
quality - 
longevity

Maintenance 
of landscape 

areas into 
future

Long term 
maintenance 
of streets and 

lighting

Appropriate 
garden 

types/sizes for 
different 
people

Avoiding 
standard 

house 
types

Permeability 
and legibility

No fake 
chimneys

Sustainability: 
transport, air 

quality

Affordable 
housing

County- wide 
approach - 
joined- up 
working

Building for 
an ageing 

population

Genuine 
housing 

choice for 
young people

Contemporary 
design but 

traditional feel

Open 
spaces, 

attractive 
SuDS

Pedestrian 
legibility 

and feeling 
of safety

Public 
open 
space

Example: 
Winchester 

Village

Overall 
concept 
for site.

Think 
about end 
user - how 
people live

Affordability
Appropriate 

density

Fits with local 
context and 
works well 

with local area

Important for 
individual 

buildings and 
large 

developments

Hedges, 
vegetation

Appropriateness 
of type of 

development

Garages big 
enough for cars 

(if they are 
counted as 

parking spaces)

Optimising 
space. Use 
basements

Design- led, 
holistic approach. 

Green spaces 
built- in. Rather 

than bolt- on 
developments

Recognise how we 
live today. Waste 
management/bin 

storage

Improving 
eyesore 

sites

Flats designed 
as large, sub- 

divided houses

Safe 
access

New 
facilities - 

village halls, 
play areas

Maintain open 
countryside - 
impression of 

place in 
countryside

Maintain 
individual 

settlements - 
not merging

Variation of 
house types and 

styles - large 
and small 
properties

Sense of 
community - 

holistic 
neighbourhoods

Adequate facilities 
for the population 

- contribute to 
social 

infrastructure

Small housing 
- not enough 
storage space 

or space to 
grow

Street widths not 
enough for 
parking + 

movement. Leads 
to parking on 

pavements

Connecting the dots 
with movement: 

New development 
adding pressure to 
wider road network

Design 
Quality not 

followed 
through on

Roof pitch out 
of context - 

jars with local 
character

Building not 
responding 

to local 
context

Criteria missing: 
buildability, 

usability, 
maintainability. 
Long term use 

and maintenance

Physical and 
social 

infrastructure, 
local centres

New development 
not supported by 

infrastructure. 
Who delivers this?

Appropriate 
Density - trying 
to squeeze in 
too much on 

site

Streetscene 
- hedges, 

car parking

Infrastructure 
delivery not 

keeping pace 
with housing 
development

Process: Would 
like to see more 
communication 

between 
village/parish, city 

and developer

Lifeless, 
soulless 

character - 
lacking 

character

Lack of 
cohesion and 

overall plan for 
new 

developments

Intimidating 
design. Not 

blending in with 
countryside 

setting

Economics 
driving down 

design quality. 
Design not 

valued.

Where does 
funding come 
from for social 
infrastructure?

Lack of funding 
for maintenance. 
Designing for low 

maintenance 
rather than 

quality

Changing 
demographics 

of small 
communities

Piecemeal 
developments 

over time change 
character of place

Over- 
development 

of sites.

Not in keeping 
with 

streetscene 
and local 
character

Mismatch 
between policy 

and design. 
Caveats in 

policy wording

Lack of 
diversity of 
house sizes

Flood risk - 
location is 
important

Blocking 
views

Build quality 
lacking - 
material 
choice, 

detailing

Delivery of 
affordable 

housing - pepper- 
potting not always 

working

"Council 
housing" can be 

strong 
community - not 

delivered well

Car dominance - 
developments 
far away from 

public transport

People need to 
drive - roads do 

not have 
capacity/access 
to motorways

Cycling - 
topography 

makes 
difficult

Some rural 
communities do 
not have public 

transport but they 
need housing

Need to 
plan for 

necessary 
driving

Capacity 
and safety 
of roads

Cul de sacs - 
lack of access/ 
permeability 

through 
developments

Traffic 
management

Enforcement 
of 

unauthorised 
development

Adequate 
site for 

Travellers

Create new 
villages rather 

than 
expanding 

existing ones

Preserve 
green spaces 

around 
villages

Transport: 
better cycle 
ways, buses, 

public transport. 
New technology

New dev 
next to 

transport 
hubs

More pubs, 
fewer cars, 

more 
railways

Community 
spirit, 
village 

character

Opportunities for 
young people to 
stay in villages - 

homes and 
employment

Community 
uses

Preserve 
best 

Landscapes

Contemporary 
architecture, 
sustainable 

design

Don't stifle 
architectural 
innovation

More input from 
local community 
- role in decision 

making

Range of 
house sizes 

available

Conserve 
heritage/history

Development 
to respond to 

history of 
place

Densify 
existing places 

- make 
sustainable 
use of land

The same 
as it is 
today!

Organic 
growth

High quality 
materials in 

development 
- long lasting

Sense of 
pride and 
identity

Village 
characteristics 

- festivals, 
community 

events

Variety of 
house types 
and sizes - 
range of 

demographics

Modern 
infrastructure 
- broadband, 

sewerage

Reduce 
dominance of car 
in villages - white 
vans, cars cutting 

through, noise

Safer 
streets

Covid- proofed 
places. Working 
from home. Be 
ready for other 

pandemics

Adapt places 
to post- 

pandemic 
future - "new 

normal"

Bustling 
high 

street

Local facilities. 
New 

development 
can support 

local economy

Accommodation 
fit for care 
needs - or 
variety of 
houses

Make good use of 
space - 

regeneration. 
Brownfield sites. 

Infill development

Protect 
open spaces 

around 
villages

More flexibility 
for needed 

development 
in rural areas

Biodiversity, 
space for 
nature.

Villages that 
are good for 
nature and 
wildlife - do 

more!

Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments

Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments

Exercise 3: The future of your town/village Exercise 3: The future of your town/village

Session 1: 15:30 - 17:50 Session 2: 18:00 - 20:00

Winchester Workshop 2 - Market Towns and Rural Villages

Consider 
maintenance 

into the 
future

Parking - 
adequate 

spaces and 
locations

Solar panels - 
sustainability

Historic 
street 

pattern

Brownfield 
sites

Roofscape

Materials 
to match 

local 
history

Network 
of Open 

space

Sustainable 
drainage

Biodiversity

Bungalows
Neighbourhood 
Plan sets design 

guidance

Consider 
ends 
users

Reflect local 
environment

Repurpose 
existing 

buildings

New 
technologies

Transport a 
challenge - 

how to 
offer choice

Need for space 
for electric 

vehicle 
charging

Specifications

Difficult to 
assess 
design 

aesthetics

Does new 
development 
always have 

to "fit in"?

Good build 
quality - 
longevity

Maintenance 
of landscape 

areas into 
future

Long term 
maintenance 
of streets and 

lighting

Appropriate 
garden 

types/sizes for 
different 
people

Avoiding 
standard 

house 
types

Permeability 
and legibility

No fake 
chimneys

Sustainability: 
transport, air 

quality

Affordable 
housing

County- wide 
approach - 
joined- up 
working

Building for 
an ageing 

population

Genuine 
housing 

choice for 
young people

Contemporary 
design but 

traditional feel

Open 
spaces, 

attractive 
SuDS

Pedestrian 
legibility 

and feeling 
of safety

Public 
open 
space

Example: 
Winchester 

Village

Overall 
concept 
for site.

Think 
about end 
user - how 
people live

Affordability
Appropriate 

density

Fits with local 
context and 
works well 

with local area

Important for 
individual 

buildings and 
large 

developments

Hedges, 
vegetation

Appropriateness 
of type of 

development

Garages big 
enough for cars 

(if they are 
counted as 

parking spaces)

Optimising 
space. Use 
basements

Design- led, 
holistic approach. 

Green spaces 
built- in. Rather 

than bolt- on 
developments

Recognise how we 
live today. Waste 
management/bin 

storage

Improving 
eyesore 

sites

Flats designed 
as large, sub- 

divided houses

Safe 
access

New 
facilities - 

village halls, 
play areas

Maintain open 
countryside - 
impression of 

place in 
countryside

Maintain 
individual 

settlements - 
not merging

Variation of 
house types and 

styles - large 
and small 
properties

Sense of 
community - 

holistic 
neighbourhoods

Adequate facilities 
for the population 

- contribute to 
social 

infrastructure

Small housing 
- not enough 
storage space 

or space to 
grow

Street widths not 
enough for 
parking + 

movement. Leads 
to parking on 

pavements

Connecting the dots 
with movement: 

New development 
adding pressure to 
wider road network

Design 
Quality not 

followed 
through on

Roof pitch out 
of context - 

jars with local 
character

Building not 
responding 

to local 
context

Criteria missing: 
buildability, 

usability, 
maintainability. 
Long term use 

and maintenance

Physical and 
social 

infrastructure, 
local centres

New development 
not supported by 

infrastructure. 
Who delivers this?

Appropriate 
Density - trying 
to squeeze in 
too much on 

site

Streetscene 
- hedges, 

car parking

Infrastructure 
delivery not 

keeping pace 
with housing 
development

Process: Would 
like to see more 
communication 

between 
village/parish, city 

and developer

Lifeless, 
soulless 

character - 
lacking 

character

Lack of 
cohesion and 

overall plan for 
new 

developments

Intimidating 
design. Not 

blending in with 
countryside 

setting

Economics 
driving down 

design quality. 
Design not 

valued.

Where does 
funding come 
from for social 
infrastructure?

Lack of funding 
for maintenance. 
Designing for low 

maintenance 
rather than 

quality

Changing 
demographics 

of small 
communities

Piecemeal 
developments 

over time change 
character of place

Over- 
development 

of sites.

Not in keeping 
with 

streetscene 
and local 
character

Mismatch 
between policy 

and design. 
Caveats in 

policy wording

Lack of 
diversity of 
house sizes

Flood risk - 
location is 
important

Blocking 
views

Build quality 
lacking - 
material 
choice, 

detailing

Delivery of 
affordable 

housing - pepper- 
potting not always 

working

"Council 
housing" can be 

strong 
community - not 

delivered well

Car dominance - 
developments 
far away from 

public transport

People need to 
drive - roads do 

not have 
capacity/access 
to motorways

Cycling - 
topography 

makes 
difficult

Some rural 
communities do 
not have public 

transport but they 
need housing

Need to 
plan for 

necessary 
driving

Capacity 
and safety 
of roads

Cul de sacs - 
lack of access/ 
permeability 

through 
developments

Traffic 
management

Enforcement 
of 

unauthorised 
development

Adequate 
site for 

Travellers

Create new 
villages rather 

than 
expanding 

existing ones

Preserve 
green spaces 

around 
villages

Transport: 
better cycle 
ways, buses, 

public transport. 
New technology

New dev 
next to 

transport 
hubs

More pubs, 
fewer cars, 

more 
railways

Community 
spirit, 
village 

character

Opportunities for 
young people to 
stay in villages - 

homes and 
employment

Community 
uses

Preserve 
best 

Landscapes

Contemporary 
architecture, 
sustainable 

design

Don't stifle 
architectural 
innovation

More input from 
local community 
- role in decision 

making

Range of 
house sizes 

available

Conserve 
heritage/history

Development 
to respond to 

history of 
place

Densify 
existing places 

- make 
sustainable 
use of land

The same 
as it is 
today!

Organic 
growth

High quality 
materials in 

development 
- long lasting

Sense of 
pride and 
identity

Village 
characteristics 

- festivals, 
community 

events

Variety of 
house types 
and sizes - 
range of 

demographics

Modern 
infrastructure 
- broadband, 

sewerage

Reduce 
dominance of car 
in villages - white 
vans, cars cutting 

through, noise

Safer 
streets

Covid- proofed 
places. Working 
from home. Be 
ready for other 

pandemics

Adapt places 
to post- 

pandemic 
future - "new 

normal"

Bustling 
high 

street

Local facilities. 
New 

development 
can support 

local economy

Accommodation 
fit for care 
needs - or 
variety of 
houses

Make good use of 
space - 

regeneration. 
Brownfield sites. 

Infill development

Protect 
open spaces 

around 
villages

More flexibility 
for needed 

development 
in rural areas

Biodiversity, 
space for 
nature.

Villages that 
are good for 
nature and 
wildlife - do 

more!

6�1 Key Findings

Successful new developments were considered to 
be those that:

• Respect and reflect the rural nature of their 
settings;  

• Integrate landscape and open spaces, 
maintaining the impression of a settlement 
located in the countryside; 

• Avoid standard house types and take 
inspiration from the local vernacular; 

• Provide a wide variety of home types, 
considering both the ageing population and 
housing for young people;

• Consider movement on a wider scale and 
offer a genuine choice of transport options, 
including safe walking routes; 

• Are built to last, maintained in the long 
term and incorporate new sustainable 
technologies.

The feedback from attendees was captured 
on a virtual whiteboard (fig. 6.1) and has been 
mapped against the National Design Guide’s ten 
characteristics of a well-designed place in the table 
that follows. 

P
age 129



16

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Movement

• Parking - adequate spaces and locations 
• Transport a challenge - how to offer choice 
• Need for space for electric vehicle charging 
• Permeability and legibility 
• Sustainability: transport, air quality 
• County-wide approach - joined-up working 
• Pedestrian legibility and feeling of safety 
• Garages big enough for cars (if they are counted 

as parking spaces) 
• Safe access

Feedback mapped against the NDG’s Ten Characteristics

Built Form

• Roofscape 
• Materials to match local history 
• Bungalows 
• Avoiding standard house types 
• Appropriate density 
• Flats designed as large, sub-divided houses 
• Variation of house types and styles - large and 

small properties

Nature

• Sustainable drainage 
• Biodiversity 
• Network of Open space 
• Maintenance of landscape areas into future 
• Appropriate garden types/sizes for different 

people 
• Open spaces, attractive SuDS 
• Hedges, vegetation 
• Maintain open countryside - impression of 

place in countryside 
• Maintain individual settlements - not merging

Identity

• Materials to match local history 
• Avoiding standard house types 
• No fake chimneys 
• Affordable housing 
• Contemporary design but traditional feel 
• Fits with local context and works well with local 

area 
• Maintain individual settlements - not merging

Public Space

• Network of Open space 
• Public open space

Uses

• Building for an ageing population 
• Affordable housing 
• Genuine housing choice for young people 
• Appropriate garden types/sizes for different 

people 
• Think about end user - how people live 
• New facilities - village halls, play areas 

Homes and Buildings

• Flats designed as large, sub-divided houses

Resources

• Solar panels – sustainability 
• Repurpose existing buildings 
• New technologies 
• Need for space for electric vehicle charging 
• Specifications

Lifespan

• Consider maintenance into the future 
• Good build quality – longevity 
• Maintenance of landscape areas into future 
• Long term maintenance of streets and lighting 
• Recognise how we live today. Waste 

management/bin storage

General

• Neighbourhood Plan sets design guidance 
• Difficult to assess design aesthetics 
• Affordable housing 
• County-wide approach - joined-up working 
• Important for individual buildings and large 

developments 
• Optimising space. Use basements 
• Improving eyesore sites 
• Sense of community - holistic neighbourhoods

Context

• Historic street pattern 
• Brownfield sites 
• Reflect local environment 
• Materials to match local history 
• Consider ends users 
• Bungalows 
• Does new development always have to “fit in”? 
• Overall concept for site. 
• Fits with local context and works well with local 

area 
• Appropriateness of type of development 
• Design-led, holistic approach. Green spaces 

built-in. Rather than bolt-on developments 
• Maintain open countryside - impression of 

place in countryside 
• Maintain individual settlements - not merging

Uses (continued)

• Recognise how we live today. Waste 
management/bin storage 

• Adequate facilities for the population - 
contribute to social infrastructure

P
age 130



17

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

7 Poor Development

Figure 7.1: Image of interactive whiteboard showing stakeholder comments 
(colours have no relationship with NDG characteristics)

7�1 Key Findings

The key findings from discussions about 
developments that attendees considered to be 
unsuccessful were that: 

• Movement networks and parking 
arrangements were detrimental to quality 
of place and quality of life. Use of private 
vehicles was widely considered to be 
necessary for rural life, which can lead 
to conflicts when insufficient parking is 
provided and local roads do not have the 
capacity to accommodate additional cars. 

• Attendees felt that there were cases of over-
development (‘trying to squeeze too much 
on site’) and that new developments did 
not offer sufficient choice of home types to 
accommodate a wide diversity of residents. 

• Some new developments appear bland, 
lacking in character and do not reflect the 
local character and context or into a cohesive, 
overarching plan for the growth of the place, 
which exacerbates their impact.

Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments

Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments

Exercise 3: The future of your town/village Exercise 3: The future of your town/village

Session 1: 15:30 - 17:50 Session 2: 18:00 - 20:00

Winchester Workshop 2 - Market Towns and Rural Villages

Consider 
maintenance 

into the 
future

Parking - 
adequate 

spaces and 
locations

Solar panels - 
sustainability

Historic 
street 

pattern

Brownfield 
sites

Roofscape

Materials 
to match 

local 
history

Network 
of Open 

space

Sustainable 
drainage

Biodiversity

Bungalows
Neighbourhood 
Plan sets design 

guidance

Consider 
ends 
users

Reflect local 
environment

Repurpose 
existing 

buildings

New 
technologies

Transport a 
challenge - 

how to 
offer choice

Need for space 
for electric 

vehicle 
charging

Specifications

Difficult to 
assess 
design 

aesthetics

Does new 
development 
always have 

to "fit in"?

Good build 
quality - 
longevity

Maintenance 
of landscape 

areas into 
future

Long term 
maintenance 
of streets and 

lighting

Appropriate 
garden 

types/sizes for 
different 
people

Avoiding 
standard 

house 
types

Permeability 
and legibility

No fake 
chimneys

Sustainability: 
transport, air 

quality

Affordable 
housing

County- wide 
approach - 
joined- up 
working

Building for 
an ageing 

population

Genuine 
housing 

choice for 
young people

Contemporary 
design but 

traditional feel

Open 
spaces, 

attractive 
SuDS

Pedestrian 
legibility 

and feeling 
of safety

Public 
open 
space

Example: 
Winchester 

Village

Overall 
concept 
for site.

Think 
about end 
user - how 
people live

Affordability
Appropriate 

density

Fits with local 
context and 
works well 

with local area

Important for 
individual 

buildings and 
large 

developments

Hedges, 
vegetation

Appropriateness 
of type of 

development

Garages big 
enough for cars 

(if they are 
counted as 

parking spaces)

Optimising 
space. Use 
basements

Design- led, 
holistic approach. 

Green spaces 
built- in. Rather 

than bolt- on 
developments

Recognise how we 
live today. Waste 
management/bin 

storage

Improving 
eyesore 

sites

Flats designed 
as large, sub- 

divided houses

Safe 
access

New 
facilities - 

village halls, 
play areas

Maintain open 
countryside - 
impression of 

place in 
countryside

Maintain 
individual 

settlements - 
not merging

Variation of 
house types and 

styles - large 
and small 
properties

Sense of 
community - 

holistic 
neighbourhoods

Adequate facilities 
for the population 

- contribute to 
social 

infrastructure

Small housing 
- not enough 
storage space 

or space to 
grow

Street widths not 
enough for 
parking + 

movement. Leads 
to parking on 

pavements

Connecting the dots 
with movement: 

New development 
adding pressure to 
wider road network

Design 
Quality not 

followed 
through on

Roof pitch out 
of context - 

jars with local 
character

Building not 
responding 

to local 
context

Criteria missing: 
buildability, 

usability, 
maintainability. 
Long term use 

and maintenance

Physical and 
social 

infrastructure, 
local centres

New development 
not supported by 

infrastructure. 
Who delivers this?

Appropriate 
Density - trying 
to squeeze in 
too much on 

site

Streetscene 
- hedges, 

car parking

Infrastructure 
delivery not 

keeping pace 
with housing 
development

Process: Would 
like to see more 
communication 

between 
village/parish, city 

and developer

Lifeless, 
soulless 

character - 
lacking 

character

Lack of 
cohesion and 

overall plan for 
new 

developments

Intimidating 
design. Not 

blending in with 
countryside 

setting

Economics 
driving down 

design quality. 
Design not 

valued.

Where does 
funding come 
from for social 
infrastructure?

Lack of funding 
for maintenance. 
Designing for low 

maintenance 
rather than 

quality

Changing 
demographics 

of small 
communities

Piecemeal 
developments 

over time change 
character of place

Over- 
development 

of sites.

Not in keeping 
with 

streetscene 
and local 
character

Mismatch 
between policy 

and design. 
Caveats in 

policy wording

Lack of 
diversity of 
house sizes

Flood risk - 
location is 
important

Blocking 
views

Build quality 
lacking - 
material 
choice, 

detailing

Delivery of 
affordable 

housing - pepper- 
potting not always 

working

"Council 
housing" can be 

strong 
community - not 

delivered well

Car dominance - 
developments 
far away from 

public transport

People need to 
drive - roads do 

not have 
capacity/access 
to motorways

Cycling - 
topography 

makes 
difficult

Some rural 
communities do 
not have public 

transport but they 
need housing

Need to 
plan for 

necessary 
driving

Capacity 
and safety 
of roads

Cul de sacs - 
lack of access/ 
permeability 

through 
developments

Traffic 
management

Enforcement 
of 

unauthorised 
development

Adequate 
site for 

Travellers

Create new 
villages rather 

than 
expanding 

existing ones

Preserve 
green spaces 

around 
villages

Transport: 
better cycle 
ways, buses, 

public transport. 
New technology

New dev 
next to 

transport 
hubs

More pubs, 
fewer cars, 

more 
railways

Community 
spirit, 
village 

character

Opportunities for 
young people to 
stay in villages - 

homes and 
employment

Community 
uses

Preserve 
best 

Landscapes

Contemporary 
architecture, 
sustainable 

design

Don't stifle 
architectural 
innovation

More input from 
local community 
- role in decision 

making

Range of 
house sizes 

available

Conserve 
heritage/history

Development 
to respond to 

history of 
place

Densify 
existing places 

- make 
sustainable 
use of land

The same 
as it is 
today!

Organic 
growth

High quality 
materials in 

development 
- long lasting

Sense of 
pride and 
identity

Village 
characteristics 

- festivals, 
community 

events

Variety of 
house types 
and sizes - 
range of 

demographics

Modern 
infrastructure 
- broadband, 

sewerage

Reduce 
dominance of car 
in villages - white 
vans, cars cutting 

through, noise

Safer 
streets

Covid- proofed 
places. Working 
from home. Be 
ready for other 

pandemics

Adapt places 
to post- 

pandemic 
future - "new 

normal"

Bustling 
high 

street

Local facilities. 
New 

development 
can support 

local economy

Accommodation 
fit for care 
needs - or 
variety of 
houses

Make good use of 
space - 

regeneration. 
Brownfield sites. 

Infill development

Protect 
open spaces 

around 
villages

More flexibility 
for needed 

development 
in rural areas

Biodiversity, 
space for 
nature.

Villages that 
are good for 
nature and 
wildlife - do 

more!

Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments

Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments

Exercise 3: The future of your town/village Exercise 3: The future of your town/village

Session 1: 15:30 - 17:50 Session 2: 18:00 - 20:00

Winchester Workshop 2 - Market Towns and Rural Villages

Consider 
maintenance 

into the 
future

Parking - 
adequate 

spaces and 
locations

Solar panels - 
sustainability

Historic 
street 

pattern

Brownfield 
sites

Roofscape

Materials 
to match 

local 
history

Network 
of Open 

space

Sustainable 
drainage

Biodiversity

Bungalows
Neighbourhood 
Plan sets design 

guidance

Consider 
ends 
users

Reflect local 
environment

Repurpose 
existing 

buildings

New 
technologies

Transport a 
challenge - 

how to 
offer choice

Need for space 
for electric 

vehicle 
charging

Specifications

Difficult to 
assess 
design 

aesthetics

Does new 
development 
always have 

to "fit in"?

Good build 
quality - 
longevity

Maintenance 
of landscape 

areas into 
future

Long term 
maintenance 
of streets and 

lighting

Appropriate 
garden 

types/sizes for 
different 
people

Avoiding 
standard 

house 
types

Permeability 
and legibility

No fake 
chimneys

Sustainability: 
transport, air 

quality

Affordable 
housing

County- wide 
approach - 
joined- up 
working

Building for 
an ageing 

population

Genuine 
housing 

choice for 
young people

Contemporary 
design but 

traditional feel

Open 
spaces, 

attractive 
SuDS

Pedestrian 
legibility 

and feeling 
of safety

Public 
open 
space

Example: 
Winchester 

Village

Overall 
concept 
for site.

Think 
about end 
user - how 
people live

Affordability
Appropriate 

density

Fits with local 
context and 
works well 

with local area

Important for 
individual 

buildings and 
large 

developments

Hedges, 
vegetation

Appropriateness 
of type of 

development

Garages big 
enough for cars 

(if they are 
counted as 

parking spaces)

Optimising 
space. Use 
basements

Design- led, 
holistic approach. 

Green spaces 
built- in. Rather 

than bolt- on 
developments

Recognise how we 
live today. Waste 
management/bin 

storage

Improving 
eyesore 

sites

Flats designed 
as large, sub- 

divided houses

Safe 
access

New 
facilities - 

village halls, 
play areas

Maintain open 
countryside - 
impression of 

place in 
countryside

Maintain 
individual 

settlements - 
not merging

Variation of 
house types and 

styles - large 
and small 
properties

Sense of 
community - 

holistic 
neighbourhoods

Adequate facilities 
for the population 

- contribute to 
social 

infrastructure

Small housing 
- not enough 
storage space 

or space to 
grow

Street widths not 
enough for 
parking + 

movement. Leads 
to parking on 

pavements

Connecting the dots 
with movement: 

New development 
adding pressure to 
wider road network

Design 
Quality not 

followed 
through on

Roof pitch out 
of context - 

jars with local 
character

Building not 
responding 

to local 
context

Criteria missing: 
buildability, 

usability, 
maintainability. 
Long term use 

and maintenance

Physical and 
social 

infrastructure, 
local centres

New development 
not supported by 

infrastructure. 
Who delivers this?

Appropriate 
Density - trying 
to squeeze in 
too much on 

site

Streetscene 
- hedges, 

car parking

Infrastructure 
delivery not 

keeping pace 
with housing 
development

Process: Would 
like to see more 
communication 

between 
village/parish, city 

and developer

Lifeless, 
soulless 

character - 
lacking 

character

Lack of 
cohesion and 

overall plan for 
new 

developments

Intimidating 
design. Not 

blending in with 
countryside 

setting

Economics 
driving down 

design quality. 
Design not 

valued.

Where does 
funding come 
from for social 
infrastructure?

Lack of funding 
for maintenance. 
Designing for low 

maintenance 
rather than 

quality

Changing 
demographics 

of small 
communities

Piecemeal 
developments 

over time change 
character of place

Over- 
development 

of sites.

Not in keeping 
with 

streetscene 
and local 
character

Mismatch 
between policy 

and design. 
Caveats in 

policy wording

Lack of 
diversity of 
house sizes

Flood risk - 
location is 
important

Blocking 
views

Build quality 
lacking - 
material 
choice, 

detailing

Delivery of 
affordable 

housing - pepper- 
potting not always 

working

"Council 
housing" can be 

strong 
community - not 

delivered well

Car dominance - 
developments 
far away from 

public transport

People need to 
drive - roads do 

not have 
capacity/access 
to motorways

Cycling - 
topography 

makes 
difficult

Some rural 
communities do 
not have public 

transport but they 
need housing

Need to 
plan for 

necessary 
driving

Capacity 
and safety 
of roads

Cul de sacs - 
lack of access/ 
permeability 

through 
developments

Traffic 
management

Enforcement 
of 

unauthorised 
development

Adequate 
site for 

Travellers

Create new 
villages rather 

than 
expanding 

existing ones

Preserve 
green spaces 

around 
villages

Transport: 
better cycle 
ways, buses, 

public transport. 
New technology

New dev 
next to 

transport 
hubs

More pubs, 
fewer cars, 

more 
railways

Community 
spirit, 
village 

character

Opportunities for 
young people to 
stay in villages - 

homes and 
employment

Community 
uses

Preserve 
best 

Landscapes

Contemporary 
architecture, 
sustainable 

design

Don't stifle 
architectural 
innovation

More input from 
local community 
- role in decision 

making

Range of 
house sizes 

available

Conserve 
heritage/history

Development 
to respond to 

history of 
place

Densify 
existing places 

- make 
sustainable 
use of land

The same 
as it is 
today!

Organic 
growth

High quality 
materials in 

development 
- long lasting

Sense of 
pride and 
identity

Village 
characteristics 

- festivals, 
community 

events

Variety of 
house types 
and sizes - 
range of 

demographics

Modern 
infrastructure 
- broadband, 

sewerage

Reduce 
dominance of car 
in villages - white 
vans, cars cutting 

through, noise

Safer 
streets

Covid- proofed 
places. Working 
from home. Be 
ready for other 

pandemics

Adapt places 
to post- 

pandemic 
future - "new 

normal"

Bustling 
high 

street

Local facilities. 
New 

development 
can support 

local economy

Accommodation 
fit for care 
needs - or 
variety of 
houses

Make good use of 
space - 

regeneration. 
Brownfield sites. 

Infill development

Protect 
open spaces 

around 
villages

More flexibility 
for needed 

development 
in rural areas

Biodiversity, 
space for 
nature.

Villages that 
are good for 
nature and 
wildlife - do 

more!

P
age 131



18

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Context

• Roof pitch out of context - jars with local 
character 

• Building not responding to local context 

Movement (cont.)

• Streetscene - hedges, car parking 
• Blocking views 
• Car dominance - developments far away from 

public transport 
• People need to drive - roads do not have 

capacity/access to motorways 
• Cycling - topography makes difficult 
• Some rural communities do not have public 

transport but they need housing 
• Capacity and safety of roads 
• Need to plan for necessary driving 
• Cul de sacs - lack of access/ permeability 

through developments 

Nature

• Flood risk - location is important 

Public Space

• N/A

Uses

• Physical and social infrastructure, local centres 
• Lack of diversity of house sizes 
• Delivery of affordable housing - pepper-potting 

not always working 

Homes and Buildings

• Small housing - not enough storage space or 
space to grow 

Resources

• Criteria missing: buildability, usability, 
maintainability. Long term use and maintenance 

• Build quality lacking - material choice, detailing 

Lifespan

• Criteria missing: buildability, usability, 
maintainability. Long term use and maintenance 

• Lack of funding for maintenance. Designing for 
low maintenance rather than quality

General

• Design Quality not followed through on 
• New development not supported by 

infrastructure. Who delivers this? 
• Infrastructure delivery not keeping pace with 

housing development 
• Process: Would like to see more communication 

between village/parish, city and developer 
• Economics driving down design quality. Design 

not valued. 
• Where does funding come from for social 

infrastructure? 
• Changing demographics of small communities 
• Piecemeal developments over time change 

character of place 
• Mismatch between policy and design. Caveats in 

policy wording 
• “Council housing” can be strong community - 

not delivered well

Feedback mapped against the NDG’s Ten Characteristics

Identity

• Roof pitch out of context - jars with local 
character 

• Streetscene - hedges, car parking 
• Lifeless, soulless character - lacking character 
• Lack of cohesion and overall plan for new 

developments 
• Intimidating design. Not blending in with 

countryside setting 
• Not in keeping with streetscene and local 

character 

Built Form

• Roof pitch out of context - jars with local 
character 

• Building not responding to local context 
• Appropriate Density - trying to squeeze in too 

much on site 
• Over-development of sites. 
• Lack of diversity of house sizes 

Movement

• Street widths not enough for parking + 
movement. Leads to parking on pavements 

• Connecting the dots with movement: New 
development adding pressure to wider road 
network 

P
age 132



19

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

8 Our Place Now

8�1 Key Findings - Positives 

Community

A strong sense of community was one of the 
key attributes that attendees valued about their 
existing towns and villages, according to the Quick 
Poll findings (fig. 8.1). 

Good design considers how a development 
proposal can make a contribution to a sense of 
community by ensuring a relationship between the 
built environment and quality of life. It involves 
careful attention to other important components 
beyond the design of buildings, including 
provision of social infrastructure ie. the social, 
commercial and leisure uses and activities on offer. 

Changing social and economic circumstances can 
threaten the viability of some of the infrastructure 
that supports a vibrant village life and fosters that 
sense of community. New development should 
explore opportunities to enhance the provision of 
local services and amenities. 

8�2 Key Findings - Negatives

Movement and Transport

‘Rat running’ was widely considered to be 
detrimental to the peace and quiet of village life 
and to the quality of place, according to the Quick 
Poll findings (fig. 8.2).

Lack of public transport is often a feature of 
village life, leading to a greater dependence on 
privately-owned vehicles and a conflict with an 
acknowledged need to shift to more sustainable 
modes of transport. This can be exacerbated by 
the loss of local amenities, an issue highlighted by 
attendees. 

New development can reduce the dominance of 
vehicles by ensuring connected street patterns 
that support walking and cycling, responding to 
pedestrian and cycle desire lines and ensuring that 
parking is integrated with landscaping to enhance 
the streetscene. 

Figure 8.1: Positives of our place now

Figure 8.2: Negatives of our place now

P
age 133



20

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

9 Our Place in the Future

9�1 Key Priorities 

Thinking ahead to the future of Winchester’s rural 
settlements, a number of priorities emerged (fig 
9.1):

• Preserving the history and heritage of 
Winchester’s market towns and rural villages 
in light of pressure for development was a 
concern shared by many attendees.  

• Whilst attendees wanted new development to 
be responsive to local character and identity, 
this should not preclude contemporary styles 
of architecture. Standard house types are not 
welcome, as they do not reflect or enhance 
the distinctive characteristics of these places. 

• Enhancing the green infrastructure within 
villages and protecting the open countryside 
between villages was a key priority for 
attendees. 

• Ensuring that villages are sustainable by 
providing homes for all, including the young 
and the old, is of prime importance to the 
future of these places. 

• Traffic and parking threaten to destroy the 
quality of village life. Supporting sustainable 
modes of transport, whilst challenging in a 
rural context, was high priority for attendees.

Figure 9.1: Image of interactive whiteboard showing stakeholder comments 
(colours have no relationship with NDG characteristics)

Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments

Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments

Exercise 3: The future of your town/village Exercise 3: The future of your town/village

Session 1: 15:30 - 17:50 Session 2: 18:00 - 20:00

Winchester Workshop 2 - Market Towns and Rural Villages

Consider 
maintenance 

into the 
future

Parking - 
adequate 

spaces and 
locations

Solar panels - 
sustainability

Historic 
street 

pattern

Brownfield 
sites

Roofscape

Materials 
to match 

local 
history

Network 
of Open 

space

Sustainable 
drainage

Biodiversity

Bungalows
Neighbourhood 
Plan sets design 

guidance

Consider 
ends 
users

Reflect local 
environment

Repurpose 
existing 

buildings

New 
technologies

Transport a 
challenge - 

how to 
offer choice

Need for space 
for electric 

vehicle 
charging

Specifications

Difficult to 
assess 
design 

aesthetics

Does new 
development 
always have 

to "fit in"?

Good build 
quality - 
longevity

Maintenance 
of landscape 

areas into 
future

Long term 
maintenance 
of streets and 

lighting

Appropriate 
garden 

types/sizes for 
different 
people

Avoiding 
standard 

house 
types

Permeability 
and legibility

No fake 
chimneys

Sustainability: 
transport, air 

quality

Affordable 
housing

County- wide 
approach - 
joined- up 
working

Building for 
an ageing 

population

Genuine 
housing 

choice for 
young people

Contemporary 
design but 

traditional feel

Open 
spaces, 

attractive 
SuDS

Pedestrian 
legibility 

and feeling 
of safety

Public 
open 
space

Example: 
Winchester 

Village

Overall 
concept 
for site.

Think 
about end 
user - how 
people live

Affordability
Appropriate 

density

Fits with local 
context and 
works well 

with local area

Important for 
individual 

buildings and 
large 

developments

Hedges, 
vegetation

Appropriateness 
of type of 

development

Garages big 
enough for cars 

(if they are 
counted as 

parking spaces)

Optimising 
space. Use 
basements

Design- led, 
holistic approach. 

Green spaces 
built- in. Rather 

than bolt- on 
developments

Recognise how we 
live today. Waste 
management/bin 

storage

Improving 
eyesore 

sites

Flats designed 
as large, sub- 

divided houses

Safe 
access

New 
facilities - 

village halls, 
play areas

Maintain open 
countryside - 
impression of 

place in 
countryside

Maintain 
individual 

settlements - 
not merging

Variation of 
house types and 

styles - large 
and small 
properties

Sense of 
community - 

holistic 
neighbourhoods

Adequate facilities 
for the population 

- contribute to 
social 

infrastructure

Small housing 
- not enough 
storage space 

or space to 
grow

Street widths not 
enough for 
parking + 

movement. Leads 
to parking on 

pavements

Connecting the dots 
with movement: 

New development 
adding pressure to 
wider road network

Design 
Quality not 

followed 
through on

Roof pitch out 
of context - 

jars with local 
character

Building not 
responding 

to local 
context

Criteria missing: 
buildability, 

usability, 
maintainability. 
Long term use 

and maintenance

Physical and 
social 

infrastructure, 
local centres

New development 
not supported by 

infrastructure. 
Who delivers this?

Appropriate 
Density - trying 
to squeeze in 
too much on 

site

Streetscene 
- hedges, 

car parking

Infrastructure 
delivery not 

keeping pace 
with housing 
development

Process: Would 
like to see more 
communication 

between 
village/parish, city 

and developer

Lifeless, 
soulless 

character - 
lacking 

character

Lack of 
cohesion and 

overall plan for 
new 

developments

Intimidating 
design. Not 

blending in with 
countryside 

setting

Economics 
driving down 

design quality. 
Design not 

valued.

Where does 
funding come 
from for social 
infrastructure?

Lack of funding 
for maintenance. 
Designing for low 

maintenance 
rather than 

quality

Changing 
demographics 

of small 
communities

Piecemeal 
developments 

over time change 
character of place

Over- 
development 

of sites.

Not in keeping 
with 

streetscene 
and local 
character

Mismatch 
between policy 

and design. 
Caveats in 

policy wording

Lack of 
diversity of 
house sizes

Flood risk - 
location is 
important

Blocking 
views

Build quality 
lacking - 
material 
choice, 

detailing

Delivery of 
affordable 

housing - pepper- 
potting not always 

working

"Council 
housing" can be 

strong 
community - not 

delivered well

Car dominance - 
developments 
far away from 

public transport

People need to 
drive - roads do 

not have 
capacity/access 
to motorways

Cycling - 
topography 

makes 
difficult

Some rural 
communities do 
not have public 

transport but they 
need housing

Need to 
plan for 

necessary 
driving

Capacity 
and safety 
of roads

Cul de sacs - 
lack of access/ 
permeability 

through 
developments

Traffic 
management

Enforcement 
of 

unauthorised 
development

Adequate 
site for 

Travellers

Create new 
villages rather 

than 
expanding 

existing ones

Preserve 
green spaces 

around 
villages

Transport: 
better cycle 
ways, buses, 

public transport. 
New technology

New dev 
next to 

transport 
hubs

More pubs, 
fewer cars, 

more 
railways

Community 
spirit, 
village 

character

Opportunities for 
young people to 
stay in villages - 

homes and 
employment

Community 
uses

Preserve 
best 

Landscapes

Contemporary 
architecture, 
sustainable 

design

Don't stifle 
architectural 
innovation

More input from 
local community 
- role in decision 

making

Range of 
house sizes 

available

Conserve 
heritage/history

Development 
to respond to 

history of 
place

Densify 
existing places 

- make 
sustainable 
use of land

The same 
as it is 
today!

Organic 
growth

High quality 
materials in 

development 
- long lasting

Sense of 
pride and 
identity

Village 
characteristics 

- festivals, 
community 

events

Variety of 
house types 
and sizes - 
range of 

demographics

Modern 
infrastructure 
- broadband, 

sewerage

Reduce 
dominance of car 
in villages - white 
vans, cars cutting 

through, noise

Safer 
streets

Covid- proofed 
places. Working 
from home. Be 
ready for other 

pandemics

Adapt places 
to post- 

pandemic 
future - "new 

normal"

Bustling 
high 

street

Local facilities. 
New 

development 
can support 

local economy

Accommodation 
fit for care 
needs - or 
variety of 
houses

Make good use of 
space - 

regeneration. 
Brownfield sites. 

Infill development

Protect 
open spaces 

around 
villages

More flexibility 
for needed 

development 
in rural areas

Biodiversity, 
space for 
nature.

Villages that 
are good for 
nature and 
wildlife - do 

more!

Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments Exercise 1: What makes for successful developments

Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments Exercise 2: Assessment of new developments

Exercise 3: The future of your town/village Exercise 3: The future of your town/village

Session 1: 15:30 - 17:50 Session 2: 18:00 - 20:00

Winchester Workshop 2 - Market Towns and Rural Villages

Consider 
maintenance 

into the 
future

Parking - 
adequate 

spaces and 
locations

Solar panels - 
sustainability

Historic 
street 

pattern

Brownfield 
sites

Roofscape

Materials 
to match 

local 
history

Network 
of Open 

space

Sustainable 
drainage

Biodiversity

Bungalows
Neighbourhood 
Plan sets design 

guidance

Consider 
ends 
users

Reflect local 
environment

Repurpose 
existing 

buildings

New 
technologies

Transport a 
challenge - 

how to 
offer choice

Need for space 
for electric 

vehicle 
charging

Specifications

Difficult to 
assess 
design 

aesthetics

Does new 
development 
always have 

to "fit in"?

Good build 
quality - 
longevity

Maintenance 
of landscape 

areas into 
future

Long term 
maintenance 
of streets and 

lighting

Appropriate 
garden 

types/sizes for 
different 
people

Avoiding 
standard 

house 
types

Permeability 
and legibility

No fake 
chimneys

Sustainability: 
transport, air 

quality

Affordable 
housing

County- wide 
approach - 
joined- up 
working

Building for 
an ageing 

population

Genuine 
housing 

choice for 
young people

Contemporary 
design but 

traditional feel

Open 
spaces, 

attractive 
SuDS

Pedestrian 
legibility 

and feeling 
of safety

Public 
open 
space

Example: 
Winchester 

Village

Overall 
concept 
for site.

Think 
about end 
user - how 
people live

Affordability
Appropriate 

density

Fits with local 
context and 
works well 

with local area

Important for 
individual 

buildings and 
large 

developments

Hedges, 
vegetation

Appropriateness 
of type of 

development

Garages big 
enough for cars 

(if they are 
counted as 

parking spaces)

Optimising 
space. Use 
basements

Design- led, 
holistic approach. 

Green spaces 
built- in. Rather 

than bolt- on 
developments

Recognise how we 
live today. Waste 
management/bin 

storage

Improving 
eyesore 

sites

Flats designed 
as large, sub- 

divided houses

Safe 
access

New 
facilities - 

village halls, 
play areas

Maintain open 
countryside - 
impression of 

place in 
countryside

Maintain 
individual 

settlements - 
not merging

Variation of 
house types and 

styles - large 
and small 
properties

Sense of 
community - 

holistic 
neighbourhoods

Adequate facilities 
for the population 

- contribute to 
social 

infrastructure

Small housing 
- not enough 
storage space 

or space to 
grow

Street widths not 
enough for 
parking + 

movement. Leads 
to parking on 

pavements

Connecting the dots 
with movement: 

New development 
adding pressure to 
wider road network

Design 
Quality not 

followed 
through on

Roof pitch out 
of context - 

jars with local 
character

Building not 
responding 

to local 
context

Criteria missing: 
buildability, 

usability, 
maintainability. 
Long term use 

and maintenance

Physical and 
social 

infrastructure, 
local centres

New development 
not supported by 

infrastructure. 
Who delivers this?

Appropriate 
Density - trying 
to squeeze in 
too much on 

site

Streetscene 
- hedges, 

car parking

Infrastructure 
delivery not 

keeping pace 
with housing 
development

Process: Would 
like to see more 
communication 

between 
village/parish, city 

and developer

Lifeless, 
soulless 

character - 
lacking 

character

Lack of 
cohesion and 

overall plan for 
new 

developments

Intimidating 
design. Not 

blending in with 
countryside 

setting

Economics 
driving down 

design quality. 
Design not 

valued.

Where does 
funding come 
from for social 
infrastructure?

Lack of funding 
for maintenance. 
Designing for low 

maintenance 
rather than 

quality

Changing 
demographics 

of small 
communities

Piecemeal 
developments 

over time change 
character of place

Over- 
development 

of sites.

Not in keeping 
with 

streetscene 
and local 
character

Mismatch 
between policy 

and design. 
Caveats in 

policy wording

Lack of 
diversity of 
house sizes

Flood risk - 
location is 
important

Blocking 
views

Build quality 
lacking - 
material 
choice, 

detailing

Delivery of 
affordable 

housing - pepper- 
potting not always 

working

"Council 
housing" can be 

strong 
community - not 

delivered well

Car dominance - 
developments 
far away from 

public transport

People need to 
drive - roads do 

not have 
capacity/access 
to motorways

Cycling - 
topography 

makes 
difficult

Some rural 
communities do 
not have public 

transport but they 
need housing

Need to 
plan for 

necessary 
driving

Capacity 
and safety 
of roads

Cul de sacs - 
lack of access/ 
permeability 

through 
developments

Traffic 
management

Enforcement 
of 

unauthorised 
development

Adequate 
site for 

Travellers

Create new 
villages rather 

than 
expanding 

existing ones

Preserve 
green spaces 

around 
villages

Transport: 
better cycle 
ways, buses, 

public transport. 
New technology

New dev 
next to 

transport 
hubs

More pubs, 
fewer cars, 

more 
railways

Community 
spirit, 
village 

character

Opportunities for 
young people to 
stay in villages - 

homes and 
employment

Community 
uses

Preserve 
best 

Landscapes

Contemporary 
architecture, 
sustainable 

design

Don't stifle 
architectural 
innovation

More input from 
local community 
- role in decision 

making

Range of 
house sizes 

available

Conserve 
heritage/history

Development 
to respond to 

history of 
place

Densify 
existing places 

- make 
sustainable 
use of land

The same 
as it is 
today!

Organic 
growth

High quality 
materials in 

development 
- long lasting

Sense of 
pride and 
identity

Village 
characteristics 

- festivals, 
community 

events

Variety of 
house types 
and sizes - 
range of 

demographics

Modern 
infrastructure 
- broadband, 

sewerage

Reduce 
dominance of car 
in villages - white 
vans, cars cutting 

through, noise

Safer 
streets

Covid- proofed 
places. Working 
from home. Be 
ready for other 

pandemics

Adapt places 
to post- 

pandemic 
future - "new 

normal"

Bustling 
high 

street

Local facilities. 
New 

development 
can support 

local economy

Accommodation 
fit for care 
needs - or 
variety of 
houses

Make good use of 
space - 

regeneration. 
Brownfield sites. 

Infill development

Protect 
open spaces 

around 
villages

More flexibility 
for needed 

development 
in rural areas

Biodiversity, 
space for 
nature.

Villages that 
are good for 
nature and 
wildlife - do 

more!

P
age 134



21

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Feedback mapped against the NDG’s Ten Characteristics

Context

• Preserve green spaces around villages 
• Conserve heritage/history 
• Development to respond to history of place 
• Protect open spaces around villages 

Identity

• Contemporary architecture, sustainable design 
• High quality materials in development - long 

lasting 
• Protect open spaces around villages 

Built Form

• Contemporary architecture, sustainable design 
• Range of house sizes available 

Movement

• Traffic management 
• Transport: better cycle ways, buses, public 

transport. New technology 
• New dev next to transport hubs 
• Reduce dominance of car in villages - white 

vans, cars cutting through, noise 
• Safer streets 

Nature

• Preserve green spaces around villages 
• Preserve best Landscapes 
• Biodiversity, space for nature. 
• Villages that are good for nature and wildlife - do 

more! 

Public Space

• N/A

Uses

• Adequate site for Travellers 
• Opportunities for young people to stay in 

villages - homes and employment 
• Community uses 
• Range of house sizes available 
• Densify existing places - make sustainable use 

of land 
• Variety of house types and sizes - range of 

demographics 
• Covid-proofed places. Working from home. Be 

ready for other pandemics 
• Local facilities. New development can support 

local economy 
• Accommodation fit for care needs - or variety of 

houses 
• Make good use of space - regeneration. 

Brownfield sites. Infill development 

Homes and Buildings

• N/A

Resources

• N/A

Lifespan

• High quality materials in development - long 
lasting

General

• Enforcement of unauthorised development 
• Create new villages rather than expanding 

existing ones 
• More pubs, fewer cars, more railways 
• Community spirit, village character 
• Don’t stifle architectural innovation 
• More input from local community - role in 

decision making 
• The same as it is today! 
• Organic growth 
• Sense of pride and identity 
• Village characteristics - festivals, community 

events 
• Modern infrastructure - broadband, sewerage 
• Adapt places to post-pandemic future - “new 

normal” 
• Bustling high street 
• More flexibility for needed development in rural 

areas

P
age 135



22

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

10 Appendices

10�1 Workshop Details

Location 

Marwell Hotel  
Thompson’s Lane  
Colden Common 
Winchester  
SO21 1JY 

Date

Tuesday, November 16th, 2021 

Session 1: 15:30 – 17:30 

Session 2: 18:00 – 20:00 

Attendees 

• Session 1 Registered: 50 

• Session 1 Attended: 42 

• Session 2 Registered: 35 

• Session 2 Attended: 24 (approx.)

P
age 136



23

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

10�2 Communications

Eventbrite Page

P
age 137



24

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Winchester City Council Website Article

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/
winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-
emerging/local-plan-events

P
age 138

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/loca
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/loca
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/planning-policy/winchester-district-local-plan-2018-2038-emerging/loca


25

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

10�3 Workshop Agenda

  R
ef

: 1
68

2/
05

11
21

 

 16
/1

1/
21

 
15

:3
0-

17
:3

0 
18

:0
0-

20
:0

0  
W

in
ch

es
te

r 
W

or
ks

ho
p 

3 
 

  
Ti

m
e 

It
em

 
Le

ad
 

  
Pr

ep
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n/

eq
ui

pm
en

t t
o 

be
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
ss

io
n:

 
W

CC
  

 D
SE

 - 
Sc

rib
e 

sh
ee

ts
 a

nd
 p

en
s 

- 
St

ru
ct

ur
ed

 q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 p

er
 ta

bl
e 

(a
ss

ig
n 

sc
rib

e)
 

 

W
CC

/D
SE

 

0 
30

 m
in

s 
be

fo
re

 
st

ar
t 

Se
t u

p 
ro

om
, p

re
pa

re
/w

ip
e 

ta
bl

es
, c

he
ck

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t e

tc
. 

W
CC

/D
SE

 

1 
St

ar
t 

3:
30

 
6:

00
 

A
tt

en
de

es
 a

rr
iv

e,
 s

ca
n 

Q
R 

co
de

, p
rin

t o
ut

s 
on

 ta
bl

es
 

 

2 
3:

30
 

6:
00

 
5 

m
in

s 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
ns

 b
y 

W
CC

  
- 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
of

 s
es

si
on

 –
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

ho
w

 w
el

l c
ur

re
nt

 p
la

nn
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

e 
de

si
re

d 
de

si
gn

 o
ut

co
m

es
 in

 
W

in
ch

es
te

r’s
 m

ar
ke

t t
ow

ns
 a

nd
 ru

ra
l v

ill
ag

es
  

- 
To

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

vi
si

on
 fo

r t
he

 m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 a
nd

 ru
ra

l v
ill

ag
es

 to
 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

 
- 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t b

y 
W

CC
 (e

xp
lo

re
 s

uc
ce

ss
 o

f V
D

Ss
) 

- 
O

ut
co

m
es

, f
ee

db
ac

k 
(h

ow
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 a
nd

 u
se

d 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 n
ew

 L
P)

 

W
CC

 

3 
3:

35
 

6:
05

 
5 

m
in

s 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

by
 D

SE
 

- 
Fo

rm
at

 o
f w

or
ks

ho
p 

(3
 x

 e
xe

rc
is

es
) 

- 
Ex

pl
ai

n 
Q

R 
co

de
/l

in
k 

- 
W

ha
t w

e 
ar

e 
as

ki
ng

 o
f p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 (d

ra
w

 o
n 

liv
ed

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
)  

- 
W

ha
t c

an
 p

la
nn

in
g 

do
 fo

r y
ou

 in
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

 a
re

a 
to

 m
ak

e 
it 

be
tt

er
? 

- 
N

at
io

na
l P

ol
ic

y 
– 

10
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 
of

 N
D

G
 fo

r w
el

l-d
es

ig
ne

d 
pl

ac
es

 
- 

VD
S 

– 
lin

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
pa

st
, p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 
- 

D
IS

CU
SS

 +
 C

H
AL

LE
N

G
E 

EA
CH

 O
TH

ER
 

N
B.

 A
SK

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 T

O
 T

AK
E 

PH
O

TO
S 

D
SE

 

4 

3:
40

 
6:

10
 

10
m

in
s 

 

Ic
eb

re
ak

er
 

- 
Q

ui
ck

 p
ol

l  
- 

D
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 w
ha

t a
 V

ill
ag

e 
D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
t i

s?
 (y

es
,  

no
, n

ot
 

su
re

) 
- 

Is
 th

er
e 

a 
VD

S 
fo

r y
ou

r v
ill

ag
e 

or
 n

ea
re

st
 v

ill
ag

e?
 (y

es
, n

o,
 d

on
’t 

kn
ow

) 
- 

H
av

e 
yo

u 
re

ad
 y

ou
r V

D
S?

 (y
es

, n
o,

 N
/A

) 
- 

D
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 w
ha

t t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
is

? 
(y

es
, n

o,
 n

ot
 

su
re

) 

D
SE

 

P
age 139



26

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

  Re
f: 

16
82

/0
51

12
1 

 

- 
UP

LO
AD

 P
HO

TO
 to

 m
icr

os
of

t f
or

m
 o

r e
m

ai
l t

o 
in

fo
@

de
sig

ns
ou

th
ea

st
.o

rg
; i

nc
lu

de
 ta

bl
e 

nu
m

be
r a

nd
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
ph

ot
o 

(+
 ta

bl
e 

nu
m

be
r/

na
m

e 
as

 su
bj

ec
t h

ea
di

ng
) 

NB
. B

Y 
UP

LO
AD

IN
G 

YO
U 

W
OU

LD
 A

GR
EE

 T
O 

YO
UR

 P
HO

TO
 B

EI
NG

 U
SE

D 
IN

 
OU

R 
RE

PO
RT

 

5  

3:
50

 
6:

20
 

15
m

in
s 

 

Ex
er

cis
e 

1:
 S

uc
ce

ss
fu

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t =
 w

el
l-d

es
ig

ne
d 

pl
ac

es
 

- 
Di

sc
us

sio
n 

ar
ou

nd
 p

ho
to

s, 
w

ha
t d

oe
s a

 su
cc

es
sfu

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

yo
ur

 vi
lla

ge
 lo

ok
 lik

e?
 

- 
Qu

es
tio

ns
 

- 
If 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 b
ro

ug
ht

 a
 p

ho
to

, t
al

k a
ro

un
d 

yo
ur

 ta
bl

e 
ab

ou
t w

hy
 yo

u 
ch

os
e 

it,
 w

ha
t w

or
ks

 w
el

l? 
 

- 
W

hy
 d

o 
yo

u 
th

in
k t

hi
s i

s a
 w

el
l-d

es
ig

ne
d 

pl
ac

e?
 

- 
If 

no
 p

ho
to

, t
hi

nk
 a

bo
ut

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t w

or
ks

 w
el

l i
n 

yo
ur

 
to

w
n 

or
 vi

lla
ge

. W
hy

 is
 it

 su
cc

es
sfu

l?
 

Ac
tio

n - 
Sc

rib
e 

sh
ee

t 

DS
E/

al
l 

6  

4:
05

 
6:

35
 

10
m

in
s 

 

Sh
ow

 a
nd

 T
el

l/Q
&

A 
 

- 
He

ad
lin

es
, w

ha
t i

s s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l, 

w
hy

 
Al

l 

7  

4:
15

 
6:

45
 

15
m

in
s 

 

Ex
er

cis
e 

2:
 Q

ua
lit

y o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 - 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
- 

Qu
es

tio
ns

  
- 

W
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

/le
ss

 su
cc

es
sfu

l, w
ha

t 
is 

it 
th

at
 d

oe
sn

’t 
w

or
k s

o 
w

el
l? 

 
- 

Di
sc

us
s/

Ra
te

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

yo
ur

 a
re

a 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 1
0/

7 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

Ac
tio

n - 
Sc

rib
e 

sh
ee

t –
 R

at
in

g,
 5

 st
ar

s, 
10

/7
 ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

DS
E/

al
l 

8 
4:

30
 

7:
00

 
10

m
in

s 
Sh

ow
 a

nd
 T

el
l/Q

&
A 

 
Al

l 

9 
4:

40
 

7:
10

 
5 

m
in

s 
co

m
fo

rt 
br

ea
k 

 

10
 

4:
45

 
7:

15
 

20
m

in
s 

 

Ex
er

cis
e 

3:
 T

he
 fu

tu
re

 o
f y

ou
r t

ow
n/

vi
lla

ge
 

- 
Ex

pl
ai

ne
r (

DS
E)

  
- 

Qu
es

tio
n 

- 
Te

ll u
s 5

 th
in

gs
 th

at
 yo

u 
re

al
ly 

lik
e 

ab
ou

t y
ou

r p
la

ce
? 

 
- 

Te
ll u

s 5
 th

in
gs

 th
at

 yo
u 

re
al

ly 
do

n’
t l

ike
 a

bo
ut

 yo
ur

 p
la

ce
? 

- 
Th

in
k a

bo
ut

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f y
ou

r p
la

ce
 in

 2
0 

ye
ar

s, 
ho

w
 w

ou
ld

 yo
u 

lik
e 

yo
ur

 p
la

ce
 to

 b
e?

 
- 

W
ha

t c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
or

 im
pr

ov
ed

? 
Di

sc
us

sio
n 

to
pi

cs
: 

- 
Ho

w
 yo

u 
m

ov
e 

ar
ou

nd
, q

ua
lit

y o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 w

ha
t k

in
d 

of
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t  

 

 

11
 

5:
05

 
7:

35
 

20
m

in
s 

Sh
ow

 a
nd

 T
el

l/Q
&

A 
 

 
  Re

f: 
16

82
/0

51
12

1 

  Th
er

e 
ar

e 
33

 V
D

S/
LA

D
S 

 V
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

o
d 

D
es

ig
n 

St
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 lo

ca
l g

ro
up

s 
w

it
hi

n 
ea

ch
 p

ar
is

h/
re

si
de

nt
s 

gr
o

up
. D

es
ig

n
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
W

in
ch

es
te

r 
C

it
y 

C
o

un
ci

l a
s 

Su
p

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
o

cu
m

en
ts

 t
o

 t
he

 L
o

ca
l P

la
n.

  
M

an
y 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

o
un

ci
ls

 a
re

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
to

 t
hi

nk
 a

bo
ut

 u
p

da
ti

n
g 

th
ei

r 
V

ill
ag

e 
D

es
ig

n
 

St
at

em
en

ts
 (V

D
S)

. 
 Th

e 
Pl

an
ni

n
g 

Po
lic

y 
te

am
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
o

rk
in

g 
o

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

a 
te

m
pl

at
e 

fo
r 

V
ill

ag
e 

D
es

ig
n 

St
at

em
en

ts
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t’s
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
n

in
g 

sy
st

em
. 

 W
el

l-
de

si
gn

ed
 p

la
ce

s 
ha

ve
 in

di
vi

d
ua

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

ti
cs

 w
hi

ch
 w

o
rk

 t
o

ge
th

er
 t

o
 

cr
ea

te
 it

s 
ph

ys
ic

al
 C

h
a

ra
ct

e
r.

 T
he

 t
en

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

ti
cs

 h
el

p 
to

 n
ur

tu
re

 a
n

d 
su

st
ai

n 
a 

se
ns

e 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. T

he
y 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 p

o
si

ti
ve

ly
 a

dd
re

ss
 e

nv
ir

o
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
C

li
m

a
te

.  
      12

 
5:

25
 

7:
55

 
5 

m
in

s 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

- 
N

ex
t 

st
ep

s,
 fe

ed
ba

ck
, t

ha
nk

s 
D

SE
/W

C
C 

13
 

C
ll

r 
G

o
rd

o
n

-S
m

it
h

  

- 
Th

an
k 

yo
u 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
pa

nt
s 

C
llr

 G
-S

 

14
 

2 
hr

s 
fr

om
 

st
ar

t 
E

n
d

s 
 

P
age 140



27

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

10�4 Workshop Explainer Sheet

 

 

W
in

ch
es

te
r M

ar
ke

t T
ow

ns
 an

d 
Ru

ra
l A

re
as

 W
or

ks
ho

p 
– E

xp
lai

ne
r 

16
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

1 
 Be

fo
re

 yo
u 

sta
rt:

 
• 

Sc
an

 th
e 

Q
R 

co
de

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

 fo
rm

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

, o
r c

om
pl

et
e 

a 
ha

rd
 

co
py

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
is

 s
ur

ve
y 

is
 a

no
ny

m
ou

s.
 

• 
N

om
in

at
e 

a 
sc

ri
be

, w
ho

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 n
ot

es
 o

f t
he

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

ar
ou

nd
 y

ou
r t

ab
le

. 

• 
Li

st
 y

ou
r t

ab
le

’s
 p

la
ce

s o
f r

es
id

en
ce

 (o
r w

or
k)

  

• 
Pl

ea
se

 e
m

ai
l y

ou
r p

ho
to

s 
to

 in
fo

@
de

si
gn

so
ut

ea
st

.o
rg

 w
ith

 y
ou

r t
ab

le
 n

um
be

r a
s 

su
bj

ec
t 

he
ad

in
g.

 P
LE

A
SE

 N
O

TE
: B

Y 
U

PL
O

A
D

IN
G

 Y
O

U
R 

PH
O

TO
, Y

O
U

 A
G

RE
E 

TO
 Y

O
U

R 
PH

O
TO

 
BE

IN
G

 U
SE

D
 IN

 O
U

R 
RE

PO
RT

 

 Ex
er

cis
e 1

: S
uc

ce
ss

fu
l D

ev
elo

pm
en

t –
 yo

ur
 p

ho
to

  

D
is

cu
ss

 y
ou

r p
ho

to
: 

• 
W

hy
 d

id
 y

ou
 c

ho
os

e 
th

is
 p

la
ce

, w
ha

t w
or

ks
 w

el
l?

  

• 
W

hy
 d

o 
yo

u 
th

in
k 

th
is

 is
 a

 w
el

l-d
es

ig
ne

d 
pl

ac
e?

 

• 
If 

no
 p

ho
to

, t
hi

nk
 a

bo
ut

 a
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t w

or
ks

 w
el

l i
n 

yo
ur

 to
w

n 
or

 v
ill

ag
e.

 W
hy

 is
 it

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

? 
 

 Ex
er

cis
e 2

: A
ss

es
sin

g a
nd

 ra
tin

g n
ew

 d
ev

elo
pm

en
ts

 

D
is

cu
ss

: 

• 
Ar

e 
th

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
 y

ou
r t

ow
n/

vi
lla

ge
/a

re
a 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

/le
ss

 w
el

l-d
es

ig
ne

d 
pl

ac
es

? 

• 
W

ha
t i

s 
it 

th
at

 d
oe

sn
’t 

w
or

k 
so

 w
el

l?
 W

ha
t c

ou
ld

 im
pr

ov
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

be
tte

r d
es

ig
ne

d 
pl

ac
es

? 
 

• 
Ra

te
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
7 

ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s 

of
 a

 w
el

l-d
es

ig
ne

d 
pl

ac
e:

  

• 
(1

 =
 p

oo
r, 

2 
= 

fa
ir

ly
 p

oo
r, 

4 
= 

av
er

ag
e,

 3
 =

 g
oo

d,
 4

 =
 v

er
y 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
) 

 Ex
er

cis
e 3

: T
he

 fu
tu

re
 o

f W
in

ch
es

te
r’s

 m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 an
d 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 

D
is

cu
ss

:  

• 
Te

ll 
us

 5
 th

in
gs

 th
at

 y
ou

 re
al

ly
 li

ke
 a

bo
ut

 y
ou

r t
ow

n/
vi

lla
ge

 o
r p

la
ce

? 
 

• 
Te

ll 
us

 5
 th

in
gs

 th
at

 y
ou

 re
al

ly
 d

on
’t 

lik
e 

ab
ou

t y
ou

r p
la

ce
? 

 

• 
Th

in
k 

ab
ou

t t
he

 fu
tu

re
 o

f y
ou

r p
la

ce
 in

 2
0 

ye
ar

s.
 H

ow
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 li
ke

 y
ou

r p
la

ce
 to

 b
e?

 

• 
W

he
re

/w
ha

t c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
or

 im
pr

ov
ed

? 

 

P
age 141



28

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

10�5 Survey

Su
rv

ey
: 

W
in

ch
es

te
r 

M
ar

ke
t 

To
w

ns
 a

nd
 

Ru
ra

l A
re

as
 W

or
ks

ho
p

Yo
ur

 r
es

po
ns

e 
is

 a
no

ny
m

ou
s.

 

* 
Re

qu
ire

d

W
he

re
 d

o 
yo

u 
liv

e 
/ 

w
he

re
 is

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t?
 *

 
1.

 

D
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 w
ha

t 
a 

Vi
lla

ge
 D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
t 

is
?

2.

Ye
s

N
o

Is
 t

he
re

 a
 V

ill
ag

e 
D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
t 

fo
r 

yo
ur

 v
ill

ag
e/

ne
ar

es
t 

vi
lla

ge
?

3.

Ye
s

N
o

D
on

't 
kn

ow

H
av

e 
yo

u 
re

ad
 y

ou
r 

lo
ca

l V
ill

ag
e 

D
es

ig
n 

St
at

em
en

t?
4.

Ye
s

N
o

11
/1
5/
20

21

P
age 142



29

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Is
 y

ou
r 

V
ill

ag
e 

D
es

ig
n 

St
at

em
en

t 
up

 t
o 

da
te

?
5.

Ye
s

N
o

N
o

t 
su

re

D
o 

yo
u 

th
in

k 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

he
lp

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 w
el

l d
es

ig
ne

d 
pl

ac
es

?
6.

Ye
s

N
o

N
o

t 
su

re

In
 g

en
er

al
, 
ho

w
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 r
at

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 y
ou

 a
re

a?
7.







In
 g

en
er

al
, 
do

 y
ou

 t
hi

nk
 r

ec
en

t 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fit
s 

in
 w

el
l w

ith
 y

ou
r 

lo
ca

l a
re

a?
8.

Ye
s

N
o

N
o

 o
p

in
io

n

W
ha

t 
do

 y
ou

 v
al

ue
 m

os
t 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
pl

ac
e 

w
he

re
 y

ou
 li

ve
?

9.

 

11
/1
5/
20

21

P
age 143



30

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Northington, 
sparsholt

• Northington and 
sparsholt

• Context - urban grain, an understanding of 
constraints and opportunities

• Meets the brief/requirements
• Materials
• ‘Mandatory vs. Desireable’
• Village design statements - need consistency - 

up to date guidance/legislation
• Technical vs. Aesthetics

• Northington - loss of smaller/more 
affordable dwellings, change in ‘grain’ of 
development

• Sparsholt - parking, lack of communication/
consultation

• Difficult to comment when 
there is no new development 
in sttlement

• Rural character - lack of uniformity
• No street lighting
• Sufficient (small) services

• Lack of public transport
• Excessive trraffic/rat run
• Community (short term) vs. Community 

(long term)

• Carbon zero
• Electric cars
• Renewables
• Move towards commnity

• Adequate infrastructure to meet development
• Adequate space for development
• Does design fit in with context of village (infill 

or larger developments)
• Density pushes development towards certain 

designs on larger developments
• Building for aging population.

• Area designed to fill plot
• Doctors + dentists + infrastructure
• Current pavements not wide enough with 

overgrown hedges
• Cycle routes

• Movement = 4
• Nature = 1,3,4
• Built form = 3
• Identity = 3
• Public spaces = 3
• Uses = 3
• Homes and buildings = 3

• Shortcut from motorway (lorries) to 
neighbouring village - main road

• Better transport (would be nice)
• Cycleways
• More people working from home - broadband varies 

in areas

• Overton, 
Micheldevon, 
Kings Worthy, 
New Alresford

• Car park spaces
• Footpaths
• Gardens
• Adoption
• Local materials
• Views

• Non use of local materials
• No sense of placel back filling
• Modern against old
• Desing okay but sitting wrong

• Community - friendlieness
• Good range of shops
• Good transport links

• Parking issues
• Lack of 5yr housing land supply - puts 

village under pressure
• Too many cul de sacs 

• More local input

• Rural environment
• Historic character
• Community spirit, social cohesion, hubs

• Traffic - used as rat run
• Motor bikes

• Preservation of character areas and conservation 
area

• Reduced traffic/improve public transport
• Protection of strategic gaps

10�6 Spreadsheet of Stakeholder Comments (continues on following pages)

P
age 144



31

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Northington, 
sparsholt

• Northington and 
sparsholt

• Context - urban grain, an understanding of 
constraints and opportunities

• Meets the brief/requirements
• Materials
• ‘Mandatory vs. Desireable’
• Village design statements - need consistency - 

up to date guidance/legislation
• Technical vs. Aesthetics

• Northington - loss of smaller/more 
affordable dwellings, change in ‘grain’ of 
development

• Sparsholt - parking, lack of communication/
consultation

• Difficult to comment when 
there is no new development 
in sttlement

• Rural character - lack of uniformity
• No street lighting
• Sufficient (small) services

• Lack of public transport
• Excessive trraffic/rat run
• Community (short term) vs. Community 

(long term)

• Carbon zero
• Electric cars
• Renewables
• Move towards commnity

• Adequate infrastructure to meet development
• Adequate space for development
• Does design fit in with context of village (infill 

or larger developments)
• Density pushes development towards certain 

designs on larger developments
• Building for aging population.

• Area designed to fill plot
• Doctors + dentists + infrastructure
• Current pavements not wide enough with 

overgrown hedges
• Cycle routes

• Movement = 4
• Nature = 1,3,4
• Built form = 3
• Identity = 3
• Public spaces = 3
• Uses = 3
• Homes and buildings = 3

• Shortcut from motorway (lorries) to 
neighbouring village - main road

• Better transport (would be nice)
• Cycleways
• More people working from home - broadband varies 

in areas

• Overton, 
Micheldevon, 
Kings Worthy, 
New Alresford

• Car park spaces
• Footpaths
• Gardens
• Adoption
• Local materials
• Views

• Non use of local materials
• No sense of placel back filling
• Modern against old
• Desing okay but sitting wrong

• Community - friendlieness
• Good range of shops
• Good transport links

• Parking issues
• Lack of 5yr housing land supply - puts 

village under pressure
• Too many cul de sacs 

• More local input

• Rural environment
• Historic character
• Community spirit, social cohesion, hubs

• Traffic - used as rat run
• Motor bikes

• Preservation of character areas and conservation 
area

• Reduced traffic/improve public transport
• Protection of strategic gaps

P
age 145



32

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Badger 
Farm, Colden 
Common, 
Cishops 
Waltham

• Movement = 3
• Nature = 1/2
• Built form = 3
• Identity = 2
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 0
• Homes and buildings = 1

• Standalone community with own village 
centre

• Rural
• Protecting gap between villages

• Lack of transport to main towns
• No authority overseeing or enforcing what 

the planners have imposed as conditions

• Today’s developers put in and commit to long term 
management of communal areas and common parks

• New standalone villages - doesn’t have to be 
reflective of it’s surroundings - becomes it’s own 
identity

• Worlds End, 
Swanmore, 
Wickham

• Sustainability
• Affordable housing
• Overview need to consider impacts of 

developments in other areas on the 
environemtn in winchester district

• Traffic impact, rat running

• Wickahm: 2 areas of development: 
• 1 by main road, playground by edge of road, 

buildings well designed, expensive family 
homes, no storage space, church land 
o/s, hidden cars to rear, some affordable 
housing owned by wickham community 
land trust. 

• 2 - Small supported by community, lack 
storage, minimal room sizes, close to 
village and amenities, small for families, 
motorbikes are growing issue. Areas such 
as Worlds End - issues move around mobile 
homes on fields - not sustainble but they get 
away with it - these things not particularly 
relevant

• Movement = 1 (no safe 
pedestiran route)

• Nature = 2
• Built form = 4
• Identity = 4
• Public spaces = 4
• Uses = residential
• Homes and buildings = 4

• Peace and quiet - wildlife animals
• Community
• Value of medieval village

• Mobile homes on fields destroying wildlife, 
• Threat to communities from development
• Villages have reached capacity to expand
• Need to avoid spreawl, no overview ‘solent 

city’

• Would like hamlet to remain as it is now, 
communities still exist - not becoming suburban, 
don’t want uncoordinated incremental development 
that spoils character

• Influx in travellers needs to be controlled. 

• Waltham 
Chase, 
Wickham

• Materials
• Orientation od dwellings (pvs)
• Landscapingl parking space sizes
• Character in keeping
• Size mix
• Open space
• Suitability for differing age groups

• Mimic what is not good design in first place • Movement = 1
• Nature = 1
• Built form = 1
• Identity = 2
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 1
• Homes and buildings = 3

• Village character and history. Rural setting, 
community spirit

• Transport based around car
• Lack of facilities
• Lack of railways
• Lack of active travel options (footpaths and 

cycleways)
• Shops for local people

• Fewer cars

P
age 146



33

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Badger 
Farm, Colden 
Common, 
Cishops 
Waltham

• Movement = 3
• Nature = 1/2
• Built form = 3
• Identity = 2
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 0
• Homes and buildings = 1

• Standalone community with own village 
centre

• Rural
• Protecting gap between villages

• Lack of transport to main towns
• No authority overseeing or enforcing what 

the planners have imposed as conditions

• Today’s developers put in and commit to long term 
management of communal areas and common parks

• New standalone villages - doesn’t have to be 
reflective of it’s surroundings - becomes it’s own 
identity

• Worlds End, 
Swanmore, 
Wickham

• Sustainability
• Affordable housing
• Overview need to consider impacts of 

developments in other areas on the 
environemtn in winchester district

• Traffic impact, rat running

• Wickahm: 2 areas of development: 
• 1 by main road, playground by edge of road, 

buildings well designed, expensive family 
homes, no storage space, church land 
o/s, hidden cars to rear, some affordable 
housing owned by wickham community 
land trust. 

• 2 - Small supported by community, lack 
storage, minimal room sizes, close to 
village and amenities, small for families, 
motorbikes are growing issue. Areas such 
as Worlds End - issues move around mobile 
homes on fields - not sustainble but they get 
away with it - these things not particularly 
relevant

• Movement = 1 (no safe 
pedestiran route)

• Nature = 2
• Built form = 4
• Identity = 4
• Public spaces = 4
• Uses = residential
• Homes and buildings = 4

• Peace and quiet - wildlife animals
• Community
• Value of medieval village

• Mobile homes on fields destroying wildlife, 
• Threat to communities from development
• Villages have reached capacity to expand
• Need to avoid spreawl, no overview ‘solent 

city’

• Would like hamlet to remain as it is now, 
communities still exist - not becoming suburban, 
don’t want uncoordinated incremental development 
that spoils character

• Influx in travellers needs to be controlled. 

• Waltham 
Chase, 
Wickham

• Materials
• Orientation od dwellings (pvs)
• Landscapingl parking space sizes
• Character in keeping
• Size mix
• Open space
• Suitability for differing age groups

• Mimic what is not good design in first place • Movement = 1
• Nature = 1
• Built form = 1
• Identity = 2
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 1
• Homes and buildings = 3

• Village character and history. Rural setting, 
community spirit

• Transport based around car
• Lack of facilities
• Lack of railways
• Lack of active travel options (footpaths and 

cycleways)
• Shops for local people

• Fewer cars

P
age 147



34

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Swanmore, 
Wickham/
Knowle

• Open spaces
• No boiler plate property designs
• In keeping property designs - shapes/layouts

• Movement = 2
• Nature = 1
• Built form = 3
• Identity = 2
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 2
• Homes and buildings = 1

• Peace and quiet
• Open spaces
• Countryside

• Poor facilities (shops)
• Poor road infrastructure design and 

upkeep
• Parking

• Expanded gaps and green spaces

• Compton, 
Durley/Upham, 
Burridge

• Sympathetic to landscape - sightlines, trees, 
elevations etc.

• Infrastructure good  - amenities available and 
can support it

• Adequate parking, bins, fencing, soft 
landscaping

• Not boring
• Drainage infrastructure to be able to cope
• Minimising the affect on existing residents and 

properties
• Future maintenance
• Community needs to be engaged
• Safety - sightlines at junctions

• Planning process - ignored by developer
• Goal posts reached by government
• Needs to have teeth - design code

• Maintain character - balanced
• Community spirit/sense of community
• Preserving the landscape
• Protecting the footfall and countryside

• Traffic - used as rat run
• Pollution - light, noise, fumes, dust
• Flytipping and litter

• New Alresford/
Kings Worthy

• Permeability/legibility
• Local materials but avoids standard house 

types
• Conscientious car parking
• Kings Worthy - good use of brick and flint
• New build well received - can inspire other new 

build

• Chicken sheds - Kings Worthy - 
contemporary

• Landscaping/promises are kept
• Deliverable
• Not linking easily to new footpaths

• Movement = 4
• Nature = 4
• Built form = 0
• Identity = 4
• Public spaces = 0
• Uses = 0
• Homes and buildings = 0

• Adaptability
• 20 Minute town

• Lack of opportunity for local jobs, potential 
for village 

• New alresford - age demographic being too high
• Wouldn’t want to lose the community feel 

P
age 148



35

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Swanmore, 
Wickham/
Knowle

• Open spaces
• No boiler plate property designs
• In keeping property designs - shapes/layouts

• Movement = 2
• Nature = 1
• Built form = 3
• Identity = 2
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 2
• Homes and buildings = 1

• Peace and quiet
• Open spaces
• Countryside

• Poor facilities (shops)
• Poor road infrastructure design and 

upkeep
• Parking

• Expanded gaps and green spaces

• Compton, 
Durley/Upham, 
Burridge

• Sympathetic to landscape - sightlines, trees, 
elevations etc.

• Infrastructure good  - amenities available and 
can support it

• Adequate parking, bins, fencing, soft 
landscaping

• Not boring
• Drainage infrastructure to be able to cope
• Minimising the affect on existing residents and 

properties
• Future maintenance
• Community needs to be engaged
• Safety - sightlines at junctions

• Planning process - ignored by developer
• Goal posts reached by government
• Needs to have teeth - design code

• Maintain character - balanced
• Community spirit/sense of community
• Preserving the landscape
• Protecting the footfall and countryside

• Traffic - used as rat run
• Pollution - light, noise, fumes, dust
• Flytipping and litter

• New Alresford/
Kings Worthy

• Permeability/legibility
• Local materials but avoids standard house 

types
• Conscientious car parking
• Kings Worthy - good use of brick and flint
• New build well received - can inspire other new 

build

• Chicken sheds - Kings Worthy - 
contemporary

• Landscaping/promises are kept
• Deliverable
• Not linking easily to new footpaths

• Movement = 4
• Nature = 4
• Built form = 0
• Identity = 4
• Public spaces = 0
• Uses = 0
• Homes and buildings = 0

• Adaptability
• 20 Minute town

• Lack of opportunity for local jobs, potential 
for village 

• New alresford - age demographic being too high
• Wouldn’t want to lose the community feel 

P
age 149



36

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Hursley, 
Durley, Bishops 
Waltham, 
Colden 
Common, 
Swanmore

• Provides choice for all of society - especially 
affordable (in a general sense) housing for 
younger people

• Is well connected - importance of bus routes in 
rural areas

• Is designed to manage water - details of 
existing surface water flows should be 
provided

• Movement = 2
• Nature = 2
• Built form = 0
• Identity = 0
• Public spaces = 0
• Uses = 0
• Homes and buildings = 0

• Places that promote community interaction
• Range of house types to suit the community
• Local facilities - shops for everyday needs
• Development that takes landscape into 

account

• Traffic management
• Character of landscaped conserved

• Itchen Abbas, 
Northington

• Hab 
development, 
Kings Worthy 
compared with 
Northington

• Well designed open space
• Affordable homes built in - rentable
• Access to transport is quite good (but not 

excellent)
• Well built as well as high quality materials
• Well designed properties with light rooms and 

good views out
• Energy generation
• EV charging available at central point

• Roof pitches being out of sync with older 
properties nearby

• No access to public transport
• Cost of managing open spaces fall to 

owners, who then resent others doing it
• If only a few homes have been built, then 

the VDS is still relevant for design but not 
for climate change

• Idividualism of the dwellings
• Rural
• Centre focus on church, old school house, 

village - historic architecture of buildings
• Recreation area on estate
• Strong sense of community

• Poor internet connection
• Schools are not in village
• Traffic on roads - traffic goes through 

village
• Poor bus sevice
• Young people hardly there

• The parish has a parish plan - approved by the whole 
village

• The village wants it to look just the way it is now
• They want to see restoration of rural buildings as 

homes, local employment - rural offices
• No infilling or ribbon developments
• 3 Hamlets: Northington, Totford, Swarraton
• Totford is seperate and should remain so. They want 

a village that is more walkable with a footpath along 
the B3046

• Community
• Facilities
• Open spaces
• Right of way

• Ability to adopt, settlement heart - avoid incoherent 
sprawl

• Good communities consider end user
• Sustainability

• Durley, Bishops 
Walthom, 
Soberton, 
Curdridge

• Sympathetic to surrounding area, blending/
fitting in

• Good choice of materials
• Even if a place doesn’t have a VDS and 

signature architectural style doesn’t mean this 
can’t be achieved

• Not new build
• Adds value to surrounding area 

• Look okay from a distance but lower quality 
finish

• Give more power to the parish councils and 
communitiy to input into developments

• Need to think of traffic provisions of 
surrounding villages

• More transperancy on where money is spent
• Development doesn’t make a contribution to 

the community and impact

• Rural communitites
• Character

• Transport links • Organic growth, bring old railways back into service 
as sustainable transport

P
age 150



37

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Hursley, 
Durley, Bishops 
Waltham, 
Colden 
Common, 
Swanmore

• Provides choice for all of society - especially 
affordable (in a general sense) housing for 
younger people

• Is well connected - importance of bus routes in 
rural areas

• Is designed to manage water - details of 
existing surface water flows should be 
provided

• Movement = 2
• Nature = 2
• Built form = 0
• Identity = 0
• Public spaces = 0
• Uses = 0
• Homes and buildings = 0

• Places that promote community interaction
• Range of house types to suit the community
• Local facilities - shops for everyday needs
• Development that takes landscape into 

account

• Traffic management
• Character of landscaped conserved

• Itchen Abbas, 
Northington

• Hab 
development, 
Kings Worthy 
compared with 
Northington

• Well designed open space
• Affordable homes built in - rentable
• Access to transport is quite good (but not 

excellent)
• Well built as well as high quality materials
• Well designed properties with light rooms and 

good views out
• Energy generation
• EV charging available at central point

• Roof pitches being out of sync with older 
properties nearby

• No access to public transport
• Cost of managing open spaces fall to 

owners, who then resent others doing it
• If only a few homes have been built, then 

the VDS is still relevant for design but not 
for climate change

• Idividualism of the dwellings
• Rural
• Centre focus on church, old school house, 

village - historic architecture of buildings
• Recreation area on estate
• Strong sense of community

• Poor internet connection
• Schools are not in village
• Traffic on roads - traffic goes through 

village
• Poor bus sevice
• Young people hardly there

• The parish has a parish plan - approved by the whole 
village

• The village wants it to look just the way it is now
• They want to see restoration of rural buildings as 

homes, local employment - rural offices
• No infilling or ribbon developments
• 3 Hamlets: Northington, Totford, Swarraton
• Totford is seperate and should remain so. They want 

a village that is more walkable with a footpath along 
the B3046

• Community
• Facilities
• Open spaces
• Right of way

• Ability to adopt, settlement heart - avoid incoherent 
sprawl

• Good communities consider end user
• Sustainability

• Durley, Bishops 
Walthom, 
Soberton, 
Curdridge

• Sympathetic to surrounding area, blending/
fitting in

• Good choice of materials
• Even if a place doesn’t have a VDS and 

signature architectural style doesn’t mean this 
can’t be achieved

• Not new build
• Adds value to surrounding area 

• Look okay from a distance but lower quality 
finish

• Give more power to the parish councils and 
communitiy to input into developments

• Need to think of traffic provisions of 
surrounding villages

• More transperancy on where money is spent
• Development doesn’t make a contribution to 

the community and impact

• Rural communitites
• Character

• Transport links • Organic growth, bring old railways back into service 
as sustainable transport

P
age 151



38

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Legible pedestrian routes - pathways
• Use of space and place cleverly
• Sustainability - PV, EV charging, heating
• Sense of space/ openess

• Overly dense (loss of trees) = loss of 
screening, loss of rural character

• Lack of provision for cars and bins
• Lack of architectural varience = mono 

developments
• Lack of identity

• Materials that have stood the test of time
• Settlement gaps that have been retained/

strengthened
• Improved/retained biodiversity corridors
• The place to still feel like the place

• Redrow - wow • Attractive, variation but commonality
• Traditional appearance
• Well designed
• Popular
• SuDS - features, wildlife, children play
• Garages not wide enough
• Not just about building design
• Quality of landscape
• Pitched roofs better than flat

• Ugly flats west of Waterlooville, need good 
location

• Flood plain - farrindon new houses flooded
• Respect context
• Materials
• Land bought too early
• No overview
• No big picture
• No continuity
• Need to get the code right
• Lack of facilities and services

• Talked generally so haven’t 
scored a specific site

• Quality of materials - natural
• Amentities - shops, village halls, doctors
• Historic character
• Square
• Traditional market town
• Sense of community
• Feels like a villages
• Local village events
• Quaint in spite of houses

• Disused sites - petrol station, palace ruins
• Rat runs
• Unaffordable
• Difficult for residents to drive to shops due 

to tourists

• Same as it does now - Wickham
• Regenrated
• Keep community feel
• Ugly flats regenerated 

• Winchester 
village

• Access to green space and countryside - public 
footpath - inclusive

• A sense of community
• High quality design - variation of designs
• Inclusive of cycle and footways
• Low density housing which reflects 

surrounding area
• Good landscaping

• Lack of connectivity/movement
• Poor quality materials - do not last/date well
• Affordable homes not integrated well
• Lack of green space and no community 

feeling. Too high density
• Garages in groups create unsafe places
• Poor quality development - soulless
• Do not respect local character and 

appearance

• Movement = 1
• Nature = 2
• Built form = 1
• Identity = 1
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 3
• Homes and buildings = 1

• High quality design
• Maintaining open space/ gaps between 

settlements
• Community - sense of place and variation in 

property creates this
• Connectivity/permeability

• Lack of community facilities - results in 
lack of community spirit

• Lack of varied demographic

• Varied community - from varied homes - type/size
• High quality design

P
age 152



39

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• Legible pedestrian routes - pathways
• Use of space and place cleverly
• Sustainability - PV, EV charging, heating
• Sense of space/ openess

• Overly dense (loss of trees) = loss of 
screening, loss of rural character

• Lack of provision for cars and bins
• Lack of architectural varience = mono 

developments
• Lack of identity

• Materials that have stood the test of time
• Settlement gaps that have been retained/

strengthened
• Improved/retained biodiversity corridors
• The place to still feel like the place

• Redrow - wow • Attractive, variation but commonality
• Traditional appearance
• Well designed
• Popular
• SuDS - features, wildlife, children play
• Garages not wide enough
• Not just about building design
• Quality of landscape
• Pitched roofs better than flat

• Ugly flats west of Waterlooville, need good 
location

• Flood plain - farrindon new houses flooded
• Respect context
• Materials
• Land bought too early
• No overview
• No big picture
• No continuity
• Need to get the code right
• Lack of facilities and services

• Talked generally so haven’t 
scored a specific site

• Quality of materials - natural
• Amentities - shops, village halls, doctors
• Historic character
• Square
• Traditional market town
• Sense of community
• Feels like a villages
• Local village events
• Quaint in spite of houses

• Disused sites - petrol station, palace ruins
• Rat runs
• Unaffordable
• Difficult for residents to drive to shops due 

to tourists

• Same as it does now - Wickham
• Regenrated
• Keep community feel
• Ugly flats regenerated 

• Winchester 
village

• Access to green space and countryside - public 
footpath - inclusive

• A sense of community
• High quality design - variation of designs
• Inclusive of cycle and footways
• Low density housing which reflects 

surrounding area
• Good landscaping

• Lack of connectivity/movement
• Poor quality materials - do not last/date well
• Affordable homes not integrated well
• Lack of green space and no community 

feeling. Too high density
• Garages in groups create unsafe places
• Poor quality development - soulless
• Do not respect local character and 

appearance

• Movement = 1
• Nature = 2
• Built form = 1
• Identity = 1
• Public spaces = 2
• Uses = 3
• Homes and buildings = 1

• High quality design
• Maintaining open space/ gaps between 

settlements
• Community - sense of place and variation in 

property creates this
• Connectivity/permeability

• Lack of community facilities - results in 
lack of community spirit

• Lack of varied demographic

• Varied community - from varied homes - type/size
• High quality design

P
age 153



40

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• South Wonston, 
Winchester, 
Sparshot, 
Micheldevon

• VDS - not used effectively in the planning 
process

• VDS approval - need resources to support 
review and approval if they are so important

• Over development in the space where one 
property was previously

• Neighbourhood plans - not engaged by WCC 
historically

• Nature not encouraged
• Replacing smaller houses with 5/6 bedroom 

homes - changing the demographic balance
• Scale in keeping with the other properties

• Movement = 1
• Nature = 1
• Built form = 1
• Identity = 1
• Public spaces = 1
• Uses = 1
• Homes and buildings = 1

• Community facilities - shops, churches, pub, 
sports pitches

• Accessibility to rural space - walks, cycle 
track

• Appreciate nature and open space
• Diverse community - affordable houses, 

different ages
• Community spirit - belonging, social events
• Beautiful - classic Hampshire character

• Being a rat run/traffic
• Inappropriat development - in wrong 

place/wrong size
• Lack of some amenities - shops

• Keep it as it is now - enjoy dark skies and no pave 
walks

• Be connected - broadband/sewage
• Sustainability improved
• Public transport enhanced
• Improved dangerous roads, speeds, quality of 

vehicles
• Preserve the market towns - they are an asset

P
age 154



41

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Exercise 1 Exercise 2 Exercise 3

Name of town/
nearest place

Name and 
location of 
development

Why did you choose this place? Why do 
you think this is a well-designed place?

Are there any developments in your 
town/village/area that are not well-
designed places? What is it that doesn’t 
work so well? 

Rate new development 
against 7 characteristics of a 
well-design place

Tell us 5 things that you like about your 
town/village or place

Tell us 5 things that you do not like 
about your tow/village or place

Think about the future of your place in 20 years. 
How would you like your place to be? Where/
what could be changed or improved? 

• South Wonston, 
Winchester, 
Sparshot, 
Micheldevon

• VDS - not used effectively in the planning 
process

• VDS approval - need resources to support 
review and approval if they are so important

• Over development in the space where one 
property was previously

• Neighbourhood plans - not engaged by WCC 
historically

• Nature not encouraged
• Replacing smaller houses with 5/6 bedroom 

homes - changing the demographic balance
• Scale in keeping with the other properties

• Movement = 1
• Nature = 1
• Built form = 1
• Identity = 1
• Public spaces = 1
• Uses = 1
• Homes and buildings = 1

• Community facilities - shops, churches, pub, 
sports pitches

• Accessibility to rural space - walks, cycle 
track

• Appreciate nature and open space
• Diverse community - affordable houses, 

different ages
• Community spirit - belonging, social events
• Beautiful - classic Hampshire character

• Being a rat run/traffic
• Inappropriat development - in wrong 

place/wrong size
• Lack of some amenities - shops

• Keep it as it is now - enjoy dark skies and no pave 
walks

• Be connected - broadband/sewage
• Sustainability improved
• Public transport enhanced
• Improved dangerous roads, speeds, quality of 

vehicles
• Preserve the market towns - they are an asset

P
age 155



42

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

How does engagement with stakeholders inform what to code for to ensure 
successful new development? 
 
Market Towns and Rural Areas 
Stakeholder Engagement   
NMDC Design 
Parameter 

Successful 
Developments 

Poor 
Developments 

Future Places 

Context 
Character types  *  
Site context *  * 
Site assessment *   
Historic 
assessment 

  * 
 

Heritage assets * * * 
Movement 
Street network * *  
Public transport  * * 
Street hierarchy    
Walking and 
cycling 

* 
 

* 
 

 

Junctions and 
Crossings 

* 
 

 
 

* 
 

Inclusive Streets * * * 
Car parking * *  
Cycle Parking    
Utilities and 
Services 

* 
 

  

Nature 
Network of spaces *   
Open space 
provision 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Green 
Infrastructure 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Design  *  
Working with 
water 

   

SUDS *   
Flood risk  *  
Net gain    

How does engagement with stakeholders inform what to code for to ensure 
successful new development? 
 
Market Towns and Rural Areas 
Stakeholder Engagement   
NMDC Design 
Parameter 

Successful 
Developments 

Poor 
Developments 

Future Places 

Context 
Character types  *  
Site context *  * 
Site assessment *   
Historic 
assessment 

  * 
 

Heritage assets * * * 
Movement 
Street network * *  
Public transport  * * 
Street hierarchy    
Walking and 
cycling 

* 
 

* 
 

 

Junctions and 
Crossings 

* 
 

 
 

* 
 

Inclusive Streets * * * 
Car parking * *  
Cycle Parking    
Utilities and 
Services 

* 
 

  

Nature 
Network of spaces *   
Open space 
provision 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Green 
Infrastructure 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Design  *  
Working with 
water 

   

SUDS *   
Flood risk  *  
Net gain    

How does engagement with stakeholders inform what to code for to ensure 
successful new development? 
 
Market Towns and Rural Areas 
Stakeholder Engagement   
NMDC Design 
Parameter 

Successful 
Developments 

Poor 
Developments 

Future Places 

Context 
Character types  *  
Site context *  * 
Site assessment *   
Historic 
assessment 

  * 
 

Heritage assets * * * 
Movement 
Street network * *  
Public transport  * * 
Street hierarchy    
Walking and 
cycling 

* 
 

* 
 

 

Junctions and 
Crossings 

* 
 

 
 

* 
 

Inclusive Streets * * * 
Car parking * *  
Cycle Parking    
Utilities and 
Services 

* 
 

  

Nature 
Network of spaces *   
Open space 
provision 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Green 
Infrastructure 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Design  *  
Working with 
water 

   

SUDS *   
Flood risk  *  
Net gain    

10�7 Mapping of community feedback onto NMDC design parameters

The recently published National Model Design 
Code (NMDC) and Guidance provide a basis for the 
production of design codes by local authorities. 
Design codes are intended to provide greater 
certainty about the quality of design outcomes, 
with the content and level of detail in design codes 
varying according to the scale at which a code is 
applied. 

The NMDC is founded on the idea of community 
engagement as the basis for understanding what 
is ‘locally popular’. These workshops sought to 
understand what is ‘locally popular’ in the context 
of Winchester’s Market Towns and Rural Villages 
to inform local design policy and guidance to 
shape future developments and ensure high quality 
outcomes. 

In the following tables, the findings from the 
engagement workshops have been mapped onto 
the ten characteristics and design parameters set 
out in the NMDC (page 8). These suggest how an 
ongoing process of engagement might inform 
the development of locally specific Village Design 
Codes.

P
age 156



43

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural AreasHow does engagement with stakeholders inform what to code for to ensure 
successful new development? 
 
Market Towns and Rural Areas 
Stakeholder Engagement   
NMDC Design 
Parameter 

Successful 
Developments 

Poor 
Developments 

Future Places 

Context 
Character types  *  
Site context *  * 
Site assessment *   
Historic 
assessment 

  * 
 

Heritage assets * * * 
Movement 
Street network * *  
Public transport  * * 
Street hierarchy    
Walking and 
cycling 

* 
 

* 
 

 

Junctions and 
Crossings 

* 
 

 
 

* 
 

Inclusive Streets * * * 
Car parking * *  
Cycle Parking    
Utilities and 
Services 

* 
 

  

Nature 
Network of spaces *   
Open space 
provision 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Green 
Infrastructure 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Design  *  
Working with 
water 

   

SUDS *   
Flood risk  *  
Net gain    

How does engagement with stakeholders inform what to code for to ensure 
successful new development? 
 
Market Towns and Rural Areas 
Stakeholder Engagement   
NMDC Design 
Parameter 

Successful 
Developments 

Poor 
Developments 

Future Places 

Context 
Character types  *  
Site context *  * 
Site assessment *   
Historic 
assessment 

  * 
 

Heritage assets * * * 
Movement 
Street network * *  
Public transport  * * 
Street hierarchy    
Walking and 
cycling 

* 
 

* 
 

 

Junctions and 
Crossings 

* 
 

 
 

* 
 

Inclusive Streets * * * 
Car parking * *  
Cycle Parking    
Utilities and 
Services 

* 
 

  

Nature 
Network of spaces *   
Open space 
provision 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Green 
Infrastructure 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Design  *  
Working with 
water 

   

SUDS *   
Flood risk  *  
Net gain    

Biodiversity *  * 
Street trees    
Built Form 
Density * * * 
Whether buildings 
join 

   

Types and forms * * * 
Blocks *   
Building line    
Height *   
Identity 
Local character * *  
Legibility *   
Masterplanning  *  
Design of buildings * 

 
* 
 

* 
 

Public Space 
Primary *   
Local + secondary *   
Tertiary *   
Meeting places  *  
Multi-functional *   
Home zones    
Secured by design    
Counterterrorism    
Uses 
Efficient land use   * 
Mix * *  
Active frontage    
Housing for all * * * 
Type *  * 
Schools    
Community 
facilities 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Local services *  * 
Homes and Buildings 
Space standards  * * 
Accessibility *  * 

Biodiversity *  * 
Street trees    
Built Form 
Density * * * 
Whether buildings 
join 

   

Types and forms * * * 
Blocks *   
Building line    
Height *   
Identity 
Local character * *  
Legibility *   
Masterplanning  *  
Design of buildings * 

 
* 
 

* 
 

Public Space 
Primary *   
Local + secondary *   
Tertiary *   
Meeting places  *  
Multi-functional *   
Home zones    
Secured by design    
Counterterrorism    
Uses 
Efficient land use   * 
Mix * *  
Active frontage    
Housing for all * * * 
Type *  * 
Schools    
Community 
facilities 

* 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Local services *  * 
Homes and Buildings 
Space standards  * * 
Accessibility *  * 
Light, aspect, 
privacy 

   

Security    
Gardens + 
balconies 

* 
 

  

Resources 
Energy hierarchy    
Energy efficiency *  * 
Neighbourhood 
energy 

   

Embodied energy *  * 
Construction * * * 
MMC    
Water    
Lifespan 
Management Plan * * * 
Participation    
Community    

 

P
age 157



44

Design South EastWorkshop 3: Market Towns and Rural Areas

Design South East
Admirals Office
The Historic Dockyard
Chatham, Kent
ME4 4TZ

T  01634 401166
E  info@designsoutheast.org 
designsoutheast.org 

© Design South East 2021

P
age 158


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 December 2021
	Minutes

	5 Local Plan  - Vision & Objectives (Presentation)
	6 Local Plan Proposed Vision/Objectives
	7 Local Plan Design South East Reports
	Item 3 Workshop 1 report
	Item 3 Workshop 2 report
	1 Introduction and Context
	1.1 Winchester Local Plan and the National Design Agenda
	1.2 Stakeholder Workshops

	2 Workshop Summary
	2.1 Engagement Process
	2.2 Key Findings
	2.3 Key Recommendations

	3 Areas of Opportunity
	3.1 Introduction
	3.2 The Broadway
	3.3 North Walls
	3.4 Westgate
	3.5 Station
	3.6 Bar End

	4 Previously Developed Land
	4.1 Introduction
	4.2 City-Wide  
	4.3 City Centre

	5 Movement
	5.1 Issues
	5.2 Opportunities 

	6 Open Space and Public Realm
	6.1 Issues 
	6.2 Opportunities 

	7 Appendices
	7.1 Workshop Details
	7.2 Communications
	7.3 Workshop Agenda
	7.4 Workshop Explainer Sheet


	Item 3 Workshop 3 report
	1 Introduction and Context
	1.1 Winchester Local Plan and the National Design Agenda
	1.2 Stakeholder Workshops

	2 Workshop Summary
	2.1 Engagement Process
	2.3 Key Findings
	2.2 Key Recommendations

	3 Ten Characteristics of a Well-Designed Place 
	3.1 National Design Guidance

	4 Ten Characteristics of Well-Designed Rural Settlements in Winchester 
	4.1 Ten Characteristics of Well-Designed Rural Settlements in Winchester		 

	5 Poll Findings
	5.1 Summary of Findings 

	6 Successful Development
	6.1 Key Findings

	7 Poor Development
	7.1 Key Findings

	8 Our Place Now
	8.1 Postives
	8.2 Negatives

	9 Our Place in the Future
	9.1 Key Findings 

	10 Appendices
	10.1 Workshop Details
	10.2 Communications
	10.3 Workshop Agenda
	10.4 Workshop Explainer Sheet
	10.5 Survey
	10.7 Mapping of community feedback onto NMDC design parameters




